
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

REGULAR Meeting AGENDA WEST Branch 
March 10, 2010 6:30 p.m. 1125 University Avenue 
   

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

PLEASE 
NOTE 

LOCATION 

The Board of Library Trustees may act on any item on this agenda. 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 
B. Public Comments (6:30 – 7:00 p.m.) 

(Proposed 30-minute time limit, with speakers allowed 3 minutes each) 
C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues 

Comments / responses to reports and issues addressed in packet. 
D. Report from Board of Library Trustees  
E. Approval of Agenda 
  

II. PRESENTATIONS 

A. West Branch Library Conceptual Design Update 
1. Update by Harley Ellis Devereaux/GreenWorks Studio on the Conceptual Design 

Phase; Staff Report; and Discussion of Possible Next Steps. 
2. Public Comment (on this item only) 
3. Board discussion 

 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the 
Consent Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve minutes of February 6, 2010 Special Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the February 6, 2010 special meeting of the 
Board of Library Trustees. 

B. Approve minutes of February 10, 2010 Regular Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the February 10, 2010 regular meeting of the 
Board of Library Trustees. 

 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Update on the Branch Bond Program  
Discussion of staff report on status of implementation of the Measure FF branch 
improvement program, to include update on Request for Proposals, schedule, and budget. 

B. February 2010 Monthly Report from Library Director  
i. Library Development 
ii. Professional Activities 
iii. Programs, Services and Collections 
iv. Personnel 

C. Library events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are 
posted at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

D. Celebrating National Library Week 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA  
MArch 10, 2010  Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

E. Measure FF: Branch Improvement Program Bookmobile Option For Continuity Of 
Services During Branch Closures 

  

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

Next regular meeting will be held at 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday, April 14, 2010 at the Central Branch Library, 
2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley. 

VI. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation  
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957) 
Title of position being evaluated:  Director of Library Services. The Board of Library 
Trustees will recess into closed session to conduct a public employee performance 
evaluation. 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Please refrain from wearing scented products at public meetings. 
 
Written materials may be viewed in advance of the meeting at the Central Library Reference Desk (2090 Kittredge Street), or 
any of the branches, during regular library hours. 
 
To request a meeting agenda in large print, Braille, or on cassette, or to request a sign language interpreter, assistive-listening 
device or other accommodation for the meeting, please call (510) 981-6195 (voice) or (510) 548-1240 (TDD). Providing at 
least five (5) working days’ notice prior to the meeting will help to ensure availability. 
 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley was posted in 
the display cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge 
Street, as well as on the Berkeley Public Library’s website on March 4, 2010. 
 
  
 //s// ______________________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
For further information, please call (510) 981-6195. 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s 
electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and 
other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or 
committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to 
be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, 
commission or committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include that 
information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee for further 
information. 
 

1. Phil Allen 
2. Tom Dufour 



 

   
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 
6 PRESENTATION CALENDAR 
 March 10, 2010 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: MEASURE FF WEST BRANCH LIBRARY PROJECT UPDATE: DIRECTION ON 

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PHASE SCHEME 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
At the Saturday, February 6, 2010 BOLT Special meeting, design team members Ed Dean and 
Sylvia Wallis from Harley Ellis Devereaux / GreenWorks Studio made a presentation on three 
possible conceptual schemes. At the regular BOLT meeting of Wednesday, February 10, 2010 
the board took up a discussion of the three schemes, reviewed the discussion held on Saturday 
and discussed possible next steps. 
 
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
 
February BOLT Discussion & Action 
 
The West Branch project is in the conceptual design phase. 
 
At the February 10, 2010 meeting, after thoughtful consideration, the board voted unanimously 
(Trustee Golphin was absent) to pursue an option that would result in an all new building on the 
site.  
 
Voting on a one-story or two-story design concept was reserved pending additional information. 
Among the topics raised for follow-up discussion / consideration were: 

 Design options ability to meet the project’s budget; 
 Design’s ability to provide a civic presence; 
 Incorporates green space, preferably at the front of the building for public access, while 

allowing for bike racks; and  
 Cost of the Photo Voltaic system, preferable that it is included in the base bid estimates 

rather than as an alternate to ensure a ZNE building.   

In these deliberations the board stressed the importance of the selected scheme to meet the 
program set by the library, while allowing for a level of flexibility to respond to future needs and 
opportunities and to maximize the capacity of the site without feeling constrained.  

Further, the scheme selected for development in the next phase of design will ideally meet 
these general criteria: 

Presentation I, Item A 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION REPORT 
March 2010 West Branch Library Project, Measure FF Page 2 

  
 Reflect the desire of the board and community to position the West Branch Library as 

the gateway to the community via the major artery of University Avenue; 
 That it be designed with materials and finishes of a high caliber for durability and to 

enhance the aesthetic quality desired by the community and board; 
 Create a home for the adult literacy program Berkeley READS, which has been 

operating in undersized quarters; 
 The new library will strive to meet the sustainability requirements of the city, including 

utilizing day-lighting techniques such as skylights and an alternative energy source;  
 Look for opportunities to incorporate features reflective of the historical aspects of the 

neighborhood / old building and / or references to the library’s place in the history in the 
community; and 

 Meet the bond program requirements, to create a modern, accessible and safe library 
that can deliver 21st century library services.  

One – Story New Option: Scheme B 

The two major concerns regarding the one-story new scheme have been addressed.  

First, in the previously presented Scheme B the building was set back from the rear yard to 
accommodate two groupings of trees, in the NW and NE corners respectively, as a result 
creating a tight front entry with minimal space for landscaping. Since the February meetings, the 
Landscape consultant has further evaluated the landscape, as concerns the Northeast corner of 
the lot he has stated, “These trees appear generally unhealthy, especially in contrast to the 
trees on the westerly side.  They have been severely and asymmetrically pruned on the 
easterly face in response to the adjacent hotel construction and are growing in a very confined 
area inappropriate to either their existing or future size.  The upper branches are relatively 
sparse and appear stressed, likely the result of their root systems being confined by 
buildings and with 1/3 - 1/2  under impermeable paving on the neighbor's side.  These already 
messy trees will have increased debris fall as the stresses to the trees increase, which will be 
an ongoing problem for maintenance and danger to the building.”  Their removal is 
recommended. 

Related to this issue is the degree to which the new building schemes lowered the building and 
the depth of the excavation and the resulting height of the retaining walls required to protect the 
rear landscaping. The 2-story scheme employed a ramp to the east of the lot, while the one-
story scheme brought the building lower (by deeper excavation) to meet the sidewalk at the 
center of the lot. The proposed scheme (Attachment A) has been revised to utilize the ramp 
option in which the building is lowered less than previously proposed. The advantage of this 
change is that the trees that are healthy in the Northwest corner of the lot will be protected with 
a retaining wall and less excavation will be required to level the lot. The landscape consultant 
has concluded that each of the schemes (previously proposed Scheme B and C) will work with 
the goal of preserving these trees. Both give the trees good breathing room horizontally, though 
Scheme C, as originally proposed “is significantly less invasive into the tree's root zone”.  In 
order to minimize the impacts on the large northwesterly trees the layout, including the entrance 
sequence is revised in the presented revised Scheme B (one-story option).  
 
The second item was the ability of the program to fit comfortably on the site while providing 
green space or an entry court and bike rack parking.  The opening up of the NE rear corner of 
the lot would allow the building to reach farther into the rear yard creating the desired green 
court at the entry. The staff will continue discussions with Planning Department staff regarding 
any approval that this option may require.  
  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION REPORT 
March 2010 West Branch Library Project, Measure FF Page 3 

  
Two – Story New Option: Scheme C 

The two-story scheme as presented on 2/10 was over the set project construction budget of 
$4.9 million. In order to bring it within the construction budget set for the project the design team 
developed a list of possible reductions, these included: reduce the overall gross area by 150 SF; 
reduce the site development budget by approximately 15%; reduce the mechanical and 
engineering budget by approximately 5%; make the entry canopy an add alternate; reduce the 
contingency budget and use stucco finish on the North and South elevations in lieu of metal 
panel /rain screen solution.  The photovoltaic system was added into the base project cost. 
These reductions / additions to the program scope would significantly impede the schemes 
ability to meet the desired library program and project requirements and is therefore not 
recommended.  
 
LPC  
An informational presentation was made by the design team at the March 4, 2010 Landmarks 
Preservations Commission meeting to update them on the West branch project.   
 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Following board discussion and consensus on a conceptual scheme preference, the board will 
need to give direction to staff in order to move the project to the schematic design phase. In the 
next phase of design staff will schedule a community meeting to continue discussion of 
drawings and documents illustrating project scale, layout, site issues, massing / elevations and 
functionality. Staff will bring more developed plans to the board during this phase for additional 
review and direction.  
 
Following the board meeting staff will seek advice from the Planning Department on the next 
steps in the approval process. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A: Design Scheme B (revised); Scheme C; Design Considerations 
 
 



 



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEME                               B 
NEW CONSTRUCTION  

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX 

ONE-STORY                               

UNIVERSITY AVENUE ELEVATION                               

Building signage of incised 
lettering to match original

Roof monitors bring enhanced 
natural daylight inside, 
symbolizing enlightenment

Photovoltaics on sawtooth 
monitors allude to context 
of Ocenview warehouses/

Relocated original medallion

Simple and formal architec-
ture with civic presence

Prominent doorway wel-
coming patrons

New 9-square window with 
proportions to match origi-
nal

Existing mature redwood trees 
preserved and visible from street

HAAAAAAAAAAAAARLEEEEEEEEEEEEEY ELLISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS DEVEREAUX

Presentation I, Item A 
Attachment #A



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEME                               B 
NEW CONSTRUCTION  

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX Total Area:  8,660 GSF

ONE-STORY                               

PROS:
Civic Presence
Engagement with Street
Connection w/ Oceanview Context
Spacious Atmosphere
Good Circulation Flow
Ease of Use of Single-Story
Efficient Plan w/ Good Adjacencies
Plentiful Daylight
View of Redwood Trees
Adequate Area for Photovoltaics
Good Natural Ventilation

CONS:
Removes 1923 Building
Less Outdoor Space

FIRST FLOOR PLAN  revised 3-3-2010                               

BUILDING SECTION                               

Updates 3-3-2010:

Scheme B meets budget: 
   - Includes net zero strategies
   - Minimal value engineering required

Northeast trees to be removed in all schemes 
per recommendation of landscape architect.

Presentation I, Item A 
Attachment #A



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEME                               C             
NEW CONSTRUCTION   

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX 

TWO-STORY                               

UNIVERSITY AVENUE ELEVATION                               

Building signage lettering 
to match original

Central atrium brings enhanced 
natural daylight inside, 
symbolizing enlightenment

Photovoltaics on sawtooth 
supports allude to context 
of Ocenview warehouses/

Relocated original medallion

Simple and formal architec-
ture with civic presence

Prominent doorway wel-
coming patrons

New 9-square window with 
proportions to match origi-
nal

Existing mature redwood trees 
preserved and visible from street

HARLEEEEEEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX

Presentation I, Item A 
Attachment #A



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEME                               C             
NEW CONSTRUCTION   

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX Total Area:  9,272 GSF

TWO-STORY                               

PROS:
Civic Presence, Engagement with Street
Connection w/ Oceanview Context
Spacious Atmosphere, Good Circulation Flow
View of Redwood Trees
Adequate Area for Photovoltaics
Generous Outdoor Spaces 

CONS:
Sightlines & Adjacencies Compro-
mised by Vertical Circulation
Less Effective Daylighting

FIRST FLOOR PLAN                               SECOND FLOOR PLAN                               

BUILDING SECTION                               
Updates 3-3-2010:

Scheme C meets budget: 
   - Includes net zero strategies
   - Significant value engineering required

Northeast trees to be removed in all schemes 
per recommendation of landscape architect.

Presentation I, Item A 
Attachment #A



Civic Presence

Oceanview Neighborhood 

 Context

DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS  

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX 

THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

Presentation I, Item A 
Attachment #A



 



 
Berkeley Public Library 

Board of Library Trustees 
 
Special Meeting MINUTES West Branch  
February 6, 2010 12:00 p.m. 1125 University Avenue 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Consent III, Item A 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

 The special meeting of February 6, 2010 was called to order by Chair Kupfer at 12:08 PM. 

 Present:   Trustees Winston Burton, Abigail Franklin, Carolyn Henry-Golphin and Susan Kupfer. 

Absent:   Darryl Moore 

 Also present: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Suzanne Olawski, Neighborhood 
Services Manager; Dennis Dang, Library Admin Manager; Alan Bern, Library Special 
Services Coordinator 

Harley Ellis Devereaux/ GreenWorks Studio (HED/GWS) – Sylvia Wallis, RA, Edward 
Dean, AIA 

Steve Dewan, Project Manager, Kitchell CEM 
R10-010 Moved by Trustee Henry-Golphin, seconded by Trustee Burton to approve the agenda as 

presented Motion passed unanimously. 

 

II. WORKSHOP SESSION ON MEASURE FF WEST BRANCH LIBRARY UPDATE 

A. Presentation by Harley Ellis Devereaux/GreenWorks Studio on the Conceptual Design Phase; 
and Staff Report on the Process, Community Input and Next Steps. 

Edward Dean (HED/GWS) and Sylvia Wallis (HED/GWS) presented conceptual design plans for the 
West Branch Library 

Mr. Dean recapped efforts over last few months, getting familiar with needs of the library as 
articulated in library building program. Assignment was to develop 3 different approaches to use the 
site including how to handle the remnants of the 1923 building. Attachment A has the project goals 
which includes achieve Zero Net Energy (ZNE) performance – West Branch is a good candidate. All 
three designs can do this. Cost modeling has been done as well comparing the 3 options. Two 
community meetings were held, at the second one the public comments were mostly around space 
requirements and more reading areas, no overwhelming response was expressed to save the 
building. The Existing Conditions board (Attachment B) includes images and issues discussed at the 
community meeting and / or with the Landmarks Preservation Commission West branch 
subcommittee. The project is at an important milestone requiring a decision / direction from the 
library. 

Ms. Wallis reviewed three schemes. There are commonalities to all three schemes; they all have the 
same program or assignable area. Total area may differ. All three schemes get rid of the 1974 
addition. All have an autonomous multi-purpose space. 

1. Design Scheme A: Rehabilitation Two-Story (with New Addition) 

Based on Facilities Master Plan Option A with similar estimated SF total (Attachment C and D); 
This option was further developed after exploring several others to get to the best alternative 
represented as scheme A.  

2.  Features: 

 Retain 1923 building and restores / rebuilds, keep 3-sides of building  

 Move building 13 feet closer to street and 18” lower, reducing civic presence 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 6, 2010   Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

 Create side entrance - reduces traffic noise that would flow into the building; works 
better for after hour community meeting room access. Original door becomes a 
window, creating quieter reading room, but disturbing can no longer use original entry 
after remodel (not currently in use as entry).  

 Scheme layout meets the building program provided. Shortfalls include: book drop 
detached from staff work room /return sorting area and could not accommodate 
automated material handling system in future.  Fair job of respecting the building and 
fair to good job of meeting library needs.  

 Would require removal of one redwood tree in the back left where corner of building 
would go. 

 Traffic noise study found original entry would create unacceptable noise levels (70 dbA 
average) in the library reading space if it were operable, front wall protects the interior 
reading area now, not accounted for in master plan or earlier study. 

Trustee Burton – can the multipurpose room be used after library hours? Yes, all three schemes 
would allow this. 

3. Design Scheme B: New Construction, One Story (Attachment E and F) 

Features:  

 Float roof up to meet solar access requirements 

 Raise building at street to create civic presence and loft like space 

 Saw tooth monitors on roof with windows on north side and photovoltaic panels on south side 
to provide daylight to the interior needed during daytime.  

 Conflicting goals of displaying activities inside and distraction of street/traffic activity– large 
window introduced.  

 Flexible spaces with new construction - could change purposes later if library needs to 
change. 

 Maximizes site space, less landscaping. 

 Lower at rear due to slope, retaining walls in rear.  

 Allows for direct access to the sidewalk level. 

 

4. Design Scheme C: New Construction, Two-Story (Attachments G and H) 

Features: 

 More exterior space – more generous garden 

 Less potential for shading on photovoltaic systems than Scheme B.  

 Existing redwood trees maintained and visible from the street. 

 Entrance door faces east, slightly above street level, slope up so slightly raised. 

 Central atrium brings in light to interior 

 Literacy on 2nd floor own space – could add roof terrace, 

 

Ms Wallis summarized:  

All three schemes meet library programming needs in a satisfactory manner.   



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 6, 2010   Page 3 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

New one-story (Scheme B) is most efficient, all on one floor, don’t need elevator or stairs. It fills the 
site resulting in less outdoor space. Most efficient, least extra gross SF because no need for elevator 
or stairs and meets the program. No space to expand footprint. 

Rehabilitation (Scheme A) will meet the program with addition. This option requires additional square 
footage for elevator and stairs and to fit program to existing spaces. Rehabilitation of original is not 
perfect. Original building was set back and up from street level, would be pushed to street without 
front door operable. Renovation will look much different squeezed into space closer to street and 
without original entrance. Would cost more than Scheme B as would new 2-story.  

Mr. Dean summarized: 

The team has met three times with Landmarks Preservation Committee sub-committee for the West 
Branch. Expressed would like to get their buy-in to whatever scheme we move forward with. Goal 
was to demonstrate to this group due diligence in options explored, including structural strengthening 
in a way that wouldn’t detract from original building. Found option that would use girders to support 
old and new building, add ½ “ plywood sheathing, rebuild windows and sills to adjust window depth 
for new sheathing, remove and replace existing interior plaster walls. Much of the original building will 
need to go away and be rebuilt, will look like old but not be original. Compromises to both historical 
and library program as result. While the program developed is acceptable there are drawbacks as 
noted, including additional costs associated with moving the building. Community meeting comments 
were to increase space, more seating, less distraction from University Avenue, build taller for 
expansion and not as much on restoration.  

B. Public Comments  

1) Kurt Gray – Attended previous community meeting. Appreciate work being done. Not clear on the 
financial restraints. He was one of the people in favor of making the library as big as possible 
including basement. There is a humongous building across the street. This is the direction that 
buildings are taking on University Avenue. We should be making this building as big as possible. 
More height in front and lower in back. Use lots of glass. Maximum amount of light. Retain trees. 
Entrance off university with a courtyard to park bikes. Retain design elements of the original 
building, there’s only a handful left anyway. Don’t rebuild the original building. 

2) Sheila Stern – Has used this branch for 40+ years. Concerned about the library needing space in 
another 5 years. Which of the plans has most space for actual library needs? Which is most 
amenable for easily increasing of space. Don’t want to build a new building that become obsolete 
in a few years. Want library functions to improve.   

3) Celia Jackson – Stressed importance of making internal spaces flexible, able to be rearranged in 
the future. 

4) Is the entrance on Scheme A on the parking lot? It’s in a courtyard that will be separated from 
parking lot by landscaping  

5) Phil Allen – What extent will older part of the library be returned to prominence. Thought it would 
be shown in all three schemes. How can you move the building?  What about future development 
on property to the west. 

6) Celia Jackson – Is there enough accommodation for bike and stroller parking? 

7) Christina Staples – Historic look of neighborhood is important, like idea of including original so not 
like current addition. We don’t want to look back in 20 years and say ugh, we made a mistake. 

8) Kurt Gray – Reiterated thought building should have as many stories as possible.    

Board Discussion 

Trustee Kupfer asked for information on cost estimates at this stage: 

Director Corbeil reiterated that these are conceptual drawings and there will be changes as we move forward. Mr. 
Dean reported Scheme B is within budget. Scheme C is over budget, can equate cost with SF. Two story building 
has cost implications due to stairs and elevator, volume greater to meet program. It’s not unusual to have a plan 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 6, 2010   Page 4 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

slightly over budget and then work on ways to reduce costs, would need to reduce costs. Scheme A, is the higher 
cost option over budgeted amount due to original building moves and reconstruction. Mr. Dean described the 
steps involved in the renovation scheme: prepare building for initial move by building bracing and support to 
stabilize structure remaining is self contained, tear down 1970 building, move 1923 building to back of lot, 
excavate front half of site, build new foundation in location will go, move 1923 building to new location, build 
missing pieces and then new addition. Moving building twice and rebuilding etc would add to cost $300K - $600K. 
Total cost to completely move and restore original 1923 building would be $600L to $800K. 

C. Board Discussion 

1) Trustee Henry-Golphin – Heard that keeping original is important to some in the community. In 
the next 5 to 6 years what will give us the better option to continue to grow and redesign when 
community needs and internal needs change? Need to make this a project that lasts longer, see 
this as priority, what’s going to give us the best value long term. Outside is really important to the 
community but leaning toward what gives us the best value and functionality in the long term.  

2) Trustee Burton – See historical aspects in A only. Would like more information on LPC’s role. The 
money and machinations involved with moving the building versus the future of having the nicest 
biggest library that we can. Let’s not be constrained by original building if we do not have to be. 
Functionality is also important factor. Want people to be satisfied in 10 years. Would like to know 
what LPC is committed to.   

Director Corbeil responded that the library and design team have met several times with a 
subcommittee of the LPC, not the full commission to solicit input.  

As a City of Berkeley landmarked building (Structure of Merit), LPC has jurisdiction over the 
project, so we would go to them based on the recommendation of the Board. As a reminder, 
voters gave a mandate to improve library services. Board gets to weigh in very heavily on what 
that means for library services.  We are working very closely with the Planning Department whom 
would advise us on process. Planning would have an EIR conducted in any case. We have asked 
to make an informational presentation to the full LPC in March 2010. At that point we will tell them 
which direction the Board is heading.  

Sylvia Wallis reported on early meetings with LPC sub-committee even before beginning to 
develop schemes. Asked LPC sub-committee, if we don’t save the whole building is it worth 
saving a door or a window? Not necessarily, but perhaps there are some other ways to recall the 
building. One approach HED/GWS took was to recall the neighborhood or history of Ocean View. 
That led to the loft-like warehouse design with high windows. All schemes have civic presence 
which was a feature of the original structure on the site. Become an important institution on the 
street. Small gestures retained, reuse of original medallion, windows in same proportion as 
original 9 square grid in glazing that would be reminiscent of original windows that no longer exist, 
and use of incised lettering which are only partially remaining but to make it a positive vs current 
negative. Tie in to create continuity with past.  

3) Mr. Dean – LPC subcommittee members expressed not interested in specific pieces being kept 
and applied in a new structure, this isn’t seen as respectful. To them there’s the whole issue of a 
civic presence and way you use an old building. They’re still looking for an “AA” scheme. We 
think scheme A makes the best use of the existing building. LPC subcommittee hasn’t said it’s 
okay to use bits and pieces of items identified in the landmark resolution. They identify 6 pieces of 
the building in the landmark application. There could be some very creative ideas to reuse some 
of these features in the interior. There are still a lot of ideas to explore. 

4) Trustee Franklin – All three designs have very attractive features. Typically like historic 
preservation, but even though Scheme B has the smallest square footage it maximizes what you 
can do in the space. Maximizing the footprint is a good idea. Love the light that the saw tooth type 
roof would provide. Like the way that ties into the historic neighborhood. Cost is important, 
staying within the budget is important. More concerned with functionality of space than the 
exterior. Asked architects to discuss further how would grade the functionality of each scheme. 

Ms Wallis responded that functionality of scheme A is a “B or B+” Functionality of Schemes B and 
C is an “A.”  Mr. Dean pointed out that a major drawback of Scheme A is that book returns go into 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 6, 2010   Page 5 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

closet and librarians have to constantly empty it. Schemes B & C the books returns go directly 
into the workroom which will have automated book handling. Less easy to move things around in 
Scheme A. MS Wallis pointed out that Scheme A has less flexibility, whereas B has flexibility for 
moving programs around, although having Literacy on the ground floor may limit the flexibility. Mr. 
Dean added that Literacy program restricts the moving of spaces in A and B whereas Scheme C 
puts Literacy upstairs and allows the first floor to be more easily changed.  

The programmable space is larger in all 3 schemes, the current building is 6,200 square feet and 
the building program calls for a total of 8,600 square feet, 7,310 square feet for the library and 
approximately 1,200 for the Literacy program. Programs get roughly the same additional space in 
all 3 schemes, scheme A is bit different because we were trying to fit within the historic part of the 
building. Scheme B is approximately 2600 square feet (40%) larger than existing building. 
Scheme C, 2-story new building has more space dedicated to stairs, elevators, lobby and 
additional bathrooms required due to the second floor. Mr. Dean clarified that there is assigned 
and unassigned spaces.  

5) Trustee Franklin asked if the staff had a preference or opinion on the functional difference 
between the options. Director Corbeil said the staff was involved in development of the building 
program and layouts. Staff will continue to be involved as the layouts are developed. 

6) Trustee Kupfer asked Steve Dewan (Kitchell) if he wanted to make any comments on the cost 
estimates. Mr. Dewan responded that it is still very preliminary but that he could talk about rough 
percentages, as very conceptual and very early on.  

Mr. Dean responded that the photo-voltaic (PV) are not included in any of the schemes cost at 
this stage, these would add approximately $250K to each schemes costs. Conceptual design 
phase estimates indicate scheme A would cost $800,000+ over budget (16%), scheme B is on 
budget and scheme C would cost $250,000 (5%) over budget. In an approximately $5 million 
budget.  

7) Trustee Kupfer inquired if other funding sources were available for photovoltaic systems. 

The design team is looking into alternate funding sources; one option is to use a third party model 
to make the purchase. There is a commitment by the architect to make this a sustainable green 
project. The third party option is not desirable to the library. 

8) Trustee Kupfer asked for more on the compromised sightlines and adjacencies in scheme C. 
Sightline from service desk to adult room is minimally compromised by elevator shaft.  

9) Ms Kupfer asked what the added costs of operation of the 2-story scheme were if any, in 
particular with the literacy program on a separate floor.  Director Corbeil let the board know 
staffing for the literacy program is separate from branch library staff. Other maintenance costs 
could be increased, such as elevator maintenance contracts, etc. There are pluses and minuses 
with having Literacy on a separate floor.  

10) Ms Kupfer asked the architects to discuss the less effective day lighting in scheme C.  

Ms Wallis explained the problem was constraint on sides, code does not allow windows on the lot 
line due to fire rating restrictions, so very little lighting coming in from the side. Second floor 
removes possibility for skylights in the area below the second floor (only). Architects believe they 
can mitigate this for the most part, some zones more challenging than others. Atrium walls will 
have glazing up high to bring in daylight. Staff workroom would be impacted the most, could use 
“light tubes” to bring in daylight to this area. 

11) Ms Kupfer asked if the exterior materials are the same for all schemes. 

Ms Wallis acknowledged decisions not made yet. On Scheme A would have cement plaster 
(stucco) on the historic building. The architects have not pursued materials for the other schemes. 
Mr. Dean added that he expects the sides will not be as visible to public. (west side visible until 
development occurs on the property on that side.)so we could use less expensive materials on 
sides and more expensive materials on street side. It is a budget item only at this point. 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 6, 2010   Page 6 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

12) Mr. Burton asked if a roof top terrace could be created outside in Scheme C with tables and 
chairs and could we plan now for an addition to the second floor later.  

Ms Wallis said that it would be possible, not advisable in rear due to neighbors. It is possible to 
engineer for future expansion but we would want to plan for expansion now as it could affect day 
lighting inside and PV placement. Full ADA access would be needed. 

Mr. Roberts (landscape designer for the project) added that the comment earlier about bicycle 
access / parking should be addressed early especially on the schemes with constrained sites. 

I. AGENDA BUILDING 

A. The next regular meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, February 10, 2010 at the South 
Branch Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

 

II. ADJOURNMENT 
R10-011 Moved by Trustee Burton, seconded by Trustee Henry-Golphin, to adjourn the special meeting 

of the board at 1:30 PM. Motion passed unanimously. 

Attachments: 
1) Harley Ellis Devereaux/GreenWorks Studio Presentation on West Branch 

 



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX 

PROJECT GOALS

*   Enhance library services with a 
     convenient, welcoming, safe, secure,   
     and accessible facility, with flexibility
     for the future

*   Provide adequate space to  
     accommodate all library  and literacy 
     programs, including a quiet and 
     comfortable oasis for learning and  
     reading

*   Provide a LEED silver facility (minimum)
     that meets the net zero energy goals
     of the city

*   Create a civic and engaging presence
     on the street that responds to the 
     Oceanview context

Consent III, Item A 
Attachment #1



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX 

Dry-rot and termites in cripple 
wall; cripple wall not salvage-
able; exterior walls require 
seismic strengthening

Door is not original design or 
construction; single-glazed 
window

One of two original 
medallions

West portion of text 'WEST BERKEL' has been 
damaged by construction of addition; East portion 
of text 'EY BRANCH LIBRARY' in good condition

Head, jamb and sill extensions 
required; Fungal infection in 
some areas; Single-glazing

West Branch Library Built: 1923
Berkeley Public Library Addition: 1974 
Existing Building Evaluation Summary Size: 6,230 SF 

Structural
� Provide new concrete footing under walls of original 1923 building 
� Replace wood framing underneath the building where it is missing or damaged by rot 
� Replace perimeter cripple walls with new concrete stem walls 
� Add new plywood shear walls in the crawlspace below the building 
� Install new plywood sheathing on the roof and tie diaphragm into the walls 

HVAC

� The existing system uses three rooftop units that provide both heating and cooling 
� The HVAC units were installed in 1994 and are still functional, although nearing the end of 

their planned useful life; they should be replaced if the scale of work to the rest of the 
building merits it 

� Ductwork needs to be reconfigured in problem areas of the building, and to restore the 
original reading room ceiling 

Mechanical

Plumbing
� Replace all existing plumbing fixtures and water piping 
� Add overflow drains or scuppers to the roof drainage system; replace downspouts 
� Add a wet-pipe fire sprinkler system to the entire building 

Power

� Panels are overloaded and outdated and should be replaced 
� Panels are surrounded by exposed wiring and crammed behind staff desks without legally 

required clearance; the space should be reconfigured to allow construction of a closet 
� Service to building must be replaced and possibly upgraded 

Lighting
� Replace existing lighting fixtures with historically appropriate fixtures, augmented to 

provide adequate lighting for all tasks 
� Install new emergency lighting and illuminated exit signs, required by code 

Electrical

Telecom

� Telephone and data service is in working order 
� Replace with state-of the art telecom systems and wiring in concealed raceways and proper 

telecommunications room 
� Add Cable TV service 

Roofing � The roof itself is in acceptable  condition, but the current roof drainage needs to be 
reworked so that it does not direct water under the building 

Windows
& Doors 

� All original wood-framed windows need to be repaired where possible, otherwise replaced 
in kind, so they are easily operable by the staff 

� Replace all door hardware for accessibility 
� Restore  original entry door  

Architectural

Existing
Finishes

� Remove ceiling in reading room and restore original ceiling and trim 
� Repair and re-paint entire exterior, including repairs to all remaining original wooden trim 
� Provide new, historically appropriate and accessible circulation desk 

ADA
� Recent accessibility upgrades have made much of the public areas accessible, with several 

deficiencies
� Bring all public areas into compliance (shelf spacing, etc.) 
� Staff areas are much too crowded for legal accessibility; staff restroom is not accessible 

Hazardous Materials 
� There is asbestos in the existing vinyl floor tile, drywall and taping mud, roofing mastics 

and pipe insulation 
� Existing exterior paint contains lead, particularly at the trim 

Pest Damage 
� There is termite damage and fungus infection in the wood framing under the original part 

of the building 
� There may be fungus infection in  some of the original wooden wall framing 
� There is fungus damage in the wooden trim at doors and windows 

Historic Character 

� The original building was built in 1923; the additions date from1974.   
� Very little remains of the original building, and what does remain is invisible from the street 

and only slightly apparent in the building interior 
� Restoration of the building’s historic character would require removal of the additions and 

re-creating, from drawings and photographs, the removed windows and other historic 
features.

� The reading room could be restored by removing the ceiling and rebuilding the original 
skylight, copying the original light fixtures, and reinstalling built-in wooden bookcases at 
the perimeter of the room 

Major Program Needs 
� Adequate space for the adult literacy program allowing for private tutoring sessions, group 

study, and program expansion 
� Adequate multi-purpose meeting room space to best meet the programming needs of a 

diverse multi-cultural community 

Key

Good working condition

Working condition, but should be 
repaired or replaced

Need immediate repair or replacement

���������	
��������	�������

Consent III, Item A 
Attachment #1



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEME                               A     
REHABILITATION                   

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX Total Area:  9,869 GSF

TWO-STORY                               

FIRST FLOOR PLAN                               SECOND FLOOR PLAN                               

PROS:
Rebuilds 1923 Building
Large Entry Courtyard

CONS:
Relocates and Lowers 1923 Building
Major Reconstruction Required
1923 Main Entry Closed Off
Inefficient Floor Plan
Book Drop Detached from Returns
Less Effective Daylighting
Less Roof Area for Photovoltaics
Three Redwood Trees Removed BUILDING SECTION                               

Consent III, Item A 
Attachment #1



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEMES                             B 
NEW CONSTRUCTION  

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX Total Area:  8,660 GSF

ONE-STORY                               

PROS:
Civic Presence
Engagement with Street
Connection w/ Oceanview Context
Spacious Atmosphere
Good Circulation Flow
Ease of Use of Single-Story
Efficient Plan w/ Good Adjacencies
Plentiful Daylight
View of Redwood Trees
Adequate Area for Photovoltaics
Good Natural Ventilation

CONS:
Removes 1923 Building
Minimal Outdoor Space

FIRST FLOOR PLAN                               

BUILDING SECTION                               

Consent III, Item A 
Attachment #1



THE WEST BRANCH LIBRARY 

DESIGN SCHEME                               C             
NEW CONSTRUCTION   

HARLEY ELLIS DEVEREAUX Total Area:  9,272 GSF

TWO-STORY                               
PROS:
Civic Presence, Engagement with Street
Connection w/ Oceanview Context
Spacious Atmosphere, Good Circulation Flow
View of Redwood Trees
Adequate Area for Photovoltaics
Generous Outdoor Spaces 

CONS:
Sightlines & Adjacencies Compro-
mised by Vertical Circulation
Less Effective Daylighting

FIRST FLOOR PLAN                               SECOND FLOOR PLAN                               

BUILDING SECTION                               

Consent III, Item A 
Attachment #1



 



 
Berkeley Public Library 

Board of Library Trustees 
 
Regular Meeting MINUTES South Branch * 
February 10, 2010 6:30 p.m. 1901 Russell Street 
  

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Consent III, Item B 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

 The regular meeting of February 10, 2010 was called to order by Chair Kupfer at 7:08 PM. 

 Present:   Trustees Winston Burton, Abigail Franklin, Susan Kupfer and Darryl Moore. 

Absent:   Carolyn Henry-Golphin. 

 Also present: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Doug Smith, Deputy Director; Suzanne 
Olawski, Neighborhood Services Manager; Dennis Dang, Library Admin Manager; 
Alan Bern, Library Special Services Coordinator;  

Field Paoli – Avery Moore, AIA; Mark Schatz, AIA 

Gould Evans Baum Thornley – Douglas Thornley, AIA 

Harley Ellis Deveraux / Greenworks Studio – Edward Dean, AIA 

Rene Cardinaux, Consultant; Steve Dewan, Project Manager, Kitchell CEM 

B. Public Comments –  

1. Reed Schmidt, Berkeley Public Library Foundation – Thanked the Trustees and City of Berkeley 
for allowing use of the library for the Eighth Annual Author’s Dinner. Several Board Members 
have left, have selected some new ones and they are recruiting additional Board Members. Will 
have a session on fund raising. 

2. Jerry Long – Berkeley Public Library Foundation – Article and photos from the Author’s Dinner 
can be found at www.SFgate.com under Ms. Bigelow’s Social City Column. 

3. Trustee Burton - 4x2 committee - Who will attend for the Foundation? To be decided at next 
Foundation Board meeting. 

4. Trustee Burton asked for clarification that the Foundation would recruit a BOLT member for each 
Branch fundraising committee. 

5. Trustee Moore – Author’s Dinner was great, food was excellent and authors were wonderful. 
Thanked Foundation for all the work to make it happen. 

C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues – none. 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees – none. 

E. Approval of Agenda 
R10-012 Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Trustee Burton to approve the agenda as presented 

Motion passed unanimously. 

II. WORKSHOP SESSION ON MEASURE FF BRANCH LIBRARY UPDATE 

A. Presentation by Field Paoli Architects on the Schematic Design Phase; and Staff Report on 
the Process, Community Input and Next Steps. 

Ms. Moore reviewed Primary Facility Improvement Goals-Bond Funding, What We’ve Heard So Far & 
New Design Highlights (Attachment #A.)  

Facility improvement goals. New or expanded library at the existing site. Meet all current code. 
Consolidated, enclosed Tool Lending Library (TLL) with workspace for staff. Full accessibility. 
Improved lighting, ventilation, thermal comfort. Reduced energy and water consumption. A warm and 
welcoming design. Build green, LEED silver or better. 

http://www.sfgate.com/


Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 10, 2010   Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Process to date: Programming needs addressed by staff and library consultant Kathy Page. Concept 
design phase looked at options to renovate all or part of the existing building and to replace it with 
new. Two community meetings held with lots of great feedback that was incorporated into the project. 
Meetings with LPC sub-committee to discuss the options.  BOLT meeting with public comments 
where the trustees directed the architects to focus on an all-new building. Schematic phase included 
an additional community meeting that was well attended and great comments that have been taken 
into consideration. Meetings with staff and full LPC.  

New design highlights which address community comments. Importance of creating a civic presence 
to make the library a beacon for the neighborhood. Provide more seating. Provide more computers. 
Designated Teen space. Better organized an enlarged Tool Lending Library. Retain landscaped 
areas around building and preserve tree on Russell Street. 

Proposed Site Floor Plan – Mr. Schatz presented the proposed Site/Floor Plan (Attachment #B). The 
proposed building will have a strong presence on the site with an entry at the corner of Russell Street 
and Martin Luther King Jr. Way. There will be views into the multi-purpose room and children’s room 
from the street. A curved wall at the corner of Russell Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way will 
provide a dramatic welcoming to the site. One main block will house library functions (adult, teens, 
children’s, tool lending library and staff work area); a second block will house the multi-purpose room, 
storage and restrooms. The two blocks are separated by an lobby and entry zone and topped by a 
high roof with glass on all four sides to bring light into the inside of the building. Tall day lit central 
area will house the browsing collection, staff desks and self checks, popular materials and laptop 
computer bar 

Mr. Schatz reviewed the Program Summary Chart (Attachment #C) More seating (at tables, soft 
lounge chairs throughout, stools in kids room, study carrels in adults, tables and chairs in the multi-
purpose room and small group study room.) More public computers including laptops to be checked 
out. More variety of shelving. 

Tool Lending Library (TLL) Will be a much larger, single enclosed space. The front area will house 
large tools, smaller tools will be located behind the service counter. The work room will include a 
large work bench for repairs, a machine room for the air pump, staff desk and storage units. A 
separate storage unit off the driveway will store ladders.  Architects have worked with staff and Rene 
Cardinaux to document what is in the TLL and decide how to house all of it. 

Small Group Study Room - A small group study room will be located off the teen room. 

Primary Elevations – Ms. Moore reviewed primary elevations (Attachment #D.) Along Russell Street 
there will be a large window along children’s room, smaller windows in the corner and staff areas, a 
wide entry way (10-12 feet wide) with an eyebrow canopy above. There will be large sized window in 
the Adult reading area directly across from the one in the children’s area.) Along Martin Luther King 
there will be windows into multi-purpose room, driveway and parking spaces in front of TLL. 

Exterior Material – Ms Moore reviewed Exterior Material Studies (Attachment #E.) Material to be used 
is predominantly wood. High roof area glazing will be clear on north side, possibly screened on south 
side. Other options include different species of wood and stone. Still looking at options but aiming for 
warmth, solidity and durability with a natural feel. There will be a great amount of daylight in the 
central area and a possibility for using stained glass on the high roof window that faces the Thai 
Temple.  

Mr. Schatz reviewed computer simulations (Attachment #F) of the exterior and reported that they 
have started to work on interior simulations as well. He also provided examples of Inspirations 
(Attachment #G) showing examples of other projects that use similar design elements.  

Landscaping – Chuck McCullough reviewed the Landscape Concept Plan (Attachment #H) includes 
low planting near entry area to allow for easy to maintain views into the building. Accent tree at other 
end of entrance access near TLL. Zen Garden outside of computer bar area. Secured Patio in 
Northeast corner off the adult area. Minimal space for plantings along MLK. 2 trees will stay on MLK. 
One tree on Russell Street stays. The oak tree on temple property will need to be evaluated. 
Eucalyptus trees to be removed. 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 10, 2010   Page 3 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Mr. Schatz provided some samples of wood siding, stone.   

Schematic cost estimate of $4.2 million is within the budget but does not include rooftop solar panels. 
Estimate $220,000 for solar panels. Looking for ways to reduce costs. Also looking for funding 
options. 

Multi-purpose room could be accessible after hours. Will place some sort of door to close off the 
multi-purpose room and restroom block from the library block. 

Public Comment: 

Bob Patterson – Requested access to electrical outlets for laptop computers. Wireless data access. 
Electrical outlets throughout the library. Will also have loaner laptops available. 

Chia Hamilton – Will the driveway or walkways be permeable? Driveway will be permeable if the 
ground underneath is not too compacted. Walkways probably will drain into the planters on either 
side. 

Alan Tong – Are there enough windows in the Adult Reading Room to let in daylight. Since the wall is 
so close to the property line, there is a limit to the number of windows per fire code. Plan to use as 
many as will be allowed. 

Hale Zukas – What is life cycle of wood siding? Haven’t explored it yet. There are many examples of 
stained wood exteriors in Berkeley. Will need to consider maintenance costs for re-staining. 

Alejandra Nunez – Will seating area close to windows in children’s area have little nooks for kids to sit 
in and read. The intention is to have big comfy chairs where kids can sit in parent’s laps. Stools for 
small kids near smaller windows, easy for kids to pick up and move around. 

Charles Austin – Appreciates the exhaustive process that has occurred. Encourage trustees to 
approve and get on with building it. Wish we could start construction immediately but there is a 
process to go through first.  EIR process will likely take 6 months to a year. 

Chia Hamilton – What is the plan for the facility while it is closed for construction? Staff is considering 
options. There will probably be two branches closed at a time. There is a cost issue, as Bond funds 
can not be used for temporary space. Library is hoping most patrons will be willing to use other 
branches while their branch is closed.  

 

Board discussion: 

Trustee Franklin – Any safety concerns about the big window in the children’s area? Architects 
believe the more visible the space is the safer it will be. Staff was more concerned about hidden 
spaces. 

Trustee Burton – The plan is very thoughtful, inclusive of people’s concerns. Community has been 
great about providing thoughtful input. 

Trustee Moore – It’s been a great process. Like what I see. It will be a great asset to South Berkeley 
neighborhood. 

Chair Kupfer – We have an enormous opportunity to give the community a great building. 

 

B. Presentation by Gould Evans Baum Thornley Architects on the Schematic Design Phase; and 
Staff Report on the Process, Community Input and Next Steps. 

Director Corbeil provided copies of Meeting Notes (Attachment #I), Audience Comments and Survey 
Responses (Attachment #J) from the February 3, 2010 Community Meeting. 

Doug Thornley introduced team members: Gould Evans Baum Thornley: Lauren MacColl Maass, 
AIA, Project Manager; Bob Gould, FAIA; Karen Gould, Interior Designer.  Gates & Associates: 
Samantha Haimovitch, Landscape Architect. 

Presentation Boards attached (Attachment #K) 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 10, 2010   Page 4 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Conceptual design scheme 3. Dedicated teen space, separate. 

New handicap ramp to meet code.  

New entry/lobby area with one-point service desk moved farther back from entry to reduce crowding. 
Children’s space and staff work space in 1970’s wing. No dedicated multi-purpose room. Flexible 
space in children’s wing can be used for a variety of programs.   

1924 Wing - Treating 1924 wing as if it is a landmarked structure. Old wing will have public computer 
space and soft seating lounge area in one of the fireplace alcoves. Current staff office to be replaced 
with a dedicated teen space with lots of glass so it’s visually connected but contains noise. Adult 
Reading Room in the other fireplace alcove. The original plans showed sliding panel doors. 
Proposing to add glass sliding doors to provide a quiet reading space or a small meeting space (12-
16 people.)  

Samantha Haimovitch reviewed the landscape plans. Brick from old handicapped access ramp will be 
reused to create a seating wall. Sycamore trees at street edge to be retained while the inner 
sycamore trees will be replaced with smaller stature trees. Concrete paving at entrance to be 
replaced with special pavers. More seating nooks and information kiosk along Benvenue. Brick 
planter at original entrance. New signage on Ashby Avenue side. Native planting to enhance and 
reveal architectural features. Need to determine the health of the existing redwood trees on back 
side. Aggregate concrete to be replaced with permeable pavers to allow storm water to remain on 
site. 

Mr. Thornley reported meetings with Landmark Preservation Committee (LPC) sub-committee. An 
informational meeting with the full LPC will be held on March 4, 2010. Three community meetings 
have been held. Community supportive of design and provided valuable feedback on landscaping. 
Will also be meeting with the immediate neighbors.  

LEED Silver Goals - LEED Charette to be held later this month. LEED Silver is going to be a 
challenge for this building. LPC made it little more challenging as they would like to keep original 
single-pane windows in the 1924 wing. Architects are trying to model this in the energy model to see 
if is possible.  

Budget – Cost estimating is underway. There are some elements that weren’t part of the original 
Bond measure directions.  Some of these elements might become optional as we move forward. Goal 
is to satisfy Bond measure requirements. Hoping to have funding to do minor interventions to 
enhance the entry experience. Architects are working on refining the estimates. Budget is 2.9 million. 

Trustee Burton – Solar Panels? Will need to generate power to get LEED points. Will look at including 
solar panels in the project. It’s not currently part of the energy model. 

Trustee Moore – What are the plans for the fireplaces? No finalized plans yet? Possibility to include 
some flame or light feature. 

Public Comment: Director Corbeil reported a community meeting had been held recently and many 
comments were received. 

Board discussion: 

Trustee Moore – What was the public reaction to the outside seating? People spoke to the landscape 
architect after Saturday community meeting and were excited about seat walls and the recycling of 
existing materials. 

Trustee Burton – Is the lounge area for staff or public? It’s a public reading area. 

Trustee Franklin – What is the difference in function for lounge area and adult reading room. They are 
similar in function. Lounge area will be available to all patrons. Adult reading room will be dedicated to 
adults. 

Trustee Franklin – Heavy user of Claremont branch. Excited to hear about plans to open up entry 
area and possible addition of the children’s reading nook. 

Chair Kupfer – Shelving reduction, what are options on future expansion of shelving? 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 10, 2010   Page 5 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Mr. Thornley – It’s been a very ambitious program to meet. Would need to revisit the program needs 
and choices. A lot of the adult books aren’t being used. When the branch is closed for renovation, 
staff will go through and pull books that don’t get used. Children’s collection fits in the new area. 

Director Corbeil reported that when library did community surveys people asked for more seating. It’s 
a very busy library and people are frequently looking for a place to sit. Staff is committed to making 
space work really well. New book displays will make collections more visible. 

Hale Zukas- Dormer/Butterfly roof has very little benefit and is not worth the cost.  

Mr. Thornley – We believe it will make the area more inviting and bring in more natural light. 

Trustee Franklin – Likes the reading nook off the children’s space. This branch is a different scenario 
than the other branches. It looks great. Landscaping looks terrific. 

Seismic upgrade - Will be doing a full seismic upgrade. Currently exploring options of removing 
interior walls to add sheathing. 

Time line - Mr. Dewan reported we expect to go to bid end of 2010 or first of 2011. Why so far in 
future? Still have to go through Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) for Use Permit and variance for 
additional space.  

Next steps - Director Corbeil recommending further work on cost issues. What can we realistically 
accomplish within budget prior to completing design development phase. 

 

C. Review presentation made by Harley Ellis Devereaux/GreenWorks Studio on the Conceptual 
Design Phase; and Staff Report on the Process, Community Input and Next Steps at February 
6, 2010 Special BOLT meeting.  

Draft meeting minutes and community responses from the February 6, 2010 Special Bolt Meeting on 
the West Branch were provided. 

Chair Kupfer summarized the three schemes that were presented. Scheme A retained remnants of 
the original building and added new structure around it. Estimated costs are $800,000 over budget. 
Schemes B & C are all new construction. Scheme B is single story and fills almost all of the site. It fits 
program needs and budget. Scheme C has 2 stories. Literacy program would be located on second 
floor away from rest of library programs. Estimated costs are $200,000 over budget. 

Public Comment: none.  

Board discussion: 

General Discussion of Current Building: 

Chair Kupfer - It’s important to note that there is very little of the original building that remains. This 
should not be construed as a situation where we are abandoning a well-loved, ancient but gorgeous 
building. It has been so touched upon, destroyed and renovated that there is very little left. 

The Board would like to hear more about possible re-use of historic features or a reflection of them in 
new design (i.e. medallion)  

Discussion Regarding the West Branch as a “Gateway to the City” – University Avenue is a major 
thoroughfare. Board members support a new library of stature/grandeur/significance in this location. It 
makes sense to have a new facility that’s sustainable and meets Berkeley’s goals (Net Zero Energy 
as an option.) Important that the Library is not dwarfed by buildings around it – can stand out in a 
block with a lot of tall buildings. 

Budget Concerns – Board members expressed concerns about not exceeding the budget. Trustees 
wish to replace current building with an all new building and give the architects time to come up with a 
new design that fits within our budget.  Trustees want to see a building that is within the budget and 
answers program needs.  



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 10, 2010   Page 6 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Director Corbeil reported we have asked to make an informational presentation to the full LPC on 
March 4. This will be an opportunity for library and architects to talk to them about the process so far, 
what direction the Board is heading and possible design schemes. 

R10-012 Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Trustee Franklin to build an all-new building at the 
West Branch Library site.  Motion passed unanimously. Trustee Henry-Golphin absent. 

Discussion on remaining two schemes. 

Mr. Dean reported it’s very typical at this point to do valued engineering exercises and identify the 
areas that are causing it to be over budget. It’s not unusual to have 5% overage when you do your 
first cost estimates. We can identify where we should look for cost savings. 

General Overview of Each Scheme 

Entry Area - Scheme B has very little room at entry. Scheme C has more. Trustee expressed strong 
desire to make entry more inviting with adequate space for bike parking, strollers, etc.  

Would a hybrid of schemes B and C with a saw tooth roof and mezzanine fit within the budget? 
Desire to bring light into the building (liked saw tooth roof for this reason.)  Valued engineering would 
help us identify if the saw tooth roof would be less expensive than the glass second story.  

Trustee Franklin – Initially liked Scheme B but after some thought likes a B-C hybrid. Scheme B is too 
tight, especially at the entrance area. A hybrid would be a grander presence on University Avenue. 
Really liked the sawtooth roof, it allows for good light. Placing the Literacy Program on a mezzanine 
level could make it more visually connected to the library. 

Chair Kupfer – Also likes Scheme C. We need to have flexibility to have a second level. However, we 
don’t want to start down a road where we are already over budget at the start. Would like to go with a 
2 story scheme, if within the budget. We want civic presence, outdoor space, flexibility. 

Solar Photovoltaic System - Zero Net Energy may actually present cost savings, but the photovoltaic 
system cost are not currently included in the budget. Photovoltaic system could be purchased by 
bond funds but likely will not fit in the budget. Estimated cost is $140,000.00. Mr. Dean provided 
information for Funding Solar Photovoltaic System for the West Branch Library Project (Attachment 
L).  

• Savings by Design could provide $10-15K, but no guarantee. 

• California Solar Initiatives could provide $22K, but no guarantee.  

• Demand- Response Incentive – amount unknown but not expected to be very large if at all. 

• Third-Party Provider agreements (PPA) – City would lease the system and pay the PPA 
instead of PG&E – would use operating budget. 

Director Corbeil expressed concerns about photovoltaic leasing. We have an unknown of long term 
energy cost concerns. We were hopeful that one or two of the projects would have included PV costs. 
Library staff would be responsible for applying for any grants or programs.  

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 
R10-014 Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Franklin, to approve the consent calendar as 

presented.  Motion passed unanimously. Trustee Henry-Golphin absent. 

A. Approve minutes of January 13, 2010 Regular Meeting 
R10-015 Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Franklin, to approve the minutes of the January 13, 

2010 regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees as presented.  Motion passed 
unanimously. Trustee Henry-Golphin absent. 

 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Library Budget Update No discussion. 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
February 10, 2010   Page 7 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

B. Update on the Branch Bond Program No discussion. 

C. February 2010 Monthly Report from Library Director Donna Corbeil No discussion. 

D. Library events: No discussion.  

 

I. AGENDA BUILDING 

A. The next special meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, March 16, 2010 at the South Branch 
Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

• Library Budget (April) 

• Library Director review (March) 

 

II. ADJOURNMENT 
R10-016 Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Franklin, to adjourn the regular meeting of the board at 

9:00 PM. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Attachments: 
A-H Field Paoli Presentation on South Branch 
I-K Gould Evans Baum Thornley Presentation on Claremont Branch 
L Harley Ellis Devereaux/Greenworks Studio Memorandum on Funding Solar Photovoltaic System for the 

West Branch Library Project. 
 



 



B
E

R
K

E
LE

Y
 S

O
U

T
H

 B
R

A
N

C
H

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

PR
IM

A
RY

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 IM
PR

O
V

E
M

E
N

T 
G

O
A

LS
 - 

B
O

N
D

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

N
ew

 la
rg

er
 li

b
ra

ry
 t

ha
t 

co
m

p
ile

s 
w

it
h 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
d

es

La
rg

er
 e

nc
lo

se
d

 T
o

o
ls

 L
en

d
in

g
 L

ib
ra

ry

Fu
lly

 A
cc

es
si

b
le

 F
ac

ili
ty

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 li

g
ht

in
g

, v
en

ti
la

ti
o

n 
an

d
 t

he
rm

al
 c

o
m

fo
rt

R
ed

uc
ed

 e
ne

rg
y 

an
d

 w
at

er
 c

o
ns

um
p

ti
o

n

W
ar

m
 w

el
co

m
in

g
 li

b
ra

ry
 d

es
ig

n

Su
st

ai
na

b
le

 d
es

ig
n 

to
 a

tt
ai

n 
LE

E
D

 s
ilv

er
 c

er
ti

fic
at

io
n 

o
r 

b
et

te
r

• • • • • • •

N
E

W
 D

E
SI

G
N

 H
IG

H
LI

G
H

TS
 N

ew
 c

o
rn

er
 e

nt
ry

 w
it

h 
m

ul
ti

p
ur

p
o

se
 r

o
o

m
  

 
 v

is
ib

le
 f

ro
m

 s
tr

ee
t

 M
o

re
 s

p
ac

io
us

, o
rg

ra
ni

ze
d

 la
yo

ut
 

 
 N

ew
 c

en
tr

al
 b

ro
w

si
ng

 /
 s

el
f 

ch
ec

ko
ut

 N
ew

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 b
ui

ld
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
s

 M
o

re
 lo

un
g

e 
ch

ai
rs

, t
ab

le
s 

an
d

 c
ar

re
ls

  
 

 S
ep

ar
at

e 
no

is
y 

an
d

 q
ui

et
 a

re
as

 W
ir

el
es

s 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
ut

er
s

 D
is

ti
nc

t 
zo

ne
 f

o
r 

ad
ul

ts
, t

ee
ns

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n

 M
o

re
 w

o
rk

 s
p

ac
e 

 L
ar

g
er

 e
nc

lo
se

d
 T

o
o

l L
en

d
in

g
 L

ib
ra

ry

 B
ui

ld
in

g
 p

er
im

et
er

 is
 la

ns
ca

p
ed

 /
  

 
 T

re
e 

p
re

se
rv

ed

• • • • • • • • •

W
H

A
T 

W
E

’V
E

 H
E

A
R

D
 S

O
 F

A
R

C
iv

ic
 P

re
se

nc
e 

o
n 

St
re

et
 N

ei
g

hb
o

rh
o

o
d

 B
ea

co
n

•

B
et

te
r 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 a

ll 
sp

ac
e

•

A
ll 

re
q

ui
re

d
 c

o
d

e 
up

g
ra

d
es

•

M
o

re
 s

ea
ti

ng
•

In
cr

ea
se

d
 T

ec
hn

o
lo

g
y 

/ 
C

o
m

p
ut

er
s

•

Te
en

 S
p

ac
e

•

In
cr

ea
se

d
 a

nd
 Im

p
ro

ve
d

 L
en

d
in

g
 L

ib
ra

ry
•

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
ar

o
un

d
 B

ui
ld

in
g

 /
  

 
P

re
se

rv
e 

M
ap

le
 T

re
e 

o
n 

R
us

se
l S

tr
ee

t
•

B
et

te
r 

o
rg

an
iz

ed
 T

o
o

l L
en

d
in

g
 L

ib
ra

ry
•

Consent III , Item B 
Attachment #A



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY SOUTH BRANCH
02.10.2010

LOUNGE

OFFICE KIDS WC

KIDS 40
' - 

0"
18

' - 
0"

42
' - 

0"
10

' - 
0"

29' - 0"34' - 0"

63' - 0"

STAFF

BOOK SORTING

STORAGE

STAFF WC

LOBBY

ADULTS
I.T.

STUDYTEENS

SMALL TOOLS

LARGE TOOLS

LADDERS

45
' - 

0"

ELEC
DHW
JAN STORAGE

MENS

WOMENS

COMMUNITY
ROOM

58
' - 

0"

MACH

BROWSING

10' - 0"

SITE/FLOOR PLAN

RUSSELL STREET

M
A

R
TI

N
 L

U
TH

E
R

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 W

A
Y

160 328

Consent III , Item B 
Attachment #B



 



B
E

R
K

E
LE

Y
 S

O
U

T
H

 B
R

A
N

C
H

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

E
xi

st
in

g
N

ew
C

ha
ng

e
C

o
m

m
en

t
Se

at
in

g
21

57
+

36
+

 s
to

o
ls

 in
 k

id
s

C
o

m
p

ut
er

s
9

14
+

5
+

12
 o

n 
la

p
to

p
 c

ar
t

Sh
el

vi
ng

 (l
f)

1,
90

7
2,

06
4

+
15

7

Li
b

ra
ry

 A
re

a
5,

40
0

7,
00

0
+

1,
60

0

T
LL

 A
re

a
~

85
0

1,
20

0
+

35
0

PR
O

G
R

A
M

 S
U

M
M

A
RY

Consent III , Item B 
Attachment #C



 



B
E

R
K

E
LE

Y
 S

O
U

T
H

 B
R

A
N

C
H

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

R
U

SS
E

LL
 S

TR
E

E
T 

E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

M
A

RT
IN

 L
U

TH
E

R
 K

IN
G

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #D



 



BERKELEY SOUTH BRANCH LIBRARY

EXTERIOR MATERIAL STUDIES

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #E



 



BERKELEY SOUTH BRANCH LIBRARY

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #F



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY SOUTH BRANCH

INSPIRATIONS

WOOD & GLASS / SHADING

CURVED WOOD WALL

DAYLIT CENTRAL SPACE

VIEWS INTO AN ACTIVE LIBRARY

WOOD SIDING

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #G



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY SOUTH BRANCH

INSPIRATIONS

SUN SHADING

WARM WELCOMING 
MATERIALS

ANGLED ROOF FORMS

LARGE TURNED DOWN WINDOWS

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #G



Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #H



 



Berkeley Public Library – Branch Improvement Program 
Claremont Branch Community Meeting – Schematic Design (Meeting 3) 
February 3, 2010 
6:30-8:00PM / Claremont Branch 
 

1 
 

Attendance:     19 non-library audience members 
Board members:    Abigail Franklin 
Presenting design team members: Douglas Thornley, AIA and Lauren Maass, AIA, - Gould Evans 

Baum Thornley 
      Samantha Haimovitch - Gates & Associates (Landscape) 
Presenting library staff:  Donna Corbeil, Karen Joseph-Smith, Suzanne Olawski 
 
Audience Participation 

Q:  Are the stacks integrated into the children’s flex space?  A: The stacks stop before entering the flex space. 

Q:  Is that on purpose?  A: The flex space area is to accommodate an active schedule of children’s programs 
and will include window seating. R: The Oakland Rockridge Library has both –flex space and stacks. 

Show where (on the plan) the additional SF comes from A: The additional SF is shown in grey areas (along 
southern façade bump out). 

I like the acoustical separation of areas. 

Q:  What about the roofline?  A:  Kick-out areas will be extended under the roof. 

Q:  Is there a sunset date for when funds must be spent?  Are there private funding sources? A: The City has 
sold $10M in bonds (of $26M total), which are being sold in two phases to coincide with schedule. The 
Berkeley Public Library Foundation has undertaken a capital campaign to raise approximately $3M to fund 
furniture, fixtures and equipment for all branch projects which bond funds cannot cover. 

Q:  Will you take advantage of the small (140SF) space off the lobby?  A:  It is cost prohibitive to cover both 
(additional SF along southern façade and lobby space).  We’ll be getting more SF with the current proposed 
bump out (along southern façade) than the Branch Libraries Facilities Master Plan. 

Q:  How much more will it cost to fill in the area?  A:  It’s roughly $500 per SF. R:  $70,000 to fill in nook?  A:  It 
will cost more than that if foundation work is required; additionally, the exterior stair is the only access to the 
basement, which houses the mechanical equipment. 

Since the branch is losing shelving the extra space may help to add some more shelving. 

Q:  Why is there a 28% decrease in shelving? A: The branch must become fully ADA accessible and 
accommodate enlarged restroom facilities per code.  Space also is needed for staff operations, which need to 
be physically separate from the public space to allow them to work more efficiently; additionally, space is 
needed to accommodate the new dedicated teen room, which will be acoustically separate from the rest of the 
service areas.  Site constraints prohibit the facility from expanding, except for a proposed small bump out. 
Since the facility cannot expand, space must be carved out of existing areas.  We heard from the community 
during this process, as well as during the facilities master planning process, that seats and tables for reading 
are mandatory.  We can revisit this and remove seating to make more room for shelving. 

Q:  What about the collections?  A: Branch staff currently is weeding the collections for condition, format and 
turnover –items that have not circulated in several years.  Weeded items may be offered to other branches to 
include in their collections or may be offered to the Friends of the Library.  The Library will continue its inter-
branch delivery and Link+ services.  The redesigned branch will allow for improved functional spaces, including 
more shelving for holds, new browsing shelving that displays and highlights collections, new media shelving, 
less congested lobby space, increased seating and a variety of seating type, and more computers with space 
around them. 

Consent __, Item B 
Attachment #I



Berkeley Public Library – Branch Improvement Program 
Claremont Branch Community Meeting – Schematic Design (Meeting 3) 
February 3, 2010 
6:30-8:00PM / Claremont Branch 
 

2 
 

Q: Why wasn’t the children’s collection reduced in proportion?  A: We’re still looking at the branch collections; 
however, we know that children and their caregivers usually come to the library to browse for books, often 
leaving with armfuls of material while adults usually come for specific titles but may do some casual browsing.  
Adults generally will place holds for desired titles while children will not.  

Q:  Is there a large fence around the proposed back deck?  A:  There is an alarmed gate, which will be used 
as a secondary (emergency) exit.  The property will continue to be fenced. 

Q:  Where are the added computers?  A:  Additional computers will be added to the adults, teens and 
children’s areas. 

Q:  Are all the children’s tables in the flex space?  A:  There also is table seating in the stack space by the 
children’s computers. 

Q:  What type of roof materials will be used?  A: Materials have not been determined yet but the same 
materials will be used on both buildings (historic and addition). 

Q:  Can the mezzanine be used for office space?  A: An elevator would be required.  The space only can be 
used for either storage and/or telecom equipment. 

Q:  Is the basement dry?  A: We still are exploring this. 

Q:  Is there a place for meetings with multimedia?  A:  It is feasible to use the children’s flex space which will 
have multimedia capabilities.  Additionally, there is flexible meeting space planned in the adult area as well, 
accommodating from 16 to 20 participants for branch sponsored programs and events.    

Q:  Is the teen collections in the teen room?  A: Yes. 

Q:  Where are the magazines for adults?  A: Periodicals are located in the lounge area by the fireplace. 

Q: What are those items on the diagonal (in Lobby Services)?  A:  They are material display units which will 
hold best sellers, DVDs, CDs, and new books for adults. 

Q:  What happens with the historic entrance nook?  A:  We’re proposing to glaze it and make it into a reading 
nook and reuse the existing brick to make exterior planters.  We’re trying to grab as much space as possible. 

Q:  Can you see out of the reading nook? A: Yes, it will be glassed-in. 

Q:  Will we get more sidewalk space?  A: No. The footprint will stay the same. 

Q:  Is the traffic flow going to change?  Where are the bike racks? A: Vehicular traffic will not change.  It’s 
proposed that the bike rack stay in the same place as it is now and the rack itself does not need to be 
replaced. 

Q:  What about the (Library) sign (corner of Ashby and Benvenue)?  A:  We have not looked at signage yet. 

There are signs along the street side where I park my bike.  A: The street signs will stay. 

Q:  How are the pavers permeable and where does the water go?  Will it run under our houses? A: There are 
holes in the pervious concrete which allow the rain water to pass through to a layer of gravel where it may be 
stored or permitted to percolate into the underlying soil.  It’s a sustainable design and it will not run off into the 
neighboring properties. 

Q:  What happens to the seating along the front (Benvenue Ave)?  A: The ramp will extend into the existing 
seating area which will need to be relocated.    

Q: Is there seating proposed along Ashby Ave?  A: Yes. Either seat pads or benches are proposed.   

Consent __, Item B 
Attachment #I



Berkeley Public Library – Branch Improvement Program 
Claremont Branch Community Meeting – Schematic Design (Meeting 3) 
February 3, 2010 
6:30-8:00PM / Claremont Branch 
 

3 
 

Q:  Are the single seats (pads) 24” square?  A: Yes. They will be of natural material that will relate to the 
existing landscape. 

Hope we get more benches on Benvenue Ave.  People use the current benches a lot. A:  We’re looking into 
comfortable benches, “soft seating,” which will encourage multiple seating but will discourage sleeping. 

It would be nice to have the library more visible from Ashby Ave. 

Move the landscaping to the Ashby side to allow for more seating out front (on Benvenue Ave). 

I wouldn’t want to sit on the Ashby side because of the busy traffic and exhaust fumes. 

People like to congregate on Benvenue Ave. 

The current Information kiosk (outside the entrance) is unsightly and should be replaced.  Move it to the Ashby 
Ave side.   

The kiosk can be smaller and replaced with something more up-to-date. 

Like the kiosk function –it’s very Berkeley- but want it prettier 

Q: Can the City budget maintain the landscape?  A:  The Library contracts for landscaping services, excluding 
tree maintenance.  The City handles tree pruning. 

Q:  What percentage of the budget goes to the outside landscaping?  A:  A small amount –approximately 
$200,000. We’ll get another cost estimate during the schematic design phase and then will reassess the 
exterior budget. 

Q:  What about the exterior lighting?  A: We’re looking at replacing the luminary and improving exterior lighting. 

We love the redwoods but at least one may be diseased and will need to be removed.  A: We will have the 
trees’ conditions assessed and will keep the healthy redwood. 

Please make sure there is proper handling of rain water from the rear of the building (western façade).  There 
is a stream through my property when it rains as water is not being directed to the street. 

Q: Will the deck be landscaped. A: No. There is not a lot of room. 

Q: The current (front) stairs are brick and slippery, especially when covered with leaves.  Will you do anything 
about the stairs?  A: Yes. The front stairs will be replaced. 

Q:  Do the sycamores have to stay?  A: We’d have to give serious thought to removing mature trees. 

Q:  Will there be solar in the roof?  A: We’re looking into energy generation options.  

  

 

 

Consent __, Item B 
Attachment #I



 



Berkeley Public Library – Branch Improvement Program – Audience Comments and Survey Responses 
Claremont Branch Community Meeting – Schematic Design (Meeting 4) 
February 3, 2010 
6:30-8:00PM / Claremont Branch 
 
Comments 
 Sounds very good; nice presentation and thank you for answering all my questions 
 I hope that the Foundation / private outreach to raise (hopefully) complementary or leveraged money goes 

well [it’s a timing thing –sensitive when to ask for the money and when the critical need is]; I’d be glad to 
lend any sort of hand if folks already embarked on the effort to raise money could use it  

 Any hope of using volunteer labor on planting?  --A huge multiple Eagle Scout community service thing –if 
not more trouble than it’s worth 

 Thank you for your time and energy 
 Bookshelves on rollers on perimeter of flex-room would inspire, function and add to the room tremendously 
 Any thought on refurbishing the original front entry and having that be an entrance? 
 Looks like great changes 
 One concern: storytime is such a small percentage of time when the library is in use.  If the flex children 

space could have some books, families would use that space during programming and in times w/out 
programs. Also, something to keep kids occupied during programs.  Oakland/Rockridge is a good example 
of this. 

 I’m a bit concerned about the 25% reduction in shelving for adults and teens.  It’s important to keep the 
option open for a meeting room large enough to hold neighborhood discussion groups and meetings like 
the one we had tonight. 

 
Surveys 
 
1. What were three things that you heard today about the project that were most memorable? 

Roof still needs to be determined 
Outside plantings sound great and nice displays 
The idea that the “specialty” [not to the exclusion of other things, of course] of the branch will be for 
younger set –adult collection shrinkage makes sense 

 
2. What three issues do you consider most important to the Claremont Branch Library? 

Continued pacific and positive relations among “stakeholders,” staff, patrons, readers, computer users, 
sleepers, WiFi-ers, etc 
Once construction starts, hit it hard and rapid progress 
Figure out the creek issue –why is there a bit of unevenness in perception of where / what it is? 
 

3. What did you like most about the community meeting? 
Good audience and nice overall supportive feel of a big and somewhat disruptive and not dissuasive 
project 
 

4. What did you like least about the community meeting? 
I arrived 20 minutes late 
 

5. Is there anything you would like the project team to know that was not said at the meeting? 
Good luck 
What about having someone videotape digitally –capture the project—“construction” cam 

Consent __, Item B 
Attachment #J



 



EN
TR

Y
AD

UL
TS

TE
EN

S

RE
TU

RN
S

&
SO

RT
IN

G

CH
IL

DR
EN

S

ST
AF

F
W

OR
KR

OO
M

BR
AN

CH
M

GR

BR
EA

K
RO

OM

SE
RV

IC
E

DE
SK

M
EN

W
OM

EN

FA
M

IL
Y

ST
AF

F

PU
BL

IC
CO

M
PU

TE
RS

M
EC

HA
NI

CA
L

SE
RV

ER
RO

OM
ST

OR
AG

E

UP

UP

UP

DN

DN

DN

UP

UP

DN

LO
BB

Y 
SE

RV
IC

ES

CH
AI

R
AN

D
TA

BL
E

ST
OR

AG
E

ST
OR

AG
E

ST
OR

.
SI

NK

A/
V

CL
OS

ET

LO
CK

ER
S

CH
IL

DR
EN

'S
CO

M
PU

TE
RS

NE
W

BO
OK

ST
AC

K,
TY

P.
DR

IN
KI

NG
FO

UN
TA

IN

JA
NI

TO
R BO

OK
DR

OP

CO
PY

CH
EC

K-
OU

T

LA
PT

OP
 B

AR

NE
W

 A
CC

ES
S 

ST
AI

R

AD
UL

T 
RE

AD
IN

G
RO

OM

NE
W

 B
OO

K 
ST

AC
K,

 T
YP

.

NE
W

 B
RI

CK
 P

LA
NT

ER
 T

O
RE

PL
AC

E 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 S

TA
IR

NE
W

 A
CC

ES
S 

ST
AI

R

IN
FO

KI
OS

K

LO
UN

GE

RE
AD

IN
G

NO
OK

EX
IS

TI
NG

 B
OO

KC
AS

E
TO

 R
EM

AI
N,

 T
YP

.

PR
OP

OS
ED

 A
DD

IT
IO

N 
(3

40
 S

F)

NE
W

 W
AL

L

EX
IS

TI
NG

 W
AL

L

BA
SE

M
EN

T 
LE

VE
L

M
EZ

ZA
NI

NE
 L

EV
EL

EL
EC

.
RO

OM

NE
W

 A
CC

ES
S 

ST
AI

R

DNDN

NE
W

 B
RI

CK
 P

LA
NT

ER
 T

O
UP

NE
W

 B
RI

CK
 P

LA
NT

ER
 T

O
RE

PL
AC

E 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 S

TA
IR

UP

G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

Ea
st

 (B
en

ve
nu

e)
 E

le
va

tio
n

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 R

OO
M

 B
AY

AD
DI

TI
ON

 (B
EY

ON
D)

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 E

NT
RY

AN
D 

BO
OK

 D
RO

PS
NE

W
 A

DA
-

CO
M

PL
IA

NT
 R

AM
P

NE
W

 E
NT

RY
 S

TA
IR

NE
W

 D
OR

M
ER

 A
T

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

PROPERTY LINE

NE
W

 T
AL

LE
R

EN
TR

Y 
EL

EM
EN

T 
TO

RE
PL

AC
E 

EX
IS

TI
NG

PROPERTY LINE

NE
W

 B
RI

CK
 P

LA
NT

ER
 T

O
RE

PL
AC

E 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 S

TA
IR

NE
W

 G
LA

SS
 IN

FIL
L 

AT
EX

IS
TI

NG
 O

PE
NI

NG

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 R

OO
M

 B
AY

AD
DI

TI
ON

 (B
EY

ON
D)

PROPERTY LINE

NE
W

 T
AL

LE
R

EN
TR

Y 
EL

EM
EN

T 
TO

RE
PL

AC
E 

EX
IS

TI
NG

NE
W

 W
IN

DO
W

W
AL

L 
AT

 T
EE

NS

N
or

th
 / 

So
ut

h 
Se

ct
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
19

20
s 

W
in

g

Ea
st

 / 
W

es
t S

ec
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
19

70
s 

W
in

g

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

LO
BB

Y 
SE

RV
IC

ES
AD

LT
S

TE
EN

S 
(B

EY
ON

D)
EN

TR
Y

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

(W
 C

IL
DR

EN
S

BE
YO

ND
)

RE
T

RN
S 

 S
OR

TI
NG

NE
W

 D
OR

M
ER

 A
T

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

NE
W

 D
OR

M
ER

 A
T

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

C
IL

DR
EN

S
C

IL
DR

EN
S

NE
W

 E
XI

T 
ST

AI
R

NE
W

 A
DA

-
CO

M
PL

IA
NT

 R
AM

P

BE
NV

EN
E

AS
BY

NE
W

 S
LI

DI
NG

 D
OO

R 
AT

AD
LT

 R
EA

DI
NG

 R
OO

M
NE

W
 E

XI
T

VE
ST

IB
LE

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

So
ut

h 
El

ev
at

io
n

W
es

t E
le

va
tio

n
N

or
th

 (A
sh

by
) E

le
va

tio
n

Ea
st

 (B
en

ve
nu

e)
 E

le
va

tio
n

N
or

th
 E

le
va

tio
n 

(1
97

0s
 W

in
g 

- S
ec

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

En
tr

an
ce

)

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 R

OO
M

 B
AY

AD
DI

TI
ON

 (B
EY

ON
D)

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 E

NT
RY

AN
D 

BO
OK

 D
RO

PS
NE

W
 A

DA
-

CO
M

PL
IA

NT
 R

AM
P

NE
W

 E
NT

RY
 S

TA
IR

NE
W

 D
OR

M
ER

 A
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

PROPERTY LINE

NE
W

 T
AL

LE
R 

EN
TR

Y 
EL

EM
EN

T
TO

 R
EP

LA
CE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G

NE
W

 B
RI

CK
 P

LA
NT

ER
 T

O
RE

PL
AC

E 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 S

TA
IR

NE
W

 G
LA

SS
 IN

FIL
L 

AT
EX

IS
TI

NG
 O

PE
NI

NG

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 R

OO
M

 B
AY

AD
DI

TI
ON

NE
W

 S
TA

FF
 R

OO
M

 B
AY

AD
DI

TI
ON

 (B
EY

ON
D)

NE
W

 D
OR

M
ER

 A
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

NE
W

 D
OR

M
ER

 A
T

SE
RV

IC
E 

DE
SK

NE
W

 A
DA

-
CO

M
PL

IA
NT

 R
AM

P

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

Hi
gh

lig
ht

s

�
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

:
- t

ab
le-

to
p 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
ow

er
 a

t s
om

e 
re

ad
er

 ta
bl

es
- s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t f

or
 L

ib
ra

ry
 la

pt
op

 le
nd

ing
 s

er
vic

e
�

Ne
w 

Ch
ild

re
n's

 F
lex

 S
pa

ce
:

- a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r c

hil
dr

en
's 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ing

- n
ew

 w
in

do
w 

se
at

s
�

Se
rv

ice
 d

es
ks

:
- e

ffi
cie

nt
, e

rg
on

om
ic 

se
lf-

ch
ec

ko
ut

 / 
re

tu
rn

 a
nd

 s
elf

-s
er

vic
e 

re
se

rv
es

�
St

af
f w

or
k 

ar
ea

s:
- p

hy
sic

all
y 

an
d 

ac
ou

st
ica

lly
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 fr
om

 p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

- e
rg

on
om

ica
lly

 s
ou

nd
 fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 e

qu
ipm

en
t

�
Ex

te
rio

r d
ec

k 
at

 th
e 

re
ar

 y
ar

d

Su
m

m
ar

y
Ex

ist
in

g
Ne

w
�

Se
at

ing
61

72
+

11
Co

m
pu

te
rs

11
14

 +
 la

pt
op

 le
nd

in
g

+
3

Sh
elv

in
g 

(L
F)

40
27

28
82

-1
14

5
M

ain
 F

lo
or

 (G
SF

)
69

67
73

07
+

34
0

Ba
se

m
en

t
40

0
40

0
M

ez
za

nin
e

30
0

30
0

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

EN
CE

 A
N

D
 G

AT
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

AV
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E 
RE

PL
AC

ED

D
et

ai
l- 

Re
cy

cl
ed

 b
ric

k 
an

d 
co

nc
re

te
 s

ea
tin

g 
no

ok
s

ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

ED
W

O
O

D
 T

RE
ES

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

 O
R 

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
O

VE
D

 (D
EP

EN
D

IN
G

 O
N

 H
EA

LT
H

, 
TO

 B
E 

D
ET

ER
M

IN
ED

)

LO
W

 N
AT

IV
E 

A
N

D
 D

RO
U

G
H

T 
TO

LE
RA

N
T 

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

RA
M

P 
(U

P)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

RE
ES

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

PR
U

N
E 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 

SY
CA

M
O

RE
S 

TO
 

RE
SH

A
PE

 A
N

D
 

IM
PR

O
VE

 H
EA

LT
H

N
EW

  S
M

A
LL

 D
EC

O
RA

TI
VE

 
TR

EE
S,

 T
O

 R
EP

LA
CE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 

SY
CA

M
O

RE
S 

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
O

VE
D

AG
G

RE
G

AT
E 

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
PA

VI
N

G
 

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
O

VE
D

, R
EP

LA
CE

D
 

W
IT

H
 P

ER
M

EA
BL

E 
PA

VE
RS

B 
E 

N
 V

 E
 N

 U
 E

   
A

 V
 E

 N
 U

 E

A S H B Y    A V E N U E

SA
N

D
BL

A
ST

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
SI

D
EW

A
LK

RE
CY

CL
ED

 B
RI

CK
 A

N
D

 
CO

N
CR

ET
E 

SE
AT

IN
G

 N
O

O
KS

 
(S

EE
 D

ET
A

IL
 A

BO
VE

)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

RE
E 

W
EL

LS
 T

O
 R

EM
A

IN
 A

N
D

 E
D

G
ED

 
W

IT
H

 D
EC

O
RA

TI
VE

 B
A

N
D

IN
GN

EW
 S

EA
T 

W
A

LL
 F

RO
M

 R
EC

YC
LE

D
 

BR
IC

K 
A

N
D

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E

N
EW

 S
EA

T 
W

A
LL

 
FR

O
M

 R
EC

YC
LE

D
 

BR
IC

K 
A

N
D

 
CO

N
CR

ET
E

N
EW

 S
IG

N
AG

E 
FR

O
M

 
RE

CY
CL

ED
 B

RI
CK

 A
N

D
 

CO
N

CR
ET

E,
 IN

 C
O

LO
R 

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

IC
YC

LE
 R

AC
K 

TO
 B

E 
RE

LO
CA

TE
D

N
EW

 D
U

A
L-

ST
RE

A
M

 
W

A
ST

E 
RE

CE
PT

AC
LE

, T
YP

.BI
O

-R
ET

EN
TI

O
N

 A
RE

A
 

W
IT

H
 N

AT
IV

E 
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
S

D
EC

O
RA

TI
VE

 L
O

W
 

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
N

D
 

G
RA

SS
ES

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
 A

RE
A

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 
A

RE
A

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 
A

RE
A

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 
A

RE
A

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 
KI

O
SK

N
EW

 P
LA

N
TE

R 
AT

 
O

RI
G

IN
A

L 
M

A
IN

 
EN

TR
Y

N
AT

IV
E 

D
EC

O
RA

TI
VE

 G
RA

SS
ES

 IN
 

TR
EE

 W
EL

LS
, T

YP
.

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 L

A
M

P 
PO

ST
 T

O
 R

EM
A

IN
, 

LI
G

H
T 

FI
XT

U
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

RE
PL

AC
ED

N
EW

 B
IK

E 
RA

CK

SA
W

CU
T 

A
N

D
 R

EM
O

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 
CO

N
CR

ET
E 

SI
D

EW
A

LK
. R

EP
LA

CE
 

W
IT

H
 N

EW
 D

EC
O

RA
TI

VE
 P

AV
IN

G
 

AT
 E

N
TR

Y 
W

A
LK

T

G
A

U
M

B 95
 b

ra
dy

 s
tre

et
sa

n 
fra

nc
is

co
, C

A 
94

10
3

te
l: 

 4
15

.5
03

.1
41

1
fa

x:
 4

15
.5

03
.1

47
1

H
O

R
N

LE
Y,

 In
c.

T
O

U
LD

VA
N

S
E

Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #K



 



Consent III, Item B 
Attachment #L



 



 Information IV, Item A 

   
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 March 10, 2010 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: MARCH 2010 MONTHLY BRANCH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REPORT 

FROM LIBRARY DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on branch improvement activities and 
updates from the previous month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
SUMMARY OF WORK 
 
During this reporting period the following community meetings were held: 

• February 24th North Branch Schematic Design 
 
The Page + Moris Contract Amendment approved by the board on January 13, 2010 approved 
by council as a consent calendar item on February 23, 2010. 
 
Other meetings held during this reporting period include: 

• Weekly project meetings facilitated by the KCEM project manager, Steve Dewan 
• Meeting with City’s Planning Department and architects as needed 

 
Landmarks Preservation Commission 
Staff and consultants attended the March 4, 2010 LPC meeting, with informational items related 
to the West Branch and North Branch projects: 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=50380. 
 
Library Building Program 
 
During this reporting period the final building programs for each branch project (4) have been 
completed and copies distributed to respective design teams electronically and in paper format; 
branch staff has one master paper copy held at the branch and a file copy is maintained in the 
administrative offices.  
 
 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
March 2010 Monthly Branch Renovation Project Report from Library Director Page 2 

  
COMMUNICATION 
  
Staff held a community focus group of Spanish speakers. This is the final in the series related to 
the bond program (Attachment 1). These efforts have helped to inform the library’s building 
program process by identifying unique library needs among Berkeley’s diverse populations. 
  
 
WORK ANTICIPATED 
 
Landmarks Preservation Commission 
From the discussions at our LPC subcommittee meetings we have asked for the following dates 
to present to the full group: 
 
North Branch Structural Alteration Permit application April 1, 2010 
Claremont Branch informational presentation April 1, 2010 
 
Upcoming Community Meetings 
 
Claremont Branch Design Development Community Meeting, March 31, 2010  
 
 
KEY PROJECT ISSUES 
 
See Informational item on Bookmobile. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Branch Renovation Spanish Speakers Focus Groups Fall 2009  



Attachment 1 
Focus group for Spanish-speaking community 

January 21, 2010 
 

Location: Willard Middle School, during a meeting of the BUSD’s LUNA parents group 
Staff in attendance: Doug Smith, Alan Bern, Angela Gallegos-Castillo (translator) 
Community members present: 23 
 
How many use the Library? About ½. 
Do you have computers at home? Nearly all do. One said she did not have a printer and 
uses the library for printing. Also: use the library computers as back-up to their home 
computers. 
 
Collections: 

• Larger Spanish-language collection  
• Newer titles (current collection too old) 
• Place the language collections in more prominent locations. They are difficult to 

find now. 
• Audiobooks in Spanish 
• Magazines in Spanish, for adults and kids 
• Newspapers in Spanish 
• Subjects: 

o More biographies of famous people from Mexican history, e.g. Hidalgo, 
Juarez, etc. 

o Latin American history 
o Job-seeking 
o Sports 
o Novels 

 
Programming/events: 

• Author appearances by Spanish-speaking authors 
• Children’s programming (e.g. puppet shows) in Spanish 
• Family reading night 
• Classes for youth on how to read a newspaper 
• Spanish language book groups 
• More publicity in Spanish about events, e.g. the BUSD e-tree 
• Workshops at the Tool Library: basic skills for adults and kids. Even willing to 

pay a sliding-scale fee for these. 
 
Services 

• More computers 
• More controls on computers--restrictions for young people, e.g. no access to 

social networking sites 
• Expanded hours—open earlier & close later 
• Spanish language reader’s advisory 



 
Facilities: 

• More parking (@South) 
• Outdoor spaces—a garden or patio, where young people can be 
• Exterior security to prevent vandalism 
• A designated “Quiet Room” 

 



Information IV, Item B 

   
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 March 10, 2010 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 MARCH 2010 MONTHLY REPORT FROM LIBRARY DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on Library activities and updates from 
the previous month.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Annual Report 

The Library has completed the 2009 Annual Report. Alan Bern, Community Relations Librarian 
worked with a graphic designer to complete the layout and design. It was distributed and posting 
on the Library’s website in February 2010. the contents fo this report are drawn from the Board’s 
annual report to council. 

 

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 
 
Douglas Smith, the Library’s Deputy Director attended a professional event at San Francisco 
Public Library featuring a talk by the American Library Association President, Camila Alire 
(Attachment 1).  
 
PLP 
In May 2009, a Joint Powers Agreement was signed to create the Pacific Library Partnership 
(PLP), this is a cooperative between library systems, including Monterey Bay Cooperative 
Library system (MOBAC), Bay Area Library and Information System joint powers agency 
(BALIS) and Silicon Valley Library System joint powers agency (SVLS). Berkeley Public Library 
is a member of BALIS.  An executive committee was formed at this time, and by-laws approved 
by the group. Since this time the staff of the three systems and the executive committee have 
been working on furthering the development and organization of the new collaborative. The firm 
Management Partners Inc. was engaged to lead a strategic planning process with member 
libraries. The Director attended two workshops, February 8th and March 1st, held with 
representatives from all member libraries at the San Jose Public Library. At the annual PLP 
members meeting planned for May 14, 2010 the final plan will be voted on by members.  



PROGRAMS, SERVICES AND COLLECTIONS 
 
Public Programs 
  
The Art and Music section of the Central Library sponsored two well-attended noon concerts in 
February. On Feb. 11th, Berkeley Opera's Artistic Director, Mark Streshinsky, and cast 
members present highlights from the company's upcoming production of Mozart's masterpiece, 
Don Giovanni. On the 18th, Baritone Autris Paige in an account of the journey from slavery to 
freedom as told through African-American spirituals. 
  
The Alameda County Small Business Development Center led another well-attended workshop 
at the Central Library on March 2nd, attracting forty-five local business owners for a talk on 
Retailing Basics for Entrepreneurs. This is the eighth workshop in the series offered by the 
SBDC. The topics in this series were chosen by the SBDC, our Business Librarian, Tom Dufour 
and the City of Berkeley Office of Economic Development as those most relevant for local 
business owners. This series is an example of how the Library is responding to the economic 
needs of many who are exploring entrepreneurship during the current recession. 
 
 
PERSONNEL 
 
Labor Relations 
The Director attended an all day City of Berkeley Labor Management Retreat scheduled for day 
Friday, February 5, 2010.  
 
BOLT 
 
As approved by the board the staff has set-up a BOLT email address to receive 
correspondences. Also, as instructed by the City clerk’s office, new language was added to all 
commission agenda templates and other documents posted for the public concerning board 
activities.  The language describes that communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or 
committees are public record and that e-mail addresses, names, addresses and other contact 
information, if provided, also become part of the public record.  This is not a change to City 
policy, rather the goal of language is to provide clarification to the public that communications 
are in fact public information and are not redacted. 
New statement: 

Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and 
will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s 
website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, 
commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want 
your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant 
board, commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please 
contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee for further 
information. 

 
 
FACILITIES 
 
Self check RFP Update 
The request for proposals was posted on the city’s website on 2/08, as noted it closes March 
18th: 

    

 



10-10501.pdf  Self-Check Materials Security & Automated Materials Handling 
Systems 

  Exhibit A - Sample of Professional Services Contract   
  Exhibit B - Sample of Personal Services Contract   

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Report by Doug Smith, Deputy Director 2/19/10 professional lecture 
2. CALTAC workshop summary

 



 



 
Attachment 1 

 
On Feb. 19, I attended a talk by American Library Association president Camila Alire at the San Francisco 
Public Library's Main Library entitled The New Normal for Libraries? Leading During Changing and 
Challenging Times. The presentation was a portion of SFPL's Leadership Academy to which members of 
the Bay Area library community were invited to participate. Ms. Alire is Dean Emerita at the University of 
New Mexico and Colorado State University, and is the first Latina president of ALA. Hispanic Business 
magazine has named her as one of the 100 most influential Hispanics in the US. 
  
Her talk was an interesting general summary of what she views as the prime trends and challenges facing 
libraries in the current economy, and how library staff--both managerial and frontline staff--can deal with 
the opportunities and responsibilities brought on by a "new normal" context libraries find themselves in 
during the current economic recession. 
  
These are the major trends she outlined, all of which are relevant for the Berkeley Public Library and the 
Berkeley community: 
  
1) Socio-demographic trends affecting libraries 

• The expectations of "Generation Y" regarding the availability of technology in their lives: the 
ubiquity of mobile devices and electronic media as an organic part of the lives of people has 
tremendous implications on how libraries are staffed, operated, and designed. As we all know 
these expectations are vastly different from those of previous generations.  

• Rising life expectancy: while libraries are responding to the needs of younger people, they are still 
needing to serve our elders, who frequently have more traditional notions of what library services 
should look like. These competing needs also have an impact on decisions libraries must make 
about service design and the allocation of resources.  

• The retirement/unretirement of the boomer generation: this phenomenon is affecting libraries 
internally, in that library staff retirements are being deferred due to the present economic 
conditions and postponing the generational change within the profession that many had been 
anticipating. There are fewer professional jobs available for new MLS graduates, making the 
ascent up career ladders a more complicated and slow process than in previous eras.  

• The increasing economic and political impacts of diversity and immigration upon our society: 
Libraries must reach the underserved groups in our communities. The core mission of public 
libraries is to help develop an informed society--the presence of a large underserved populations 
within our service areas is a disservice to our communities. 

2) Tech trends affecting library services 

• The Internet continues to transform government and business operations as well as the "service 
arena", which would include libraries.  

• The explosion of social media has created a challenge for all organizations and businesses to 
stay near the leading edge of this area of culture, particularly with the quickly evolving array of 
mobile devices available and the opportunities they offer for library-sponsored media such as 
blogs, wikis, RSS feeds, and Facebook pages.  

• To this I would add the changing formats which communities expect libraries to offer information 
and library collections in. Libraries have long struggled to anticipate and meet those needs, and 
wrestled with difficult resource allocation choices resulting from these changes.  

3) Economic trends 

• Of course, many factors in the current economy are having a direct impact on libraries: the 
growing risks and uncertainty in financial markets, rising US personal and federal  debt, and  
declining personal income all affect public-supported institutions. Education levels are falling 
behind employer expectations, leading many towards their public libraries to seek out educational 
opportunities. And, changing patterns of wealth and savings are being felt by friends groups, 
library donors, and at the voting booth when library tax measures come up. 

 



Ms. Alire also addressed what she sees as the principal challenges facing libraries in the "new normal"--
the good, bad and the ugly: 
  
1) The good: Nationwide, public library usage is increasing during the economic downturn. In the 
comparatively mild recession of 1999-2000, libraries saw an increase of 8.3%; during the current 
recession some libraries are seeing increases of over 25% in circulation, visits, and program attendance. 
Libraries have been extremely nimble in responding to this challenge, designing new services and 
programs and securing funding to support them. 
  
2) The bad: this terrible downturn affects all libraries. Nationally there has been a 3.6% decrease in 
property tax revenues, alongside similar decreases in sales and income tax receipts as well.  
  
3) The ugly: "When the trough goes dry, the horses start biting"--the need of individual municipal services 
to share declining resources has increased internecine competition, often with public safety departments 
winning out, and underlining the need for library advocates to broadcast widely the message of libraries 
indispensability.  
  
She asked: what exactly is the "new normal" for libraries? The economy presents enormous challenges 
now, and even after we turn it back around again, as a nation we won't be back where we were before the 
crash began. When the funding pie gets smaller, library managers must make difficult decisions about 
cost-saving reductions while trying to meet increasing demands from users. 
  
So, how can libraries deal with this "new normal"? Identify common goals and work toward them. The 
most fundamental of these is to provide the best services t your specific community of users. Managers 
must work with staff to change expectations of what is possible under the present straitened conditions, 
and to do so with trust and respect. She greatly emphasized the importance of emotional intelligence in 
library leaders at a time like this, to identify goals with a clear vision and empathy, and to use those skills 
to motivate staff when they may feel least motivated. Lines of communication must be kept open so 
library staff feel free to share ideas and managers aren't making crucial decisions in a vacuum. Staff 
should be encouraged to think creatively, to seek out new opportunities to learn, and new ways of doing 
things within the context of innovative service plans for their library. 
Report prepared by Doug Smith

 



 

  
 Attachment 2 

  
CALTAC Workshops (Summary by Richard K. Moore,  
Huntington Beach, CA) 
  
Seventy library supporters turned out in Berkeley on February 27 for the first of two CALTAC 
Spring Workshops. 
  
With greetings from Senator Loni Hancock, City Councilman Gordon Wozniak, and Library 
Director Donna Corbeil, we were quickly under way and highlighting the aspects of library 
construction and renovation that brought communities together in common cause. 
  
CALTAC Past President Alan Smith introduced the panel, which included: 
Therese Powell, co-chair of 2008 Berkeley Library Campaign; 
Evette Davis, Campaign Consultant; 
Anne Grodin, former Lafayette Mayor and community volunteer; 
Jewelle Gomez, San Francisco Public Library Commission President, Director of Grants & 
Community Initiatives, Horizons Foundation. 
  
Each panelist spoke to the efforts, which enabled each of their communities to renovate and 
expand services. Each had advice for replicating success in every community. 
  
Deborah Doyle structured a discussion period after the panel that enabled participants to focus 
on where they were and what they hoped to accomplish. Sharing their thoughts brought the best 
ideas of all to the entire group. 
 



 



advertisement | your ad here

home of the

Subscribe to the weekend Chronicle

Sign In | Register

Movies Mus c & Nightlife Performance Art Events Books TV & Rad o Horoscope Comics Games Things To Do

IMAGES

 View Larger Images

  SFGate Web Search by YAHOO! |  Advanced Search

A little bird told Huffington about WildCare
Catherine Bigelow
Wednesday, February 10, 2010

PRINT E-MAIL COMMENTS (0)

Born free: Like the (current) business models of Twitter and the Huffington Post, so,
too, are wild animals free.

But that's not why Arianna Huffington emceed the
WildCare gala on Friday at the Mill Valley Community
Center.

The Huff-Po editrix learned of the San Rafael
organization from a pal, Twitter co-founder Biz
Stone, whose wife, Livia Stone, manages WildCare's

hospital.

"In our country, in our world, there is nothing we need more than empathy," said
Huffington during the sold-out dinner that, wisely, starred a vegetarian McCall
Associates feast.

"The work of WildCare might start with a hummingbird," Huffington continued. "But
that empathy spreads out around the globe."

WildCare treats more than 4,000 ill, injured and orphaned wild animals and provides
nature education.

The gala was ably organized by Susanne Lyons and Cindy Testa-McCullagh
(another Huffington pal) and raised $200K toward a new WildCare facility.

Huffington was thrilled to be surrounded by the majestic beauty of nature. Especially as
she was just back from the World Economic Summit in Davos, Switzerland.

"Most everyone had a knot in the pit of their stomachs," said Huffington, describing the
mood of attendees, leaders we'd assume had the world's problems sorted out. "There's a
sense of waiting for the other shoe to drop. So thank God we have these wild animals in
our world."

Making book: Bibliophiles and belletrists filled the stacks Saturday at the Berkeley
Central Library for Roots and Branches: The Eighth Annual Authors Dinner.

The sold-out gala featured 30 renowned scribes (Charlie Haas, Tamim Ansary,
Katie Hafner, Daniel Mason, Frances Dinkelspiel) and benefited infrastructure
needs at soon-to-be renovated branches.

Chairwoman Linda Schacht Gage was supported in her writer-wrangling efforts by
author and honoree Michael Lewis. And emcee Bill Schechner delighted the crowd
in introducing himself as the numbers on his library card.

But the root of the evening belonged to Pat Cody and Heyday Books' Malcolm
Margolin, who was honored with the Fred & Pat Cody Award.

SHARE FONT | SIZE:

 
 

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #A 
www.sfgate.com 02/10/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



Pat and her late husband, Fred Cody, founded the now late (and lamented) Cody's
Books. When it opened in 1956, Cody's instantly became a hive of community action and
a pioneer among independent booksellers.

"The foundation thinks I'm going to talk about how great public libraries are," joked
Margolin. "Actually I'm going to talk about Fred Cody, my dear friend and inspiration."

Margolin recalled meeting the Codys in 1974 when he arrived at their store with a stack
of his self-published book.

"Fred threw his arm around me, took 20 copies and put them at the register for sale,"
explained Margolin. "And I thought to myself, 'Isn't publishing great?' "

British Invasion: At Thursday's kickoff for the Mostly British Film Festival at Thomas
Pink, guests gamely ogled the British haberdashery's colorful textiles.

The drizzly, veddy London-like weather, however, had folks wishing for a particular
item of clothing: rain slickers.

Atmospherics aside, nothing could dampen the enthusiasm for this indie flick-fest,
which closes Thursday at the Vogue Theatre.

"The film 'London River' is most provocative," said British Consul General Julian
Evans. "This festival expertly mixes films and genres to express a common spirit of
cultural exchange."

Dreamed up by S.F. Giants execs Alfonso Felder and Jack Bair, the festival benefits
the San Francisco Neighborhood Theater Foundation, which was also founded by this
dynamic duo in order to save the old Vogue on Sacramento Street.

"We decided to create a foreign film festival," said Bair, laughing, "that didn't need
subtitles."

Chronicle society correspondent Catherine Bigelow's columns appear Wednesday in
Datebook, Sunday in Style and at SFGate.com. E-mail her at missbigelow@sfgate.com.

This article appeared on page E - 2 of the San Francisco Chronicle

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #A 
www.sfgate.com 02/10/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



advertisement | your ad here

home of the

Subscribe to the weekend Chronicle

Sign In | Register

Is boredom deadly? Poop: Parenting afflictions Poodle's dental work Power Rankings! First lady's campaign Winter Olympics page

Author Dashka Slater, Heyday Books publisher and honoree Malcolm
Margolin and Lee Swenson

« Arianna Huffington &... | Main

Book 'em: Berkeley Public Library Authors' Dinner

Love. Tragedy. History. War. Religion. Science. Poetry. Philosophy. Apocalypse. Comedy. Even
math; if you want it.

All this, and more, can always be found within the stacks of your local public library.

And like those stacks, there was a topic to suit every guest Saturday at the 8th Annual Authors'
Dinner in the Berkeley Central Library where 30 renown authors were honored at this fun-raising
event.

All photos by Catherine Bigelow

The colorful stacks in the historic Reading Room of the Berkeley Central Library

Leading the charge was Heyday Books founder-publisher Malcolm Margolin who received the Fred
and Pat Cody Award which honors people and institutions that support authors, books and literacy.

"It's such a pleasure to be given an
award by people who actually
know you," joked Margolin of Pat
Cody and her late husband, Fred
Cody, who founded the
much-vaunted, and much missed,
Berkeley-based Cody's Books in
1956.

More »

Miss Bigelow's Social City
Contact
Follow on Twitter

 

You won't believe what happened last night.
By Catherine Bigelow, Read Bio

advertisement | your ad here

RECENT ENTRIES
Book 'em: Berkeley Public Library Authors' Dinner
Arianna Huffington & Twitter's Biz Stone Give a
Hoot for Wildlife
British Invasion: The Mostly British Fi m Festival
A Little Bird Told Me: Twitter Tidbits
Rawwr: Enter the Year of the Tiger
Hot Tickets & Exhibitions!
A Little Bird Told Me: Twitter Tidbits
iPads vs. Condoms? There's an App for That
A Little Bird Told Me: Twitter Tidbits
Helgi Tomasson's silver lining at the SF Ballet
opening-night Gala

CATEGORIES
ACT (1)
Asian Art Museum (1)
Berkeley Public Library (1)
Charlotte Shultz (1)
design (2)
Fine Arts Museums (2)
Fundraisers (6)
Le Central (1)
Local authors (1)
Lunchin' Ladies (1)
New Year's Day (1)
North Beach (1)
Parties (7)
Project Inform (1)
SF Ballet (1)
SF Neighborhood Theater Foundation (1)
SFMOMA (2)
Twitter Tidbits (4)
WildCare (1)

ARCHIVES

  SFGate Web Search by YAHOO! |  Advanced Search

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment # B 
www.sfgate.com 02/10/2010



 



Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #C 
The Globe 02/10-16/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



 



Friday, February 19, 2010 | 3:27 pm

                                                                 

ADD WWW.DAILYCAL.ORG TO BOOKMARKS
SIGN UP FOR:  MOBILE |  RSS FEED

 Search
Advanced Search

Related Articles »

Some Services See Increased Usage Due to
Economic Recession - Tue, Aug 25, 2009

Library Granted Exception to City's
Nuclear-Free Ordinance - Thu, Jan 29, 2009

Council Holds Vote on Allowing Library an
Exception to Nuclear Ordinance - Wed, Jan
28, 2009

 Printer Friendly

 Comments (0)

 Email/Share

City's Public Library Branches Face Renovations

EDDIE ROSENBAUM/PHOTO
The Board of Library Trustees held a forum Wednesday at the Berkeley Public Library's South Branch to discuss renovating the branches to make them
safer and more accessible.

By MICHAEL PEARLSON
CONTRIBUTING WRITER
Thursday, February 11, 2010
Category: News > Development and Capital Projects

Correction Appended

The Berkeley Public Library held its last
meeting in a series of community forums
Wednesday to hear public input regarding the renovation and
reconstruction of its four branches, slated to begin in early
2011.

Architects revealed their plans for the renovations, which will include making the libraries more earthquake-safe and
handicap-accessible as well as refurbishing historical features.

Residents at the meeting gave feedback and input as to what results they would like to see.

"This is the first time in the history of the Berkeley Public Library that all branches will be simultaneously renovated
to be made both seismically safe and accessible as well as brought up to current code," said Community Relations
Librarian Alan Bern.

The total cost for the renovation of all branches is estimated at $26,015,875, according to evaluations by
Berkeley-based architecture firm Noll & Tam Architects.

The structural renovations were paid for by the passage of Measure FF in November 2008, which increases property
taxes over 30 years and provides $26 million in general obligation bonds for library improvements.

Daily Cal Job Board

Operations Engineer
Admeta
Director Business
Development Germany
Admeta
Product Analyst - Unique
Content
Kosmix
Member of Technical
Staff - Data Analytics
Platform
Kosmix
Release Engineer
Kosmix

Daily Cal Job Board>>

ABOUT NEWS SPORTS ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT OPINION BLOGS MULTIMEDIA

Recent:

To:

City's Public Library Branches Face Renovations - The Daily Californian http://www.dailycal.org/article/108197/city_s_public_library_branches_...

1 of 2 2/19/2010 3:34 PM

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #D 
Daily Cal 02/11/2010



Leave a comment

Echo 0 Items Admin

Social Networking by

Development and Capital Projects
New Downtown
YMCA Will Be
Geared Toward
Teens
A new YMCA is slated to open
in Downtown Berkeley this fall,
the first...Read More»

The measure passed with 68 percent of the vote, barely
surpassing the two-thirds majority needed.

The cost of the property tax used to pay for the bonds varies with
the assessed value of a person's home. The estimated cost to
homeowners would average $27 per year over the 30-year life of
the bond, or two cents per $100 of a home's assessed value,
according to the library's Web site.

"We have one of the best bond ratings so there is no danger that
we are going to default on our bonds," said Councilmember
Gordon Wozniak, whose district includes the Claremont Branch.

Before the measure was passed, Noll & Tam evaluated the state
of the library and prescribed renovations. The evaluation found
that the buildings needed renovations in the wiring, plumbing

and ventilation systems, and that in the event of a major earthquake, the buildings would experience a
disproportionate amount of damage.

The West Branch would have its original 1923 facade and interior historic details restored. It would also be
restructured to add space, including a study room for the literacy program.

Other branches would also receive additional space. The South Branch, for example, would be replaced by an entirely
new structure with about 3,000 additional square feet of space.

"This a tremendously exciting time for the Berkeley Public Library, and we are so pleased to be able to offer our
community ... library buildings that are even more welcoming and user-friendly," Bern said.

Tags: BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Correction: Wednesday, February 17, 2010
The Feb. 11 article "City's Public Library Branches Face Renovations" incorrectly stated that the Berkeley Public Library North Branch would have its
original facade and interior historic details restored and that the branch would be restructured to add a study room under a renovation project. In fact,
these changes would apply to the West Branch of the library. The article also stated that the South Branch would have about 3,000 square feet added
to its existing 5,000 square feet. In fact, the library would be replaced entirely by a new structure with the additional space.

The Daily Californian regrets the error.

Contact Michael Pearlson at mpearlson@dailycal.org.

Comments (0) »

Comment Policy
The Daily Cal encourages readers to voice their opinions respectfully in regards to both the readers and writers of The Daily Californian.
Comments are not pre-moderated, but may be removed if deemed to be in violation of this policy. Comments should remain on topic, concerning
the article or blog post to which they are connected. Brevity is encouraged. Posting under a pseudonym is discouraged, but permitted. Click here
to read the full comment policy.

Subscriber Services | About Us | Contact Us | Marketplace | Advertise With Us Copyright © 2009 The Daily Californian. All rights reserved.

Advertisements

Sugar Daddies Home Services Guide

City's Public Library Branches Face Renovations - The Daily Californian http://www.dailycal.org/article/108197/city_s_public_library_branches_...

2 of 2 2/19/2010 3:34 PM

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #D 
Daily Cal 02/11/2010



THE BERKELEY DAILY PLANETPage 6 February 18-24, 2010

COMMUNITY CALENDAR
THURSDAY, FEB. 18

Berkeley Path Wanderers:
Winter Meeting featuring a
presentation on Berkeley’s
Pedestrian Master Plan, and a
report on expansions and
improvements to Berkeley's path
system at 7 p.m. at North Berke-
ley Senior Center, 1901 Hearst
Ave. at Martin Luther King Jr.
Way. Free and open to the pub-
lic. www.berkeleypaths.org

Tilden Tots Join a nature
adventure program for 3 and 4
year olds, each accompanied by
an adult (grandparents wel-
come)! We’ll look for signs of
animals sleeping from 10 to
11:30 a.m. at Tilden Nature
Center, Tilden Park. Cost is $6-
$8. Registration required. 1-
888-327-2757.

“Human Rights in Chiapas
and Possibilities for Political
Change in Mexico” with Victor
Hugo López at 7:30 p.m. at La
Peña, 3105 Shattuck Ave. Dona-
tion $5-$10. 849-2568. 

“Lies My Teacher Told Me:
Everything Your American Histo-
ry Textbook Got Wrong” with
James Lowen at 7 p.m. at First
Unitarian Church of Oakland,
685 14th St., Oakland. Tickets
are $10-$15, $5 youth 17 &
under. 601-0182 ext. 302. 

Golden Gate Audubon Soci-
ety “Looking Up with Ease”
How to avoid a hurt neck while
bird-watching at 7:30 p.m. at
Northbrae Community Church,
941 The Alameda 2530 San
Pablo Ave. 843-2222.

Adult Art Night: Mixed
Media Collage from 7:30 to
10:30 p.m. at Museum of Chil-
dren’s Art, 538 9th St., Oakland.
Cost is $10. For information on
baby-sitting call 465-8770.

Job Seeker Information Ses-
sion for Berkeley residents
receiving unemployment insur-
ance at 10 a.m. at North Cities
One Stop Career Center, 1918
Bonita Ave. 982-7128.
www.eastbayworks.com

Babies and Toddlers Story-
time at 10:15 and 11:15 a.m.
at the Kensington Library, 61
Arlington Ave., Kensington.
524-3043.

Red Cross Blood Drive from 9
a.m. to 2 p.m. at Oakland Fed-
eral Building, Conference Room
H, 1301 Clay St., Oakland. To
schedule an appointment go to
www.helpsavealife.org

FRIDAY, FEB. 19
City Commons Club Noon
Luncheon with George Lakoff
on “Bringing Democracy to Cal-
ifornia: Ending Government by
Gridlock” Luncheon at 11:45
a.m. for $15, speech at 12:30
p.m., at the Berkeley City Club,
2315 Durant St.  527-2173. 

Red Cross Blood Drive from
8:30 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. at Amer-
ican Red Cross Bus, 747 52nd
St. To schedule an appointment
go to www.helpsavealife.org

“The Most Dangerous Man
in America: Daniel Ellsberg
and the Pentagon Papers” A
film by Judith Ehrich and Rock
Goldsmith opens at the Shat-
tuck Cinemas. www.mostdan-
gerousman.org

Circle Dancing, simple folk
dancing with instruction at 8
p.m. at Finnish Brotherhood
Hall, 1970 Chestnut St. at Uni-
versity. Donation of $5 request-
ed. 528-4253. 

Berkeley Women in Black
weekly vigil from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
Our focus is human rights in
Palestine. 548-6310.

Stand With Us Stand for
Peace Stand with Israel vigil
every Friday from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
www.sfvoiceforisrael.org

Say No to War, Bring Our
Troops Home Now at 2 p.m.
at the corner of Acton and Uni-
versity. 841-4143.

SATURDAY, FEB. 20
Berkeley Path Wanderers:
Pooches On The Paths Walk
Share a pleasant walk with your
best friend. All dogs must be on
a leash, under constant control,
well-behaved and sociable.
Meet at 10 a.m. at Berkeley
Rose Garden by the main sign.
RSVP to Keith Skinner with your
dog’s name. 520-3876. keith-
skinner.public@gmail.com

“WWII Childhoods” with
Maria Segal, a Holocaust Sur-
vivor and Dr. Ursula Mahlen-
dorf, a former Hitler Youth
member, at 7 p.m. at Kehilla
Community Synagogue, 1300
Grand Ave., Piedmont. Cost is
$10-$15, no one turned away.
www.KehillaSynagogue.org

“Inside Islam: What a Billion
Muslims Think” A documen-
tary at 4 p.m. at Islamic Cultural
Center, 1433 Madison St., Oak-
land. Tickets are $10-$15. 832-
7600. www.iccnc.org

“Understanding Diversity
Through Mindful Drum-
ming” led by Kokomon Clottey
from Ghana, from 3 to 6 p.m.
at 3278 West St., Oakland.
Donation $20 supports cultural
arts in schools. 652-5530.

Law School Admissions
Workshop for People of
Color from 9 a.m. to 12:30
p.m. at UC Berkeley School of
Law. RSVP to coalitionfordiversi-
ty@gmail.com

“The Other Buddhism:
Amida Comes West” with
Caroline Brazier at 2 p.m. at
Jodo Shinshu Center, 2140
Durant. Free. 809-1460.

German Family Karneval with
entertainment, arts and craft
projects and authentic German
food, from noon to 2 p.m. at 1
Lawson Rd., Kensington.
www.gissv.org/berkeley

Herbal Tincture Making A
class on how to prepare, formu-
late and administer botanical
medicines, Sat. and Sun. from
10 a.m. to 4 p.m. at Blue Wind
Botanical Medicine Clinic, 823
32nd St., #B, Oakland. Cost is
$60. To resgister call 428-1810.
www.bluewindbmc.com

Berkeley Alternative Practi-
tioners Panel discussion on
alternative medicine at 2 p.m.
at Berkeley Public Library, 3rd
flr, 2090 Kittredge St. 

Red Cross Blood Drive from
10 a.m. to 4 p.m. at American
red Cross Bus, 2001 Allston Way.
To schedule an appointment go
to www.helpsavealife.org

Wolfman and Wolfboy
Weekend at Playland-Not-
At-The-Beach Sat. and Sun.
from 10 a.m. to 5 p.m. at
10979 San Pablo Ave., El Cerri-
to. Cost is $10-$15. 932-8966.
www.playland-not-at-the-
beach.org

Lawn Bowling on the green at
the corner of Acton St. and
Bancroft Way every Wed. and
Sat. at 10 a.m. for ages 12 and
up. Wear flat soled shoes, no
heels. Free lessons. 841-2174.

SUNDAY, FEB. 21
Gaza Freedom March Report
back with Alan Goodman at 7
p.m. at Berkeley Fellowship of
Unitarian Universalists, 1924
Cedar St. 684-8270.

Peace Symbol 52nd Anniver-
sary Celebration at 7 p.m. at
Redwood Gardens, 2950 Derby
St. Tickets are $5-$10. 845-
5481. pazmopa@yahoo.com

“Evolutionary Biology
Today” A talk by David
Seaborg in honor of Darwin
Day at 1 p.m. at Humanist Hall,
390 27th St., Oakland. Suggest-
ed donation $5. www.Human-
istHall.org

“HomeGrown” Video about
growing your own food, and dis-
cussion with Novella Carpenter,
author of “Farm City” at 1:30
p.m. at Albany Library, Edith
Stone Room, 1247 Marin Ave.,
Albany. transitionalbany.org

Black History Month at
Habitot with community quilt-
making, storytelling, African
music and dance, from 9:30
a.m. to 4:30 p.m. at 2065 Kit-
tredge St. Cost is $8.50. 647-
1111. www.habitot.org

“The Career Within You:
How to Find the Perfect Job for
Your Personality” with Elizabeth
Wagele and Ingrid Stabb at
3:30 p.m. at Oakland Main
Library, 125 13th St. Sponsored
by the California Writers Club. 

East Bay Atheists “The Faith
Instinct: How Religion Evolved
and Why It Endures” at 1:30
p.m. at Berkeley Public Library,
2090 Kittredge St., 3r flr. 222-
7580. www.ebatheists.org

Personal Theology Seminars
with “Paul and Torah: He Really
Was Observant of the Law”
with Rabbi Harry Manhoff, at
10 a.m. at the Unitarian Univer-
salist Church of Berkeley, 1 Law-
son Rd., Kensington. 525-0302,
ext. 306.

“How to Communicate
When It Doesn’t Feel Easy” A
workshop from 1 to 3 p.m. at
Berkeley Fellowship of Unitarian
Universalists, 1606 Bonita  Ave.,
in the Fireside Room, Education
Building. No wheelchair access.
www.bfuu.org

Red Cross Blood Drive from 9
a.m. to 2 p.m. at Temple Beth
Abraham Social Hall, 327
MacArthur Blvd., Oakland. To
schedule an appointment go to
www.helpsavealife.org

Free Garden Tours at
Regional Parks Botanic Gar-
den in Tilden Park Sat. at 2
p.m. and Sun. at 11 a.m. and 2
p.m. Call to confirm.  841-
8732. www.nativeplants.org

MONDAY, FEB. 22
Berkeley School Volunteers,
New Volunteer Orientation
from noon to 1 p.m. at 1835
Allston Way. Bring a photo ID
and two references to the orien-
tation. Returning volunteers do
not need to attend. For further
information 644-8833.

Kensington Library Book
Club meets to discuss “Plain-
song” by Kent Haruf at 7 p.m.
at Kensington Library, 61
Arlington Ave., Kensington.
524-3043.

Job Search Strategies at 6 p.m.
at Berkeley Public Library, 3rd Flr
Community Meeting Room,
2090 Kittredge St. 981-6148.

“Simply Raw – Reversing
Diabetes in 30 Days” a film at
7 p.m. at Bauman College of
Holistic Nutrition and Culinary
Arts, 901 Grayson St., Suites
201 & 205. Tickets are $7-$10.
www.baumancollege.org

East Bay Track Club for ages
3-14 meets at 6 p.m. at the
running track of Berkeley High
School. For more information
call Coach Walker at 776-7451.

TUESDAY, FEB. 23
Tuesdays for the Birds at
7:30 p.m. at MLK Regional
Shoreline, Arrowhead Marsh. All
levels of birding experience wel-
come. Bring water, field guides,
and binoculars or scopes. Call
for specific meeting location.
544-2233.

“Help Stop GA Cuts” Rally at
the Alameda County Board of
Supervisors meeting at 10 a.m.
at 1221 Oak St., Oakland. Rally
at 9 a.m. in the Plaza. For infor-
mation call 649-1930, ext. 225.

Book Lust Salon meets to dis-
cuss “A Gay and Melancholy
Sound” by Merle Miller at 7:30
p.m. at the Hillside Club, Cedar
at Arch. www.hillsideclub.org

Family Storytime, for ages
preschool and up, at 7 p.m. at
the Kensington Library, 61
Arlington Ave., Kensington.
524-3043

Red Cross Blood Services
Volunteer Orientation from 6
to 8 p.m. at 6230 Claremont
Ave., Oakland. Registration
required. 594-5165.

El Cerrito Democratic Club
with Dale Sorenson, of the
Marin Interfaith Task Force on the
Americas, speaking on “The Coup
in Honduras: What Happened,
Why, and What Role did the Unit-
ed States Play?” at 6:30 p.m. in
Fellowship Hall, El Cerrito United
Methodist Church, 6830 Stockton
Ave., at Richmond Ave., El Cerrito.
Pizza and light refreshments at 6
p.m., for $4. 527-5953.

Job Seeker Information Ses-
sion for Berkeley residents
receiving unemployment insur-
ance at 10 a.m. at North Cities
One Stop Career Center, 1918
Bonita Ave. 982-7128.
www.eastbayworks.com

“Dancing with Loss and Let-
ting Go” with Maggie Kast,
author of “The Crack Between
Worlds: A dancer’s memoir of
loss, faith and family” worship
service followed by discussion at
11:10 a.m. at Pacific School of
Religion, Chapel of the Great
Commission, 1798 Scenic Ave.
849-8200.

Tuesday Tilden Walkers Join
a few slowpoke seniors at 9:30
a.m. in the parking lot near the
Little Farm for an hour or two
walk.  215-7672, 524-9992.

Homework Help at the
Albany Library for students in
grades 2 - 6, Tues. and Thurs.
from 3:15 to 5:15 p.m. at the
Albany Library, 1247 Marin Ave.
Emphasis on math and writing
skills. No registration is
required. For more information,
call 526-3720.

Homework Help Program at
the Richmond Public Library
Tues. and Thurs. from 3 to 5:30
p.m. at 325 Civic Center Plaza.
For more information or to
enroll, call 620-6557.

Street Level Cycles Commu-
nity Bike Program Come use
our tools as well as receive help
with performing repairs free of
charge. Youth classes available.
Tues., Thurs., Sat. and Sun.
from 2 to 6 p.m. at at 84 Boli-
var Dr., Aquatic Park. 644-
2577. www.watersidework-
shops.org

Berkeley Camera Club meets
at 7:30 p.m., at the Northbrae
Community Church, 941 The
Alameda. 548-3991.
www.berkeleycameraclub.org

St. John’s Prime Timers
meets at 9:30 a.m. at St. John’s
Presbyterian Church, 2727 Col-
lege Ave. We always welcome
new members over 50. 845-
6830.

WEDNESDAY, FEB. 24
Berkeley High’s 8th Grade
Information Night All incom-
ing families (from BUSD and
non BUSD schools) should plan
on attending at 7 p.m. in the
Berkeley Community Theater.
Students should attend but
must be accompanied by an
adult. For more information call
644-6120.

North Branch Library Design
Update at 6:30 p.m. at North
Branch Library, 1170 The
Alameda. 981-6195.
www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org

Positive Opportunities for
Youth Resource Fair with job
and internship opportunities,
performances, speakers, from 2
to 4:30 p.m. at Lake Merritt
United Methodist Church, 1330
Lakeshore Ave., Oakland. 809-
7416. baypeace@baypeace.org

“The Hidden Power Behind
the Expanding War in
Afghanistan” with Marc Pil-
isuk, Prof. Emeritus, UCB, at
1:30 p.m. at North Berkeley
Senior Center, 1901 Hearst.
548-9696.

“Shellmound” and “In the
Light of Reverence” Two doc-
umentaries on Native American
sacred sites at 7:30 p.m. at
Humanist Hall, 390 27th St.,
Oakland. Donation $5.
www.Humanist Hall.org

Tilden Explorers An after-
school nature adventure pro-
gram for 5-7 year olds. We will
search for amphibians from
3:15 to 4:15 p.m.. Cost is $6-
$8, registration required. 1-
888-EBPARKS.

Golden Gate Audubon Soci-
ety Bird Walk at Lake Merritt
and Lakeside Park. Meet at 9:30
a.m. at the large spherical cage
near Nature Center at Perkins
and Bellevue. www.golden-
gateaudubon.org

Alameda/Oakland Missing
Links A Town Hall program to
discuss transportation links fol-
lowing the defeat of Measure B
at 5:30 p.m. at AIA East Bay,
1405 Clay Street, Oakland.
Free, registration required. 464-
3600. 

“Working in the Shadows: A
Year of Doing the Jobs (Most)
Americans Won’t Do” with
author Gabriel Thompson at 7
p.m. at Revolution Books 2425
Channing Way. 848-1196.

Walk Berkeley for Seniors
meets every Wednesday at 9:30
a.m. at the Sea Breeze Market,
just west of the I-80 overpass.
Everyone is welcome, wear
comfortable shoes and a warm
hat. 548-9840.

Berkeley CopWatch Drop-in
office hours from 6 to 8 p.m. at
2022 Blake St. 548-0425.

THURSDAY, FEB. 25
Reduce Your Footprint in
2010 A community workshop on
how to reduce your global warm-
ing emissions at 7 p.m. at Berke-
ley Fellowship of Unitarian Uni-
versalists, 1924 Cedar St., at Boni-
ta. Free. 548-2220, ext. 240.

“David Brower and the Pearl
of Siberia: Lake Baikal in Con-
versation and Photographs” dis-
cussion about the environmental
challenges and successes of
Siberia's Lake Baikal, with wilder-
ness photographer Boyd Nor-
ton, Gary Cook of Baikal Watch,
Melissa Prager of Center for Safe
Energy, and John Knox of Earth
Island Institute at 7 p.m. at
David Brower Center, 2150 All-
ston Way. Tickets are $5-$20.
859-9161. cseprograms@igc.org

Berkeley Entrepreneurs
Forum “Going Public in 2010:
Is the Window Opening?” at
6:30 p.m. at Andersen Auditori-
um, Haas School of Business,
UC Berkeley. Cost is $20-$30.
642-4255. http://entrepreneur-
ship.berkeley.edu

Job Seeker Information Ses-
sion for Berkeley residents
receiving unemployment insur-
ance at 10 a.m. at North Cities
One Stop Career Center, 1918
Bonita Ave. 982-7128.
www.eastbayworks.com

Native Plant Propagation
Join a friendly group of volun-
teers to propagate and maintain
plants for the Regional Parks
Botanic Garden’s plant sales.
The group meets at the garden
in the Potting Shed area of the
Juniper Lodge building on
Thursday mornings, from 9
a.m. to 11 a.m. at the Botanic
Gardens in Tilden Park. 544-
3169. www.nativeplants.org/
propagate.html.

Free Drop-in Beginning
Computer Class, Mon. at 6
p.m. and Thurs. at 10 a.m. at
Berkeley Public Library, 3rd flr.,
2090 Kittredge St. 981-6148.

Babies and Toddlers Story-
time at 10:15 and 11:15 a.m.
at the Kensington Library, 61
Arlington Ave., Kensington.
524-3043.

Circle of Concern Vigil meets
on West Lawn of UC campus
across from Addison and
Oxford, Thurs. at noon and
Sun. at 1 p.m. to oppose UC
weapons labs contracts. 848-
8055.

FRIDAY, FEB. 26
City Commons Club Noon
Luncheon with Norman Bowen
“Nuclear Non-Proliferation:
What Does It Really Mean?”
Luncheon at 11:45 a.m. for
$15, speech at 12:30 p.m., at
the Berkeley City Club, 2315
Durant St. For information and
reservations call 527-2173.
www.citycommonsclub.org

Bay Area Seed Interchange
Library 11th Annual Seed
Swap Potluck supper, hoe
down music, home-grown gar-
den seeds, and the company of
fantastic local gardeners! Learn
about seed saving classes and
the Library. BASIL is a project of
the Ecology Center. Please
bring a garden related “white
elephant” treasure to raffle. At 7
p.m. at the Ecology Center,
2530 San Pablo Ave. Cost is
food and seeds to share or $10
donation. 658-9178.
www.ecologycenter.org/basil

Circle Dancing, simple folk
dancing with instruction.
Potluck at 7 p.m., dancing at 8
p.m. at Hillside Community
Church, 1422 Navellier St., El
Cerrito. Donation of $5 request-
ed. 528-4253. www.circledanc-
ing.com

Berkeley Women in Black
weekly vigil from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
Our focus is human rights in
Palestine. 548-6310.

Stand With Us Stand for
Peace Stand with Israel vigil
every Friday from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
www.sfvoiceforisrael.org

SATURDAY, FEB. 27
Help Restore Cerrito Creek
Plant natives and remove inva-
sives on Cerrito Creek at Albany
Hill with Friends of Five Creeks.
Meet at 10 a.m. at Creekside
Park, south end of Santa Clara
Ave., El Cerrito. All ages wel-
come; snacks, tools, and gloves
provided. Information at
www.fivecreeks.org

Wine and Chocolate Soiree
for Rosa Parks School from 6
to 9 .m. at West Berkeley Senior
center, 1900 6th St. Donation
$20-$60. Benefits the elemen-
tary school’s PTA supplemental
programs. 812-6860.

Susan G. Komen 3-Day for
the Cure Get Started Meet-
ing at 2:30 p.m. at Berkeley
Main Library, 2090 Kittredge
Street RSVP online at
www.The3Day.org

Continued on 
Page Seven

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #E 
Berkeley Daily Planet 02/18-24/2010

efranklin
Rectangle

efranklin
Rectangle

efranklin
Rectangle

efranklin
Rectangle

efranklin
Rectangle



THE BERKELEY DAILY PLANETFebruary 18-24, 2010 Page 7

COMMUNITY CALENDAR
Black History Month Forum
“From Slavery to Mass Incar-
ceration” at 2 p.m. at Rock-
ridge Library, 5366 College
Ave., Oakland. Sponsored by
the Spartacist League and Labor
Black League for Social Defense.
839-0851.

Hike UC Campus and Sur-
roundings, five miles and some
modest elevation. Meet at
North Berkeley BART Station at
9:15 a.m.
robertper7@gmail.com

What’s It Worth? An
Antiques Appraisal Faire Pro-
fessional appraisers will tell you
the value of that family heir-
loom, that gizmo from Uncle,
the painting from the garage
sale, from 2 to 6 p.m. at Albany
Middle School, 1259 Brighton
Ave., Albany. Cost is $20 per
person for 2 portable items.
Extra items $10 each at the

door. Benefits Albany Rotary
Club local and international
programs. www.AlbanyCaRo-
tary.org/faire.

Saturday Afternoon at the
Movies View and discuss award
winning Independent and for-
eign films at 3 p.m. at Clare-
mont Branch Library, 2940 Ben-
venue Ave. To register for this
event call 981-6280.

Vegetable Garden Beds Learn
how to prepare for spring plant-
ing at 10 a.m. at Magic Gar-
dens Nursery, 729 Heinz Ave.
www.magicgardens.com

Family Open House at the
Freight and Salvage with work-
shops, jams, and performances
from noon to 4 p.m. at 2020
Addison St. www.freightandsal-
vage.org

King of the Carnival Week-
end at Playland-Not-At-The-
Beach Sat. and Sun. from 10
a.m. to 5 p.m. at 10979 San
Pablo Ave., El Cerrito. Cost is
$10-$15. 932-8966. 

Celebration of Purim, the
Jewish costume holiday, for
young children, at 10:30 a.m.
at Jewish Gateways, 409 Liberty
St., El Cerrito. RSVP required.
559-8140. 

Free Garden Tours at
Regional Parks Botanic Gar-
den Sat. at 2 p.m. and Sun. at
11 a.m. and 2 pm. Regional
Parks Botanic Garden, Tilden
Park. Call to confirm. 841-
8732. www.nativeplants.org

Lawn Bowling on the green at
the corner of Acton St. and
Bancroft Way every Wed. and
Sat. at 10 a.m. for ages 12 and
up. Wear flat soled shoes, no
heels. Free lessons. 841-2174.

SUNDAY, FEB. 28
“How We Can Complete the
Gaza Freedom March” with
Ali Abunimah, co-founder of the
Electronic Intifada, at 7 p.m. at
King Middle School, 1781 Rose
St. Benefit for children in Gaza.

Tickets are $8-$15. 548-0542.
www.mecaforpeace.org

Tour of the Berkeley City
Club, designed by Julia Mor-
gan, from 1 to 4 p.m. at 2315
Durant Ave. Free, donations
accepted. www.landmarkher-
itagefoundation.org

Purim Carnival from 2 to 5
p.m. at the Jewish Community
Center, 1414 Walnut St. with
activities for children, carnival
booths and more. Come in cos-
tume.
http://prod.jcceastbay.org

Free Garden Tours at
Regional Parks Botanic Gar-
den in Tilden Park Sat. at 2
p.m. and Sun. at 11 a.m. and 2
p.m. Call to confirm.  841-
8732. www.nativeplants.org

CITY MEETINGS
Medical Cannabis Commis-
sion meets Thurs. Feb. 18, at
1:30 p.m. at City Hall, Cypress

Room, 2180 Milvia. 981-7402.

Design Review Committee
meets Thurs., Feb. 18, at 7
p.m., at the North Berkeley
Senior Center. 981-7415.

City Council meets Tues., Feb.
23, at 7 p.m in City Council
Chambers. 981-6900. www.ci.
berkeley.ca.us/citycouncil

Energy Commission meets
Wed., Feb. 24, at 6:30 p.m., at
the North Berkeley Senior Cen-
ter. 981-7439. 

Planning Commission meets
Wed., Feb. 24, at 7 p.m., at the
North Berkeley Senior Center.
981-7416.

Mental Health Commission
meets Thurs., Feb. 25, at 5 p.m.
at 2640 MLK Jr. Way, at Derby.
981-5217. 

Zoning Adjustments Board
meets Thurs., Feb. 25, at 7
p.m., in City Council Chambers.
981-7430.

ONGOING
Berkeley Housing Authority
Five Year Plan and Fiscal Year
Plan Public comments are being
accepted by email to
BHA@ci.berkeley.ca.us or at
BHA office, 1901 Frairview St.
The plan is available a the
office. A Public Hearing will be
held April 8 at 6 p.m. at the
North Berkeley Senior Center,
1901 Hearst.

Princess Project Donate your
gently used prom dresses and
accessories to benefit Bay Area
high school girls, from Feb. 8 to
Feb. 19 at Tootsies in Oakland,
5525 College Ave. For details
see www.princessproject.org

Half Pint Library Book Drive
Children’s books will be collect-
ed for distribution to pediatric
clinics and community centers.
Drop off books through March
31 at Half Price Books, 2036
Shattuck Ave.

Continued from 
Page Six

By STEVEN FINACOM
Special to the Planet

Many wonderful buildings that once
defined the cultural landscape of
Berkeley have vanished, recalled

today only in photographs and written
memories. One such, “an ornament to
Berkeley,” was the original Newman Hall,
a stately Tudor Revival edifice. It was ded-
icated just off the UC campus in March
1910. 

Although the building itself did not sur-
vive to centennial age, for decades it was a
fixture of its Northside neighborhood, as
well as an important intersection of campus
and community life. Of all the early
denominational religious edifices for stu-
dents near campus, Newman Hall may
have been the best.

The “Newman Club” movement around
the country was supported by the Roman
Catholic hierarchy and leading laity. They
worried as Catholic students increasingly
flocked to secular colleges including the
University of California. The local branch
grew from the patronage of Archbishop
William Riordan of San Francisco and the
efforts of Roman Catholic faculty and stu-
dents.

Dean of Agriculture Eugene Hilgard
joined with six students in 1899 to discuss
forming a Roman Catholic club at Cal.
They initially met in rooms at the Golden
Sheaf Bakery on Shattuck Avenue. In 1902
the Archbishop formalized their existence.
They named themselves for Cardinal John
Henry Newman, prominent 19th century
churchman and scholar who had converted
from Anglican to Roman Catholic.

Reverend John J. Cantwell was desig-
nated as part-time chaplain to the fledgling
Newman Club. Cantwell—later Archbish-
op of Los Angeles—also assisted at Berke-
ley’s first Roman Catholic parish, St.
Joseph’s. He made parish rounds on horse-
back and, according to Newman tradition,
periodically took a break to have a beer
with brewer Louis Raspiller on San Pablo
Avenue. 

Then, as Newman history records, “the
growth of the Club and the removal of
Father Cantwell from Berkeley in 1904
induced the Archbishop to establish the
ministry to the Catholic students of Berke-
ley on a more permanent and solid
basis…the Paulist Fathers agreed to staff a
permanent campus ministry in Berkeley.” 

In 1906, the Paulists—a society of mis-
sionary priests, founded in 1858—sent
Father Thomas Verner Moore to Berke-
ley. “The Archbishop commissioned
Father Moore to select a suitable site for a
club house, and on April 25, 1907, Father
Moore brought the Archbishop over to
look at the house which was later used as

the rectory and to see the adjoining lot on
the corner of Ridge Road and La Loma” a
history in the Newman Hall newspaper
related in 1924. “The two pieces of proper-
ty were being offered on sale.”

The house, a “magnificent residence,”

was the home of former Judge B. W. Bad-
ger and his wife, according to the Berkeley
Independent. Although they had just built
in 1905 they were selling, the paper said,
because Mrs. Badger was ill and chose to
return to Montana. They received $18,000

from the sale of house and adjacent uphill
lot, newspapers reported.

“The Archbishop looked over the prop-
erty and closed the deal, then and there,”
the Newman history said. Newman took
possession Aug. 1, 1907, and Catholic stu-
dents were soon worshiping at makeshift
altars in the downstairs parlors of the big
brown shingle house, where staff lived
upstairs.

The Newman site was at the northeast of
an architecturally prominent block. The
private residential hotel Cloyne Court
(John Galen Howard, 1904) stood to the
west, while College Hall, a private
women’s dormitory, rose to the south of
Newman in 1908-09. Ernest Coxhead’s
1893 neo-Tudor Beta Theta Pi fraternity
sat diagonally downhill from Newman and
completed the main structures on the
block.

Even with the acquisition, “one dwelling
house is not sufficient to meet the needs of
the present situation. It is my intention to
build also a Chapel and Lecture Hall,”
Riordan wrote. “The work…has been seri-
ously hampered and rendered almost
impossible by the lack of any home of its
own.”

Riordan acted quickly. “On the occasion
of his silver jubilee (the) Archbishop
received a personal gift of $40,000, from
the laity of the Archdiocese. This sum of
money he set aside for the erection of the
original Newman Hall,” combined with
other donations. 

The building was completed and dedi-
cated March 13, 1910—one hundred years
ago, as of this writing. 

Shea & Lofquist designed Newman Hall
with Frank Shea as lead architect. The firm
had organized in early 1906 and designed
many commercial and institutional build-
ings in San Francisco in the building boom
following the earthquake and fire. 

They designed the new Mission Dolores
church, Berkeley’s St. Joseph the Work-
man (now Worker) church, St. Patrick’s
(now across from Yerba Buena Center) in
San Francisco, and Saint Patrick’s Semi-
nary in Menlo Park.

They also clearly had an in with the local
Catholic hierarchy or, as the Architect &
Engineer decorously put it in 1909, “in
ecclesiastical architecture Messrs. Shea and
Lofquist have been eminently successful.”

Arts and Crafts, Beaux Arts, Mission,
Gothic and Romanesque Revival architec-
tural traditions were interwoven in their
work of this period. Stylistically, Newman
Hall was most closely allied with St.
Anselm’s Church in San Anselmo (still
standing) and their Infirmary Building
(now Archbishop House) at the Menlo

Would-Be Centennial for Historic, Vanished Newman Hall

Photos courtesy Newman Hall, Holy Spirit Parish

Above: A 1959 wedding rite in the upstairs Thomas Aquinas Chapel at Newman. Below::
This early 20-century view shows Newman at the corner of Ridge and La Loma.

Continued on Page Eighteen

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #E 
Berkeley Daily Planet 02/18-24/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



THE BERKELEY DAILY PLANETPage 16 February 18-24, 2010

ARTS CALENDAR
THURSDAY, FEB. 18

EXHIBITIONS

“A Paper + Cloth Dream
Exhibition” Reception at 5:30
p.m. at the CCA Oakland cam-
pus, 5212 Broadway, Oliver Art
Center. www.cca.edu

READINGS AND LECTURES

Eve Ensler “I Am An Emotional
Creature: The Secret Life of Girls
Around the World” at 7 p.m. at
King Middle School, 1781 Rose
St. Tickets are $12-$15.
www.brownpapertickets.com

Rafael Chodos “Art and
Authority” a lecture/discussion
program at 6 p.m. at the Doug
Adams Gallery, Bade Museum,
Pacific School of Religion, 1798
Scenic Ave.

“Celebrating the Photo-
graphic Art of Jim & Ted”
Conversations with the artists
Jim Dennis and Ted Pontiflet, at
7 p.m. at Craft & Cultural Arts
Gallery, State of California
Office Building, Atrium, 1515
Clay St., Oakland. 622-8190.

Domo Gehse Rinpoche on
“Mystery of Emptiness & Love”
and “Red Lotus Buddhist Wis-
dom” at 6 p.m. at University
Press Books, 2430 Bancroft
Way. 548-0585. www.universi-
typressbooks.com

Poetry Flash with Camille
Dungy and Robin Ekiss at 7:30
p.m. at Moe’s Books, 2476
Telegraph Ave. 849-2087.

Erica Bauermeister reads from
her debut novel “The School of
Essential Ingredients” at 7:30
p.m. at Pegasus Books Down-
town, 2349 Shattuck Ave. 649-
1320.

Joel Kotkin on “The Next Hun-
dred Million: America in 2050”
at 7:30 p.m. at First Congrega-
tional Church of Berkeley,
Channing Way at Dana. Tickets
are $12-$15. www.brownpa-
pertickets.com

Paul McHugh reads from
“Deadlines: A Novel of Murder,
Conspiracy, and the Media” at
7:30 p.m. at Mrs. Dalloway’s,
2904 College Ave. 704-8222.

Peggy Kennedy on
“Approaching  Neverland”
which recounts her family's
attempts to  deal with her
mother's mental illness, at 7
p.m. at Books Inc., 1760 4th St.
525-7777.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Bob Marley Birthday Cele-
bration with Mighty Diamonds
and Yellow Wall Dub Squad at
9 p.m. at Ashkenaz. Cost is $15.
525-5054. www.ashkenaz.com

Devine’s Jug Band, Jimbo
Trout and the Fish People,
Squirrelly String Band at 9
p.m. at The Starry Plough. Free.
841-2082. www.starryplough-
pub.com

City Folk at 8 p.m. at Freight
and Salvage. Cost is $18.50-
$19.50. 548-1761. www.freigh-
tandsalvage.org

Lawanda Ultan & Greg Pratt
at 7 p.m. at Chester’s Bay View
Cafe, 1508 Walnut St. 849-
9995.

FRIDAY, FEB. 19

THEATER

Actors Ensemble of Berkeley
“Antigone” Fri. and Sat. at 8
p.m. at Live Oak Theater, 1301
Shattuck Ave. at Berryman,
through Feb. 20. Tickets are
$12-$15. 649-5999. www.aeof-
berkeley.org

Aurora Theatre “The First
Grade” at 2081 Addison St.,
through Feb. 28. Tickets are
$15-$55. 843-4822. aurorathe-
atre.org

Berkeley Rep “Coming
Home”  at 2025 Addison St.,
through Feb. 28. Tickets are
$33-$71. 647-2949. berke-
leyrep.org

Contra Costa Civic Theater
“Over the Tavern” a family
comedy by Tom Dudzick, Fri.
and Sat. at 8 .m., Sun. at 2
p.m. at 951 Pomona Ave., El
Cerrito, through Feb. 28. Tick-
ets are $11-$18. 524-9012.
www.ccct.org

Don Reed “East 14th – True
Tales of a Reluctant Player”
Fri. and Sat. through Feb. 27 at
Laney College Theater, 900 Fallon
St., Oakland. Tickets are $20-$50.
www.east14thoak.eventbrite.com

Impact Theatre “Learn To Be
Latina” Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at
La Val’s Subterranean, 1834
Euclid Ave., through March 27.
Tickets are $12-$20. impactthe-
atre.com

Masquers Playhouse
“Kitchen Witches” Fri. and
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 2:30
p.m. at 105 Park Place, Point
Richmond, and runs through
Feb. 27. Tickets are $18. 232-
4031. www.masquers.org

Stagebridge “Sylvia’s Advice
on How to Age Gracefully
on the Planet Denial” Thurs.-
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sat. and Sun. at
2 p.m. at Ashby Stage, 1901
Ashby Ave., through Feb. 21.
Tickets are $15-$25.
www.stagebridge.org

“The Vagina Monologues”
through Sun. at 7 p.m. at the
Pauley Ballroom, MLK Student
Union, UC campus. Tickets are
$10. vagmonsUCB@gmail.com

EXHIBITIONS

“Richmond Murals 1949-
2010” Opening reception at 5
p.m. at Richmond Main Street
Iniative, 1000 Macdonald Ave.,
Suite C, Richmond. 236-4050.
www.richmondmainstreet.org

FILM

“The Lady From Shanghai”
by Orson Welles at 8 p.m. at
Paramount Theatre, 2025
Broadway, Oakland. Tickets are
$5. 800-745-3000.

READINGS AND LECTURES

Cathyann Fisher and  Myron
Michael, poetry reading at 7
p.m. at Expressions Gallery,
2035 Ashby Ave. 644-4930.
www.expressionsgallery.org 

MUSIC AND DANCE

Balandougou Kan Collection
“Lanyee” West African dance
and music at 8 p.m. at La Peña
Cultural Center. Cost is $12-
$15. 849-2568.
www.lapena.org

Noon Concert, with perform-
ance by students at Hertz Hall,
UC campus. Free. 642-4864.
http://music.berkeley.edu

Barefoot Chamber Concert
Cynthia Miller Freivogle plays
Bach for unaccompanied violin
at 6 p.m. at St. Mark’s Episcopal
church Parish Hall, 2300 Ban-
croft Way. Cost is $10-$15.
www.brownpapertickets.com

Leyya Tawil’s Dance Elixer
“Saints + Angels” at 6:30 and
9 p.m. at Temescal Arts Center,
511 48th St., Oakland. Free.
www.danceElixir.org

Abigail Hosein Dance Com-
pany “Here, Look” at Fri. and
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 6 p.m. at
Shawl-Anderson Dance Center,
2704 Alcatraz. Tickets are $15-
$20. Advance purchase recom-
mended. 654-5921.
www.brownpapertickets.com

“Songs for the Dead and the
Living” for voice and piano at
8 p.m. at the Hillside Club,
Cedar at Arch. Tickets are $10-
$15. www.hillsideclub.org

Hali Hammer Jump In at 7
p.m. at Chester’s Bay View
Cafe, 1508 Walnut St. 849-
9995.

Justin Anchetta at 10 p.m. at
Beckett’s Irish Pub, 2271 Shat-
tuck Ave. 647-1790.
www.beckettsirishpub.com

Dr. K’s Home Grown Roots
Revue at 8 p.m. at Freight and
Salvage. Cost is $14.50-$15.50.
548-1761. www.freightandsal-
vage.org

Five Eyed Hand, Sean Gan-
dalf Lehe & Great Owl at
9:30 p.m. at The Starry Plough.
Cost is $10. 841-2082.
www.starryploughpub.com

SATURDAY, FEB. 20

CHILDREN 

Los Amiguitos de La Peña
with Asheba at 10:30 a.m. at La
Peña. Cost is $5 for adults, $4
for children. 849-2568.
www.lapena.org

Music Concert with Hanna
Banana at 11 a.m. at Studio
Grow, 1235 10th St. Cost is $9.
526-9888.

EXHIBITIONS

“Fragmentos de Perú” by
Claudio Talavera-Ballon. Recep-
tion for the artist at 2 p.m. at
Berkeley Public Library, 2090
Kittredge St. Exhibition runs
through March 7. 981-6100.

“Art of Living Black” Artists
talk at 1 p.m. and reception at
3 p.m. at The Richmond Art
Center, 2540 Barrett Ave., Rich-
mond. 620-6772. www.ther-
ac.org

“Greenhouse Britain” works
by Helen Mayer Harrison and
Newton Harrison. Panel discus-
sion at 2 p.m. at Kala Gallery,
2990 San Pablo Ave. 841-7000.
www.kala.org

“Process and Place: The
Transformative Potential of
Artist Residencies” Artist talk
with M. Louise Stanley at 4 p.m
at Berkeley Art Center, 1275
Walnut St. www.berkeleyartcen-
ter.org

THEATER

Youth Musical Theater Com-
pany “Once Upon a Mat-
tress” at 7:30 p.m., Sun. at 2
p.m. at Julia Morgan Theater,
2640 College Ave. Tickets are
$10-$20. 1-800-838-3006.
www.brownpapertickets.com

Central Works “An Anony-
mous Story” by Anton
Chekhov opens and runs
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 5
p.m. at The Berkeley City Club,
2315 Durant Ave. Tickets are
$14-$25. 558-1381. www.cen-
tralworks.org

“Death As A Salesman” A
one-woman musical comedy at
7:30 p.m. at Humanist Hall, 390
27th St., Oakland. Donation
$15. deathasasalesman.org

READINGS AND LECTURES

Spring Artist Lecture Series:
M. Louise Stanley at 4 p.m. at
Bekeley Art Center, 1275 Wal-
nut St. 

MUSIC AND DANCE

Berkeley Opera “Don Gio-
vanni” at 8 p.m. at El Cerrito
Performing Arts Theater, 540
Asbury Ave., at El Cerrito High
School. Tickets are $15-$65. 1-
800-838-3006. www.brownpa-
prtickets.com

Artists’ Vocal Ensemble “This
American Land” featuring
Blue, Native American flute
player, at 8 p.m. at St. Mark’s
Episcopal Church, 2300 Ban-
croft Way. Tickets are $10-$20.
848-5107. www.AVE-music.org

Haiti Relief Concert with
Lakay and Mystic Man at 9
p.m. at Shattuck Down Low,
2284 Shattuck Ave., Tickets are
$5-$15. www.amurthaiti.org

Enlaces/The Ties that Con-
nect Us Music and dance
exploring the connections
between the Philippines and
Hispanic culture at 8 p.m. at La
Peña Cultural Center. Cost is
$22-$24. 849-2568. 

Sonic Safari at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

Martin Hayes & Dennis
Cahill at 8 p.m. at Freight and
Salvage. Cost is $26.50-$27.50.
548-1761. 

Ed Reed “Time Marches On”
at 8 p.m. at the Jazzschool.
Cost is $18. 845-5373. 

DigiiN at 10 p.m. at Beckett’s
Irish Pub, 2271 Shattuck Ave.
647-1790. 

7 Orange ABC, Belly of the
Whale at 9:30 p.m. at The
Starry Plough. Cost is $8. 841-
2082.
www.starryploughpub.com

Hip Bones at 8 p.m. at Jupiter.
843-8277.

SUNDAY, FEB. 21

READINGS AND LECTURES

Poetry Flash with Molly Ben-
dall, Karen Kevorkian and Gail
Wronsky at 3 p.m. at Diesel,
5433 College Ave., Oakland.
653-9965.

Linda Joy Myers reads from
“The Power of Memoir: How to
Write Your Healing Story” at 4
p.m. at Mrs. Dalloway’s, 2904
College Ave. 704-8222.

“Protecting Architectural
Antiquities in a Modern Liv-
ing Environment” with
Michael Jones and Dina Saad of
the American Research Center,
Cairo, at 2:30 p.m. at Barrows
Hall, Room 20, Barrow Lane
and Bancroft Way, UC campus.
664-4767.

California Writers Group
“The Career Within You:
How to Find the Perfect Job for
Your Personality” with Elizabeth
Wagele and Ingrid Stabb at
3:30 p.m. at Oakland Main
Library, 125 13th St.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Verismo Opera “La Traviata”
at 3 p.m. at the Hillside Club,
2286 Cedar St. at Arch. Tickets
are $15-$20. 707-864-5508.
www.brownpapertickets.com

Chamber Music Sundaes at 3
p.m. at St. John’s Presbyterian
Church, 2727 College Ave. Tick-
ets at the door are $20-$25.
415-753-2792. 

Cantare Chamber Ensemble
and Oakland Interfaith
Gospel Choir at 3 p.m. at First
Congregational Church of Oak-
land, 2501 Harrison St. Oak-
land. Tickets are $10-$25. 836-
0789. www.cantareconvico.org

An Afternoon of Music with
the Oakland-East Bay Gay
Men’s Chorus and Bay Area
Chamber Symphony members
at 3 p.m. at Northbrae Com-
munity Church, 941 The Alame-
da. Tickets are $10-$20.
www.brownpapertickets.com

Bobby Hall & Friends, gospel
concert at 5 p.m. a First United
Methodist Church of Richmond,
201 Martina St., Point Rich-
mond. Donations accepted.
236-0527.

Food Justice Series with
Bryant Terry and Amara Tabor
Smith at 7:30 p.m. at La Peña.
Cost is $10-$20.  849-2568. 

“This Must Be The Place”
Deep Hous’ & Classics por-
trayed by Soul Luciani 3 to 9
p.m. at 2022 Telegraph Ave,
Oakland. Cost is $5. 415-240-
2494.

Mark Holzinger Jazz at 7 p.m.
at Chester’s Bay View Cafe,
1508 Walnut St. 849-9995.

Steve Erquiaga at 4:30 p.m. at
the Jazzschool. Cost is $15.
845-5373.
www.jazzschool.com

Asylum Street Spankers at 8
p.m. at Freight and Salvage. Cost
is $18.50-$19.50. 548-1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

MONDAY, FEB. 22

READINGS AND LECTURES

Aurora Theatre Global Age
Project Staged reading of “Col-
lapse” at 7:30 p.m. at at 2081
Addison St. 843-4822. auro-
ratheatre.org

Linda Bamber reads her poet-
ry at 7:30 p.m. at Moe’s Books,
2476 Telegraph Ave. 849-2087

Poetry Express with open mic
theme on “the color black” at 7
p.m. at Priya Restaurant, 2072
San Pablo Ave. 644-3977.

Nina Lesowitz on “Living Life
as a Thank You: The Transfor-
mative Power of Daily Grati-
tude” at 7 p.m. at Books  Inc.,
1760  4th St. 525-7777.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Classical at the Freight with
the SF Brass Quintet at 8
p.m. at Freight and Salvage
Coffee House. Cost is $8.50-
$9.50. 548-1761. www.freigh-
tandsalvage.org

TUESDAY, FEB. 23

READINGS AND LECTURES

Jill Hunting on “Finding Pete:
Rediscovering the Brother I Lost
in Vietnam” at 6 p.m. at Univer-
sity Press Books, 2430 Bancroft
Way. 548-0585. www.universi-
typressbooks.com

Elise Marie Collins discusses
“An A-Z Guide to Healing
Foods” at 7:30 p.m. at Pegasus
Books Downtown, 2349 Shat-
tuck Ave. 649-1320.

Leslie Scalapino and Amy
Evans McClure at 7:30 p.m. at
Moe’s Books, 2476 Telegraph
Ave. 849-2087.

WEDNESDAY, FEB. 24

FILM

“Awakening from Sorrow:
Buenos Aires 1997” at 7:30
p.m. at La Peña Cultural Center.
Cost is $10.  849-2568.
www.lapena.org

READINGS AND LECTURES

Eric Karpeles on “Paintings
and the Making of A la
Recherche du Temps Perdu” at
5 p.m. in the Geballe Room,
220 Stephens Hall, UC campus.

William Issel on “For Both
Cross and Flag: Caholic Action,
Anti-Catholicism, and National
Security Politics in World War II
San Francisco”at 5:30 p.m. at
University Press Books, 2430
Bancroft Way. 548-0585.
www.universitypressbooks.com

Berkeley Poetry Slam with
host Charles Ellik and Three
Blind Mice, at 8 p.m. at The
Starry Plough. Cost is $7.  841-
2082 www.starryploughpub.com

MUSIC AND DANCE

Music for the Spirit with Ron
McKean on pipe organ at 12:15
p.m. at First Presbyterian
Church of Oakland, 2619
Broadway. 444-3555.

Wednesday Noon Concert,
with Jessica Wan, soprano at
Hertz Hall, UC campus. Free.
642-4864. http://music.berke-
ley.edu

Ray Wylie Hubbard at 8 p.m.
at Freight and Salvage. Cost is
$18.50-$19.50. 548-1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Backyard Tarzans at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

Trio of Doom at 10 p.m. at
Beckett’s Irish Pub, 2271 Shat-
tuck Ave. 647-1790.
www.beckettsirishpub.com

THURSDAY, FEB. 25

EXHIBITIONS

“Discolorations” work by
Karen Gallagher at  Branch
Gallery,  455 17th Street, Suite
301,  Oakland, through April 2.
508-1764. bayvan.org

READINGS AND LECTURES

“Milvia Street” Join the con-
tributors to Berkeley City Col-
lege’s art and literary journal at
6 p.m. at University Press Books,
2430 Bancroft Way. 548-0585.
www.universitypressbooks.com

Diego Rivera’s Murals a lec-
ture by Graham Beal on “Mutu-
al Admiration: Rivera, Ford and
the Detroit Industry Murals” at
5 p.m. in the Geballe Room,
Townsend Center, 220
Stephens Hall, UC campus.
642-2088.

Kim Stanley Robinson and
Terry Bisson read from their
new science fiction novels at
7:30 p.m. at Pegasus Books
Downtown, 2349 Shattuck Ave.
649-1320.

Poetry Flash “Van Gogh’s Ear”
the love edition with editor
Sawn-Michelle Baude and con-
tributors at 7:30 p.m. at Moe’s
books, 2475 Telegraph. 849-
2087. 

Gordon Edgar on “Cheese-
monger: A Life on the  Wedge”
at 7 p.m. at Books  Inc., 1760
4th St. 525-7777.

Black History Month Open
Mic Poetry Night on the
theme “What does Liberation
Look Like?” at 7 p.m. at Revolu-
tion Books, 2425 Channing
Way. 848-1196.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Anne Feeney, singer-song-
writer at 7 p.m. at Redwood
Gardens, 2951 Derby St. 848-
6397.

Evie Laden at 8 p.m. at Freight
and Salvage. Cost is $18.50-
$19.50. 548-1761. www.freigh-
tandsalvage.org

Women Jam at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

The Golden Path at 10 p.m.
at Beckett’s Irish Pub, 2271
Shattuck Ave. 647-1790.
www.beckettsirishpub.com

Matt Payne, Sparky Grin-
stead, Teri Falini at 9 p.m. at
The Starry Plough. Cost is $5.
841-2082. www.starryplough-
pub.com

FRIDAY, FEB. 26

THEATER

Aurora Theatre “The First
Grade” at 2081 Addison St.,
through Feb. 28. Tickets are
$15-$55. 843-4822. aurorathe-
atre.org

Berkeley Rep “Coming
Home”  at 2025 Addison St.,
through Feb. 28. Tickets are
$33-$71. 647-2949. berke-
leyrep.org

Berkeley Rep “Concerning
Strange Devices from the
Distant West” through April
11. Tickets are $33-$71. 647-
2949. berkeleyrep.org

Continued on 
Page Seventeen

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #E 
Berkeley Daily Planet 02/18-24/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



THE BERKELEY DAILY PLANETFebruary 18-24, 2010 Page 17

ARTS CALENDAR
Central Works “An Anony-
mous Story” by Anton
Chekhov opens and runs
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 5
p.m. at The Berkeley City Club,
2315 Durant Ave. Tickets are
$14-$25. 558-1381. www.cen-
tralworks.org

“Come Home” with Jovelyn
Richards in celebration of Black
History Month at 7:30 p.m. at
La Peña Cultural Center. Cost is
$15-$18.  849-2568.
www.lapena.org

Community Works’ “Man.
Alive.” A collaboration of for-
mally incarcerated men, com-
munity and professional artists
Fri. and Sat. at 8 p.m. at Ashby
Stage, 1901 Ashby Ave. Tickets
are $14. 845-3332. brownpa-
pertickets.com

Contra Costa Civic Theater
“Over the Tavern” a family
comedy by Tom Dudzick, Fri.
and Sat. at 8 .m., Sun. at 2
p.m. at 951 Pomona Ave., El
Cerrito, through Feb. 28. Tick-
ets are $11-$18. 524-9012.
www.ccct.org

Don Reed “East 14th – True
Tales of a Reluctant Player”
Fri. and Sat. through Feb. 27 at
Laney College Theater, 900 Fallon
St., Oakland. Tickets are $20-$50.
www.east14thoak.eventbrite.com

Impact Theatre “Learn To Be
Latina” Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at
La Val’s Subterranean, 1834
Euclid Ave., through March 27.
Tickets are $12-$20. impactthe-
atre.com

Masquers Playhouse
“Kitchen Witches” Fri. and
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 2:30
p.m. at 105 Park Place, Point
Richmond, and runs through
Feb. 27. Tickets are $18. 232-
4031. www.masquers.org

Ragged Wing “Handless”
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at Central
Stage, 5221 Central Ave., Rich-
mond, through March 27. Tick-
ets are $15-430. 800-838-
3006. www.raggedwing.org

Youth Musical Theater Com-
pany “Once Upon a Mat-
tress” at 7:30 p.m., Sat. at  2
p.m. and 7:30 p.m., Sun. at 3
p.m., at Julia Morgan Theater,
2640 College Ave. Tickets are
$10-$20. 1-800-838-3006.
www.brownpapertickets.com

MUSIC AND DANCE

Berkeley Opera “Don Gio-
vanni” at 8 p.m. at El Cerrito
Performing Arts Theater, 540
Asbury Ave., at El Cerrito High
School. Tickets are $15-$65. 1-
800-838-3006. www.brownpa-
prtickets.com

Malcolm Bilson, piano, at 8
p.m. at Hertz Hall, UC campus.
Free.  642-4864.
http://music.berkeley.edu

Oakland East Bay Symphony
“Views of America” with pre-
mier by Rebeca Mauleón at 8
p.m. at Paramount Theater,
Oakland. Tickets are $20-$65.
www.oebs.org

Leyya Tawil’s Dance Elixer
“Saints + Angels” at 6:30 and
9 p.m. at Temescal Arts Center,
511 48th St., Oakland. Free.
www.danceElixir.org

Abigail Hosein Dance Com-
pany “Here, Look” at Fri. and
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 6 p.m. at
Shawl-Anderson Dance Center,
2704 Alcatraz. Tickets are $15-
$20. Advance purchase recom-
mended. 654-5921.
www.brownpapertickets.com

The Tammy L. Hall Trio at 8
p.m. at the Jazzschool. Cost is
$15. 845-5373. 

Mike Marshall & Darol
Anger and Vasen at 8 p.m. at
Freight and Salvage. Cost is
$24.50-$25.50. 548-1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Richard Buckner at 9:30 p.m.
at The Starry Plough. Cost is
$12-$14. 841-2082. 

JeeJahs at 7 p.m. at Chester’s
Bay View Cafe, 1508 Walnut St.
849-9995.

Socket at 8 p.m. at Jupiter.
843-8277.

SATURDAY, FEB. 27

CHILDREN 

Los Amiguitos de La Peña
with Gerry Tenney at 10:30
a.m. at La Peña. Cost is $5 for
adults, $4 for children. 849-
2568. www.lapena.org

Thacher Hurd reads from “Bad
Frogs” at 11 a.m. at Books  Inc,
1760  4th St. 525-7777.

THEATER

“Reality Playthings” experi-
ments with experience with
Frank Moore at 8 p.m. at
Temescal Arts Center, 511 48th
St., Oakland. 526-7858. 

Live Oak Laughs Standup
Comedy Show with Dhaya
Lakshminarayanan, Ryan Kasmi-
er, Kevin Munroe, Brendan
Lynch and others at 8:30 p.m.
at Live Oak Theater, 1301 Shat-
tuck Ave.   Tickets are $8 at the
door.

FILM

“XXY” Argentine film directed
by Lucia Puenzo at 3 p.m. at
Claremont Branch Library, 2940
Benvenue Ave. Free. 981-6280.

READINGS AND LECTURES

Lucha Corpi introduces her lat-
est mystery novel “Death at Sol-
stice” at 7 p.m. at Rebecca’s
Books, 3268 Adeline St. 852-
4768.

MUSIC AND DANCE

SUN Quartet, all-Brahms con-
cert, at 8 p.m. at the Hillside
Club, Cedar at Arch. Tickets are
$10-$15. www.hillsideclub.org

Oakland Public Conservatory
of Music Symphony Orches-
tra “Symphonic Works of
African-American Composers”
at 3:30 p.m. at Oakland Veter-
an’s Hall, 200 Grand Ave. at
Harrison St., Oakland. Free.
836-4649. www.opcmusic.org

Kensington Symphony
Orchestra with Golden Gate
Philharmonic Camerata at 8
p.m. at Unitarian Universalist
Church, 1 Lawson Rd., Kensing-
ton. Suggested donation $12-
$15. 524-9912. www.kensing-
tonsymphonyorchestra.org

American Bach Soloists
Bach’s “St. John Passion” at 8
p.m. at  First Congregational
Church, 2345 Channing Way.
Pre-concert lecture at 7 p.m.
Tickets are $18-$45. 415-621-
7900. americanbach.org

Lora Chiorah & Sukutai
Marimba & Dance Ensemble
at 8 p.m. at La Peña Cultural
Center. Cost is $20-$22. 849-
2568. www.lapena.org

The Junius Courtney Big
Band with Denise Perrier at 8
p.m. at Freight and Salvage.
Cost is $18.50-$19.50. 548-
1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Art Lande “Old Wine, New
Bottles” at 8 p.m. at the Jaz-
zschool. Cost is $18. 845-5373. 

World Famous at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

Jacques Ibula at 10 p.m. at
Beckett’s Irish Pub, 2271 Shat-
tuck Ave. 647-1790. 

Lagtime, featuring Kyle
Mueller, at 8 p.m. at Jupiter.
843-8277.

Hali Hammer and Friends at
7:30 p.m. at Art House Gallery,
2905 Shattuck Ave. Donation
$10. 472-3170.

SUNDAY, FEB. 28

EXHIBITIONS

Drawings by Juana Calfunao
on her struggle to reclaim
ancestral lands from logging
corporations. Reception at 3:30
p.m. at La Peña Cultural Center.
849-2568. www.lapena.org

Critique of “The Modernists”
Show at 1 p.m. at Expressions
Gallery,  2035 Ashby Ave. 644-
4930. expressionsgallery.org

Drawings by Larry Melnick
on display from 2 to 6 p.m. at
Art House Gallery, 2905 Shat-
tuck Ave. Donation $5. 482-
3336.

READINGS AND LECTURES

Rafael Jesús González “La
musa lunática / The Lunatic
Muse” at 3:30 p.m. at Berkeley
Fellowship of Unitarian Univer-
salists, 1924  Cedar St. 841-
4824. www.bfuu.org

Poetry Reading with Luis Gar-
cia, Robin Standish, Jim Barnard
and Nance Wogan from 2 to 5
p.m. at Art House Gallery, 2905
Shattuck Ave. Donation $5.
482-3336.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Berkeley Opera “Don Gio-
vanni” at 2 p.m. at El Cerrito
Performing Arts Theater, 540
Asbury Ave., at El Cerrito High
School. Tickets are $15-$65. 1-
800-838-3006. www.brownpa-
prtickets.com

Stephanie Crawford at 4:30
p.m. at the Jazzschool. Cost is
$15. 845-5373. www.jaz-
zschool.com

Mary Gauthier at 8 p.m. at
Freight and Salvage. Cost is
$20.50-$21.50. 548-1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Celu and Friends at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

Continued from 
Page Sixteen

By GAR SMITH
Special to the Planet

The Oscar-nominated documentary
The Most Dangerous Man in Ameri-
ca is like Avatar for activists. Slip

into this movie and suddenly you’re riding
shotgun on Daniel Ellsberg’s shoulder as
the Pentagon war planner turned peace
activist makes the fateful decision that will
eventually topple a president. But, for all
its national and geopolitical ramifications,
Dangerous Man is a hometown product.
Daniel and Patricia Ellsberg reside in
Kensington and co-directors Rick Gold-
smith and Judith Ehrlich are based in
Berkeley. Goldsmith has an office at the
Saul Zaentz Media Center in West Berke-
ley; Ehrlich teaches film at Berkeley City
College and rents workspace over Bubi’s. 

Dan Ellsberg was not just another war
hawk. A former Marine company com-
mander with a Harvard Ph.D., Ellsberg
wrote Lyndon Johnson’s Tonkin Gulf
speech—framing the hoax that launched
the nation into war—and ginned up evi-
dence to justify the carpet-bombing of
Vietnam. But pouring over all 7,000 pages
of the Pentagon Papers, Ellsberg discov-
ered how five presidents—Truman, Eisen-
hower, Kennedy, Johnson and Nixon—had
all brazenly lied to the American people
about Vietnam. “It’s not that we were on
the wrong side,” Ellsberg realized. “We
were the wrong side. It was a crime from
the start.”

Ellsberg’s physical appearance began to
reflect his moral conversion. The Marine
buzz-cut gave way to sideburns and a
crown of ’60s curls as Rambo morphed into
Rimbaud. But the reborn anti-war strate-
gist soon found that evidence of a crime is
useless if you can’t hand it to the cops. Ells-
berg gave the Pentagon Papers to several
anti-war politicians—including presidential
candidate George McGovern—but no one
dared reveal the damning information con-

tained in a top-secret document. After the
politicians failed him, Ellsberg leaked the
Pentagon Papers to the New York Times.
When White House lawyers tried to silence
the Times, the news establishment famous-
ly revolted—one newspaper after another
publishing portions of the leaked docu-
ment. It was the Fourth Estate’s version of
the Sproul Hall sit-in. 

Ellsberg and Tony Russo went on trial
for “theft” in 1973 but, after four months,
the trial collapsed around revelations that
Nixon’s “plumbers” had illegally tapped
Ellsberg’s phone and burglarized the office
of his psychiatrist. (The White House also
screwed up by attempting to bribe the
judge by offering him the directorship of
the FBI.) All charges were dismissed and
the defendants were freed—and free to
speak. 

That same week, Congress voted to cut
off further funding for the war, but still the
war dragged on. Whenever Dan and Patri-
cia spoke to the media, they made a point
to mention the number of U.S. bombs
dropped over Southeast Asia: “200,000
tons! One Hiroshima a week!” Sadly, Ells-
berg recalls, the press “didn’t even men-
tion we’d said it, let alone reflect on the
fact that it was happening.” Exposing lies
was not enough, Ellsberg learned. People
looked at the evidence, absorbed it, and
moved on to something else. Had Nixon
been impeached and jailed, that might
have halted the metastasis of the Imperial
Presidency.

The film meticulously recreates Ells-
berg’s film-noir, think-tank world with
’60s-era manual typewriters and bakelite
desk phones. Xerox offered a vintage copi-
er but the logistics proved too daunting for
a low-budget documentary, so Ehrlich’s
husband, Nick Bertoni of the Tinker’s
Workshop, fabricated a passable look-alike
out of truck parts. But who provided the
copies of the Pentagon Papers that appear
in the film? Did Ellsberg keep a personal

copy all these years? 
“We made them, “ Ehrlich chuckles.

“We worked from the real documents in
the National Archives.” Goldsmith adds:
“One of our researchers dug out photo-
copies of the cover at the LBJ library in
Texas. We reproduced them and made our
own Pentagon Papers.” 

It took six months of wooing before Ells-
berg agreed to let Rick and Judy transform
his book, Secrets, into a film. With three
other filmmakers bidding for the opportu-
nity, it probably helped that Ellsberg had
worked with Judy on her earlier award-
winning PBS documentary, The Good War
and Those Who Refused to Fight It. 

“He gave us total editorial control. He
was very clear about that,” Judy told the
Planet. Dan and Patricia didn’t see the film
until the filmmakers screened a “fine cut”
at the Ellsberg’s home. “Dan took out a
notepad and started taking notes,” Judy
recalls, “He’s always taking notes.” The
next day, Ellsberg told the filmmakers he’d
watched the DVD five more times and had
a few suggestions. “He gave us 22-pages of
single-spaced commentary!” Judy recalls.
She described the notes as “extremely
helpful and detailed.” 

There was a debate over whether to
have Ellsberg narrate the film. In the end,
Ellsberg agreed to lend his voice—as one
of many compelling speakers in the film.
With Ellsberg’s voice emerging over
archival photos and videos, we seem to be
inside Ellsberg’s head, listening to his
thoughts rather than listening to a narra-
tive.

Twenty remarkable interviews are fea-
tured, including sit-downs with two former
Nixon operatives (John Dean and Egil
“Bud” Krogh) and Ellsberg’s long-time
friend and fellow activist, the late historian
Howard Zinn. “They said we’d never get
Kissinger, and they were right!” Rick
chuckles. Ditto Al Haig. The filmmakers
did manage to catch up with Pulitzer Prize-

winning journalist David Halberstam fol-
lowing a speech at UC Berkeley. After
recording a fascinating interview on “a
crappy tape-recorder that wasn’t broadcast
quality,” Halberstam signed on to the proj-
ect. Tragically, he was killed in a car crash
later that night. 

There’s a marvelous scene in Dangerous
Man where a gray-haired Ellsberg is enter-
taining children at a Berkeley garden party.
The kids gape and giggle as Ellsberg pulls
colored scarves out of his hands and makes
them vanish. This is followed by a moment
of pure cinematic magic: Thanks to a film
editor who found an old 8mm clip, we next
see Ellsberg in the 1960s, doing magic
tricks with scarves and delighting a group
of laughing children in a village in Viet-
nam.

“That’s something we discovered about
Dan,” Judy says. “He’s always carrying
scarves in his pockets.” She speculates that
this gift for sleight-of-hand may have
helped Ellsberg whisk the Pentagon Papers
past the Rand Corporation’s security
guards.

The filmmakers caught another extraor-
dinary moment where Ellsberg and Randy
Kehler are reminiscing at a kitchen table
and Ellsberg suddenly breaks into tears.
He has just recalled the speech that Kehler,
then a young draft resister, gave as he pre-
pared to face prison. His voice breaking,
Ellsberg explains that was the moment that
changed his life. The moment when he
knew he needed to break the law, betray
his professional trust and risk his personal
freedom to get the Pentagon Papers before
the eyes of the public.

“So few of us have a moment like that,”
Judy marvels. But this extraordinary
moment almost didn’t happen. On the day
of the shoot, she explains, “everyone was
busy and needed to be somewhere else.
There wasn’t even time for a proper light-

The Most Dangerous Man in Kensington
ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT

Continued on Page Eighteen

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #E 
Berkeley Daily Planet 02/18-24/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



THE BERKELEY DAILY PLANETPage 6 Feb. 25-March 5, 2010

COMMUNITY CALENDAR
THURSDAY, FEB. 25

Reduce Your Footprint in
2010 A community workshop on
how to reduce your global warm-
ing emissions at 7 p.m. at Berke-
ley Fellowship of Unitarian Uni-
versalists, 1924 Cedar St., at Boni-
ta. Free. 548-2220, ext. 240.

“David Brower and the Pearl
of Siberia: Lake Baikal in Con-
versation and Photographs” dis-
cussion about the environmental
challenges and successes of
Siberia's Lake Baikal, with wilder-
ness photographer Boyd Nor-
ton, Gary Cook of Baikal Watch,
Melissa Prager of Center for Safe
Energy, and John Knox of Earth
Island Institute at 7 p.m. at
David Brower Center, 2150 All-
ston Way. Tickets are $5-$20.
859-9161. cseprograms@igc.org

Berkeley Entrepreneurs
Forum “Going Public in 2010:
Is the Window Opening?” at
6:30 p.m. at Andersen Auditori-
um, Haas School of Business,
UC Berkeley. Cost is $20-$30.
642-4255. http://entrepreneur-
ship.berkeley.edu

Job Seeker Information Ses-
sion for Berkeley residents
receiving unemployment insur-
ance at 10 a.m. at North Cities
One Stop Career Center, 1918
Bonita Ave. 982-7128.
www.eastbayworks.com

Free Drop-in Beginning
Computer Class, Mon. at 6
p.m. and Thurs. at 10 a.m. at
Berkeley Public Library, 3rd flr.,
2090 Kittredge St. 981-6148.

Babies and Toddlers Story-
time at 10:15 and 11:15 a.m.
at the Kensington Library, 61
Arlington Ave., Kensington.
524-3043.

Circle of Concern Vigil meets
on West Lawn of UC campus
across from Addison and
Oxford, Thurs. at noon and
Sun. at 1 p.m. to oppose UC
weapons labs contracts. 848-
8055.

FRIDAY, FEB. 26
City Commons Club Noon
Luncheon with Norman Bowen
“Nuclear Non-Proliferation:
What Does It Really Mean?”
Luncheon at 11:45 a.m. for
$15, speech at 12:30 p.m., at
the Berkeley City Club, 2315
Durant St. For information and
reservations call 527-2173.
www.citycommonsclub.org

Bay Area Seed Interchange
Library 11th Annual Seed
Swap Potluck supper, hoe
down music, home-grown gar-
den seeds, and the company of
fantastic local gardeners! Learn
about seed saving classes and
the Library. BASIL is a project of
the Ecology Center. Please
bring a garden related “white
elephant” treasure to raffle. At 7
p.m. at the Ecology Center,
2530 San Pablo Ave. Cost is
food and seeds to share or $10
donation. 658-9178. 

Circle Dancing, simple folk
dancing with instruction.
Potluck at 7 p.m., dancing at 8
p.m. at Hillside Community
Church, 1422 Navellier St., El
Cerrito. Donation of $5 request-
ed. 528-4253.

Berkeley Women in Black
weekly vigil from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
Our focus is human rights in
Palestine. 548-6310.

Stand With Us Stand for
Peace Stand with Israel vigil
every Friday from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
www.sfvoiceforisrael.org

SATURDAY, FEB. 27
Help Restore Cerrito Creek
Plant natives and remove inva-
sives on Cerrito Creek at Albany
Hill with Friends of Five Creeks.
Meet at 10 a.m. at Creekside
Park, south end of Santa Clara
Ave., El Cerrito. All ages wel-
come; snacks, tools, and gloves
provided. Information at
www.fivecreeks.org

Wine and Chocolate Soiree
for Rosa Parks School from 6
to 9 .m. at West Berkeley Senior
center, 1900 6th St. Donation
$20-$60. Benefits the elemen-
tary school’s PTA supplemental
programs. 812-6860.

Susan G. Komen 3-Day for
the Cure Get Started Meet-
ing at 2:30 p.m. at Berkeley
Main Library, 2090 Kittredge
Street RSVP online at
www.The3Day.org

Black History Month Forum
“From Slavery to Mass Incar-
ceration” at 2 p.m. at Rock-
ridge Library, 5366 College
Ave., Oakland. Sponsored by
the Spartacist League and Labor
Black League for Social Defense.
839-0851.

Hike UC Campus and Sur-
roundings, five miles and some
modest elevation. Meet at
North Berkeley BART Station at
9:15 a.m.
robertper7@gmail.com

What’s It Worth? An
Antiques Appraisal Faire Pro-
fessional appraisers will tell you
the value of that family heir-
loom, that gizmo from Uncle,
the painting from the garage
sale, from 2 to 6 p.m. at Albany
Middle School, 1259 Brighton
Ave., Albany. Cost is $20 per
person for 2 portable items.
Extra items $10 each at the
door. Benefits Albany Rotary
Club local and international
programs. www.AlbanyCaRo-
tary.org/faire.

Saturday Afternoon at the
Movies View and discuss award
winning Independent and for-
eign films at 3 p.m. at Clare-
mont Branch Library, 2940 Ben-
venue Ave. To register for this
event call 981-6280.

Vegetable Garden Beds Learn
how to prepare for spring plant-
ing at 10 a.m. at Magic Gar-
dens Nursery, 729 Heinz Ave.
www.magicgardens.com

Family Open House at the
Freight and Salvage with work-
shops, jams, and performances
from noon to 4 p.m. at 2020
Addison St. www.freightandsal-
vage.org

King of the Carnival Week-
end at Playland-Not-At-The-
Beach Sat. and Sun. from 10
a.m. to 5 p.m. at 10979 San
Pablo Ave., El Cerrito. Cost is
$10-$15. 932-8966. www.play-
land-not-at-the-beach.org

Celebration of Purim, the
Jewish costume holiday, for
young children, at 10:30 a.m.
at Jewish Gateways, 409 Liberty
St., El Cerrito. RSVP required.
559-8140. www.jewishgate-
ways.org

Free Garden Tours at
Regional Parks Botanic Gar-
den Sat. at 2 p.m. and Sun. at
11 a.m. and 2 pm. Regional
Parks Botanic Garden, Tilden
Park. Call to confirm. 841-
8732. www.nativeplants.org

Lawn Bowling on the green at
the corner of Acton St. and
Bancroft Way every Wed. and
Sat. at 10 a.m. for ages 12 and
up. Wear flat soled shoes, no
heels. Free lessons. 841-2174.

SUNDAY, FEB. 28
“How We Can Complete the
Gaza Freedom March” with
Ali Abunimah, co-founder of the
Electronic Intifada, at 7 p.m. at
King Middle School, 1781 Rose
St. Benefit for children in Gaza.
Tickets are $8-$15. 548-0542.
www.mecaforpeace.org

“Marx vs. Keynes” at 10:30
a..m. at Niebyl-Proctor Marxist
Library, 6501 Telegraph Ave.
Oakland.

Tour of the Berkeley City
Club, designed by Julia Mor-
gan, from 1 to 4 p.m. at 2315
Durant Ave. Free, donations
accepted. www.landmarkher-
itagefoundation.org

Purim Carnival from 2 to 5
p.m. at the Jewish Community
Center, 1414 Walnut St. with
activities for children, carnival
booths and more. Come in cos-
tume. http://prod.jcceastbay.org

Lake Merritt Neighbors
Organized for Peace Meet at
3 p.m. at the colonnade at the
NE end of the lake. 763-8712.
lmno4p.org

MONDAY, MARCH 1
“East Bay Reservoirs: Curse
and Blessing” with former
EBMUD ranger, Bob Flasher at 7
p.m. at Albany Community
Center, 1249 Marin Ave. Free.
848-9358. www.fivecreeks.org

Castoffs Kniiting Group mets
at 7 p.m. at the Kensington
Library, 61 Arlington Ave., Kens-
ington. 524-3043.

Free Drop-in Beginning
Computer Class, Mon. at 6
p.m. and Thurs. at 10 a.m. at
bekeley Public Library, 3rd flr.,
2090 Kittredge St. 981-6148.

East Bay Track Club for ages
3-14 meets at 6 p.m. at the
running track of Berkeley High
School. For more information
call Coach Walker at 776-7451.

TUESDAY, MARCH 2
Berkeley School Volunteers,
New Volunteer Orientation
from 10 to 11 a.m. at 1835 All-
ston Way. Bring a photo ID and
two references to the orienta-
tion. Returning volunteers do
not need to attend. For further
information 644-8833.

Red Cross Blood Drive from
10 a.m. to 3 p.m. at Mills Col-
lege, Rothwell Center Student
Union, 5000 MacArthur Blvd.,
Oakland. To schedule an
appointment go to www.help-
savealife.org

Tuesday Tilden Walkers Join
a few slowpoke seniors at 9:30
a.m. in the parking lot near the
Little Farm for an hour or two
walk.  215-7672, 524-9992.

Homework Help at the
Albany Library for students in
grades 2 - 6, Tues. and Thurs.
from 3:15 to 5:15 p.m. at the
Albany Library, 1247 Marin Ave.
Emphasis on math and writing
skills. No registration is
required.  526-3720.

Homework Help Program at
the Richmond Public Library
Tues. and Thurs. from 3 to 5:30
p.m. at 325 Civic Center Plaza.
For more information or to
enroll, call 620-6557.

Street Level Cycles Commu-
nity Bike Program Come use
our tools as well as receive help
with performing repairs free of
charge. Youth classes available.
Tues., Thurs., Sat. and Sun.
from 2 to 6 p.m. at at 84 Boli-
var Dr., Aquatic Park. 644-
2577. 

Berkeley Camera Club meets
at 7:30 p.m., at the Northbrae
Community Church, 941 The
Alameda. Share your digital
images, slides and prints and
learn what other photographers
are doing. Monthly field trips.
548-3991. www.berkeleycam-
eraclub.org

St. John’s Prime Timers
meets at 9:30 a.m. at St. John’s
Presbyterian Church, 2727 Col-
lege Ave. We offer ongoing
classes in exercise and creative
arts, and always welcome new
members over 50. 845-6830.

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 3
“Addressing Global Health: a
key priority for development”
with Ann Veneman, Executive
Director of UNICEF, at 6 p.m. at
Barrows Hall, UC Berkeley.
http://tinyurl.com/ye4jkha

“Money as Debt” A documen-
tary about bailouts, stimulus
packages, and more, at 7:30
p.m. at Humanist Hall, 390
27th St., Oakland. Donation $5.
www.Humanist Hall.org

Red Cross Blood Services
Volunteer Orientation from
10 a.m. to noon at 6230 Clare-
mont Ave., Oakland. Registra-
tion required. 594-5165.

Red Cross Blood Drive from
11 a.m. to 5 p.m. at American
Red Cross bus, 1200 Clay St.,
Oakland. To schedule an
appointment go to www.help-
savealife.org

BHS BSEP Committee meet-
ing to discuss the 2010-2011
budget at 4:30 p.m. in D Build-
ing conference room, Berkeley
high. 501-3307.

Walk Berkeley for Seniors
meets every Wednesday at 9:30
a.m. at the Sea Breeze Market,
just west of the I-80 overpass.
Everyone is welcome, wear
comfortable shoes and a warm
hat. 548-9840.

THURSDAY, MARCH 4
Native Plant Propagation
Join a friendly group of volun-
teers to propagate and maintain
plants for the Regional Parks
Botanic Garden’s plant sales.
The group meets at the garden
in the Potting Shed area of the
Juniper Lodge building on
Thursday mornings, from 9
a.m. to 11 a.m. at the Botanic
Gardens in Tilden Park. 544-
3169. www.nativeplants.org/
propagate.html.

Community Yoga Class:
Gentle Yoga, Thurs. at 10 a.m.
at James Kenney Parks and
Recreation Center, 8th St. and
Virginia. Cost is $6. Mats pro-
vided. 207-4501.

Free Drop-in Beginning
Computer Class, Mon. at 6
p.m. and Thurs. at 10 a.m. at
bekeley Public Library, 3rd flr.,
2090 Kittredge St. 981-6148.

FRIDAY, MARCH 5
City Commons Club Noon
Luncheon with Jim Horner,
Campus Landscape Architect on
“The Restoration of Sather Gate
at UC Berkeley” Luncheon at
11:45 a.m. for $15, speech at
12:30 p.m., at the Berkeley City
Club, 2315 Durant St. For infor-
mation and reservations call
527-2173. www.citycommon-
sclub.org

“The Philosophical Baby”
with author Alison Gopnik at 6
p.m. at Habitot Children’s
Museum, 2065 Kittredge St.
647-1111. www.habitot.org

Red Cross Blood Drive from
10 a.m. to 3 p.m. at Diocese of
Oakland, Church Hall, 2121
Harrison St., Oakland. To sched-
ule an appointment go to
www.helpsavealife.org

Berkeley Women in Black
weekly vigil from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
Our focus is human rights in
Palestine. 548-6310.

Stand With Us Stand for
Peace Stand with Israel vigil
every Friday from noon to 1
p.m. at Bancroft and Telegraph.
www.sfvoiceforisrael.org

SATURDAY, MARCH 6
South Berkeley Community
Church Annual Crab Feed
from 5 to 8 p.m. at 1802
Fairview St. Cost is $20-$40,
$75 for couples. 652-1040.

White Elephant Sale to bene-
fit the Oakland Museum of Cali-
fornia Sat. and Sun. from 10 to
4 p.m. at 333 Lancaster St., at
Glascock, on the Oakland Estu-
ary. 536-6800. www.whitele-
phantsale.org

Worm Composting Work-
shop especially for apartment
dwellers and those with limited
space, from 10 a.m. to noon at
EcoHouse, 1305 Hopkins St.,
enter via garden entrance on
Peralta. Free. 548-2220, ext.
239.

Banff Mountain Film
Festival, award-winning adven-
ture films, Sat. and Sun. from 7
to 10 p.m. at Wheeler Auditori-
um, UC campus. Tickets are
$15-$18. 527-4140.

“Public Education: Getting
Beyond Savage Inequalities”
discussion at 2 p.m. at Niebyl-
Proctor Marxist Library, 6501
Telegraph Ave., Oakland. 597-
7417. www.marxistlibr.org

Free Garden Tours at Region-
al Parks Botanic Garden Sat.
at 2 p.m. and Sun. at 11 a.m.
and 2 pm. Regional Parks Botan-
ic Garden, Tilden Park. Call to
confirm. 841-8732.

Lawn Bowling on the green at
the corner of Acton St. and
Bancroft Way every Wed. and
Sat. at 10 a.m. for ages 12 and
up. Wear flat soled shoes, no
heels. Free lessons. 841-2174.

SUNDAY, MARCH 7
“Visual Thinking Strategies
Workshop” with Philip Yenaw-
ine at 2 p.m. at Berkeley Art
Center, 1275 Walnut St. Cost is
$5-$10. RSVP to 644-6893.

Celebrate International
Women’s Day from 10:30
a.m. to 12:30 p.m. at Niebyl
Proctor Marxist Library, 6501
Telegraph Ave., Oakland.

Free Hands-on Bicycle Clinic
Learn how to repair a flat, from
10 to 11 a.m. at REI, 1338 San
Pablo Ave. Bring your bike and
tools. 527-4140.

“The Dynamic Pelvis: The
Link between the Upper and
Lower Body” Discover your
body’s natural bone rhythms to
express freedom in your move-
ment, from 3 to 6 p.m. at Stu-
dio B at Berkeley Ballet Theater,
2640 College Ave. Cost is $40-
$48. 843-4687.

Lake Merritt Neighbors
Organized for Peace Meet at
3 p.m. at the colonnade at the
NE end of the lake. 763-8712. 

CITY MEETINGS
Mental Health Commission
meets Thurs., Feb. 25, at 5 p.m.
at 2640 MLK Jr. Way, at Derby.
981-5217. 

Zoning Adjustments Board
meets Thurs., Feb. 25, at 7
p.m., in City Council Chambers.
981-7430.

Council Agenda Committee
meets Mon, March 1, at 2:30
p.m., at 2180 Milvia St. 981-
6900.

Landmarks Preservation
Commission meets Thurs.
March 4, at 7 p.m., at the
North Berkeley Senior Center.
981-7429.

ONGOING
Berkeley Housing Authority
Five Year Plan and Fiscal Year
Plan Public comments are being
accepted by email to
BHA@ci.berkeley.ca.us or at
BHA office, 1901 Frairview St.
The plan is available at the
office. A Public Hearing will be
held April 8 at 6 p.m. at the
North Berkeley Senior Center,
1901 Hearst.

Half Pint Library Book Drive
Children’s books will be collect-
ed for distribution to pediatric
clinics and community centers.
Drop off books through March
31 at Half Price Books, 2036
Shattuck Ave.

The Daily Planet — Covering the World of Berkeley Online
at www.berkeleydailyplanet.com

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #F 
Berkeley Daily Planet 02/25-03/03/2010

efranklin
Rectangle

efranklin
Rectangle



THE BERKELEY DAILY PLANETFeb. 25-March 5, 2010 Page 21

ARTS CALENDAR
THURSDAY, FEB. 25

EXHIBITIONS

“Discolorations” work by
Karen Gallagher at  Branch
Gallery,  455 17th Street, Suite
301,  Oakland, through April 2.
508-1764. bayvan.org

READINGS AND LECTURES

“Milvia Street” Join the con-
tributors to Berkeley City Col-
lege’s art and literary journal at
6 p.m. at University Press Books,
2430 Bancroft Way. 548-0585.
www.universitypressbooks.com

Diego Rivera’s Murals a lec-
ture by Graham Beal on “Mutu-
al Admiration: Rivera, Ford and
the Detroit Industry Murals” at
5 p.m. in the Geballe Room,
Townsend Center, 220
Stephens Hall, UC campus.
642-2088.

Kim Stanley Robinson and
Terry Bisson read from their
new science fiction novels at
7:30 p.m. at Pegasus Books
Downtown, 2349 Shattuck Ave.
649-1320.

Poetry Flash “Van Gogh’s Ear”
the love edition with editor
Sawn-Michelle Baude and con-
tributors at 7:30 p.m. at Moe’s
books, 2475 Telegraph. 849-
2087. 

Gordon Edgar on “Cheese-
monger: A Life on the  Wedge”
at 7 p.m. at Books  Inc., 1760
4th St. 525-7777.

Black History Month Open
Mic Poetry Night on the
theme “What does Liberation
Look Like?” at 7 p.m. at Revolu-
tion Books, 2425 Channing
Way. 848-1196.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Anne Feeney, singer-song-
writer at 7 p.m. at Redwood
Gardens, 2951 Derby St. 848-
6397.

Evie Laden at 8 p.m. at Freight
and Salvage. Cost is $18.50-
$19.50. 548-1761. www.freigh-
tandsalvage.org

Women Jam at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

The Golden Path at 10 p.m.
at Beckett’s Irish Pub, 2271
Shattuck Ave. 647-1790.
www.beckettsirishpub.com

Matt Payne, Sparky Grin-
stead, Teri Falini at 9 p.m. at
The Starry Plough. Cost is $5.
841-2082. www.starryplough-
pub.com

FRIDAY, FEB. 26

THEATER

Aurora Theatre “The First
Grade” at 2081 Addison St.,
through Feb. 28. Tickets are
$15-$55. 843-4822. aurorathe-
atre.org

Berkeley Rep “Coming
Home”  at 2025 Addison St.,
through Feb. 28. Tickets are
$33-$71. 647-2949. berke-
leyrep.org

Berkeley Rep “Concerning
Strange Devices from the
Distant West” through April
11. Tickets are $33-$71. 647-
2949. berkeleyrep.org

Central Works “An Anony-
mous Story” by Anton
Chekhov opens and runs
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 5
p.m. at The Berkeley City Club,
2315 Durant Ave. Tickets are
$14-$25. 558-1381. www.cen-
tralworks.org

“Come Home” with Jovelyn
Richards in celebration of Black
History Month at 7:30 p.m. at
La Peña Cultural Center. Cost is
$15-$18.  849-2568.
www.lapena.org

Community Works’ “Man.
Alive.” A collaboration of for-
mally incarcerated men, com-
munity and professional artists
Fri. and Sat. at 8 p.m. at Ashby
Stage, 1901 Ashby Ave. Tickets
are $14. 845-3332. brownpa-
pertickets.com

Contra Costa Civic Theater
“Over the Tavern” a family
comedy by Tom Dudzick, Fri.
and Sat. at 8 .m., Sun. at 2
p.m. at 951 Pomona Ave., El
Cerrito, through Feb. 28. Tick-
ets are $11-$18. 524-9012.
www.ccct.org

Don Reed “East 14th – True
Tales of a Reluctant Player”
Fri. and Sat. through Feb. 27 at
Laney College Theater, 900 Fallon
St., Oakland. Tickets are $20-$50.
www.east14thoak.eventbrite.com

Impact Theatre “Learn To Be
Latina” Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at
La Val’s Subterranean, 1834
Euclid Ave., through March 27.
Tickets are $12-$20. impactthe-
atre.com

Masquers Playhouse
“Kitchen Witches” Fri. and
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 2:30
p.m. at 105 Park Place, Point
Richmond, and runs through
Feb. 27. Tickets are $18. 232-
4031. www.masquers.org

Ragged Wing “Handless”
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at Central
Stage, 5221 Central Ave., Rich-
mond, through March 27. Tick-
ets are $15-430. 800-838-
3006. www.raggedwing.org

Youth Musical Theater Com-
pany “Once Upon a Mat-
tress” at 7:30 p.m., Sat. at  2
p.m. and 7:30 p.m., Sun. at 3
p.m., at Julia Morgan Theater,
2640 College Ave. Tickets are
$10-$20. www.brownpapertick-
ets.com

READINGS AND LECTURES

James Cagney, Tureeda Mikell
and Myronn Hardy read their
poetry at 7 p.m. at Rebecc’as
books, 3268 Adeline St.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Berkeley Opera “Don Gio-
vanni” at 8 p.m. at El Cerrito
Performing Arts Theater, 540
Asbury Ave., at El Cerrito High
School. Tickets are $15-
$65.www.brownpaprtickets.com

Malcolm Bilson, piano, at 8
p.m. at Hertz Hall, UC campus.
Free.  642-4864.
http://music.berkeley.edu

Oakland East Bay Symphony
“Views of America” with pre-
mier by Rebeca Mauleón at 8
p.m. at Paramount Theater,
Oakland. Tickets are $20-$65.
www.oebs.org

The Bernal Hill Players, classi-
cal, romantic and contemporary
chamber music, at 7:30 p.m. at
Pro Arts, 150 Frank Ogawa
Plaza, Oakland. Tickets are $12-
$18. www.bayareabach.org

Leyya Tawil’s Dance Elixer
“Saints + Angels” at 6:30 and
9 p.m. at Temescal Arts Center,
511 48th St., Oakland. Free.
www.danceElixir.org

Abigail Hosein Dance Com-
pany “Here, Look” at Fri. and
Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 6 p.m. at
Shawl-Anderson Dance Center,
2704 Alcatraz. Tickets are $15-
$20. Advance purchase recom-
mended. 654-5921.
www.brownpapertickets.com

The Tammy L. Hall Trio at 8
p.m. at the Jazzschool. Cost is
$15. 845-5373. 

Mike Marshall & Darol
Anger and Vasen at 8 p.m. at
Freight and Salvage. Cost is
$24.50-$25.50. 548-1761. 

Richard Buckner at 9:30 p.m.
at The Starry Plough. Cost is
$12-$14. 841-2082. 

JeeJahs at 7 p.m. at Chester’s
Bay View Cafe, 1508 Walnut St.
849-9995.

SATURDAY, FEB. 27

CHILDREN 

Los Amiguitos de La Peña
with Gerry Tenney at 10:30
a.m. at La Peña. Cost is $5 for
adults, $4 for children. 849-
2568. www.lapena.org

Thacher Hurd reads from “Bad
Frogs” at 11 a.m. at Books  Inc,
1760  4th St. 525-7777.

THEATER

Live Oak Laughs Standup
Comedy Show with Dhaya
Lakshminarayanan, Ryan Kasmi-
er, Kevin Munroe, Brendan
Lynch and others at 8:30 p.m.
at Live Oak Theater, 1301 Shat-
tuck Ave.   Tickets are $8 at the
door.

“Reality Playthings” experi-
ments with experience with
Frank Moore at 8 p.m. at
Temescal Arts Center, 511 48th
St., Oakland. 526-7858.
www.eroplay.com

FILM

“XXY” Argentine film directed
by Lucia Puenzo at 3 p.m. at
Claremont Branch Library, 2940
Benvenue Ave. Free. 981-6280.

READINGS AND LECTURES

Lucha Corpi introduces her lat-
est mystery novel “Death at Sol-
stice” at 7 p.m. at Rebecca’s
Books, 3268 Adeline St. 852-
4768.

MUSIC AND DANCE

SUN Quartet, all-Brahms con-
cert, at 8 p.m. at the Hillside
Club, Cedar at Arch. Tickets are
$10-$15. www.hillsideclub.org

Oakland Public Conservatory
of Music Symphony Orches-
tra “Symphonic Works of
African-American Composers”
at 3:30 p.m. at Oakland Veter-
an’s Hall, 200 Grand Ave. at
Harrison St., Oakland. Free.
836-4649. www.opcmusic.org

Kensington Symphony
Orchestra with Golden Gate
Philharmonic Camerata at 8
p.m. at Unitarian Universalist
Church, 1 Lawson Rd., Kensing-
ton. Suggested donation $12-
$15. 524-9912. www.kensing-
tonsymphonyorchestra.org

American Bach Soloists
Bach’s “St. John Passion” at 8
p.m. at  First Congregational
Church, 2345 Channing Way.
Pre-concert lecture at 7 p.m.
Tickets are $18-$45. 415-621-
7900. americanbach.org

Lora Chiorah & Sukutai
Marimba & Dance Ensemble
at 8 p.m. at La Peña Cultural
Center. Cost is $20-$22. 849-
2568. www.lapena.org

The Junius Courtney Big
Band with Denise Perrier at 8
p.m. at Freight and Salvage.
Cost is $18.50-$19.50. 548-
1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Art Lande “Old Wine, New
Bottles” at 8 p.m. at the Jaz-
zschool. Cost is $18. 845-5373.
www.jazzschool.com

World Famous at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

Jacques Ibula at 10 p.m. at
Beckett’s Irish Pub, 2271 Shat-
tuck Ave. 647-1790.
www.beckettsirishpub.com

Lagtime, featuring Kyle
Mueller, at 8 p.m. at Jupiter.
843-8277.

Hali Hammer and Friends at
7:30 p.m. at Art House Gallery,
2905 Shattuck Ave. Donation
$10. 472-3170.

SUNDAY, FEB. 28

EXHIBITIONS

Drawings by Juana Calfunao
on her struggle to reclaim
ancestral lands from logging
corporations. Reception at 3:30
p.m. at La Peña Cultural Center.
849-2568. www.lapena.org

Critique of “The Modernists”
Show at 1 p.m. at Expressions
Gallery,  2035 Ashby Ave. 644-
4930. expressionsgallery.org

Drawings by Larry Melnick
on display from 2 to 6 p.m. at
Art House Gallery, 2905 Shat-
tuck Ave. Donation $5. 482-
3336.

READINGS AND LECTURES

Rafael Jesús González “La
musa lunática / The Lunatic
Muse” at 3:30 p.m. at Berkeley
Fellowship of Unitarian Universal-
ists, 1924  Cedar St. 841-4824.

Poetry Reading with Luis Gar-
cia, Robin Standish, Jim Barnard
and Nance Wogan from 2 to 5
p.m. at Art House Gallery, 2905
Shattuck Ave. Donation $5.
482-3336.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Berkeley Opera “Don Gio-
vanni” at 2 p.m. at El Cerrito
Performing Arts Theater, 540
Asbury Ave., at El Cerrito High
School. Tickets are $15-$65. 1-
800-838-3006. www.brownpa-
prtickets.com

San Francisco Chamber
Orchestra with Piedmont East
Bay Children’s Choir at noon at
Julia Morgan theatr, 2640 Col-
lege Ave. Free. www.juliamor-
gan.org

Stephanie Crawford at 4:30
p.m. at the Jazzschool. Cost is
$15. 845-5373. 

Mary Gauthier at 8 p.m. at
Freight and Salvage. Cost is
$20.50-$21.50. 548-1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Celu and Friends at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

MONDAY, MARCH 1

THEATER

“Hamlet: Blood in the Brain”
California Shakespeare Theater
and Oakland Technical High
School present scenes, followed
byQ&A with actors from both
the original production and
Oakland Tech’s production, at
6:30 p.m. at Oakland Technical
High School Auditorium, 4351
Broadway. Free.

READINGS AND LECTURES

“Listening to Movies” with
Mark Berger, four time Oscar
winner for Sound Design, at
7:30 p.m. at The Hillside Club,
2286 Cedar St. Cost is $5. 848-
3227.

John Carroll in Conversation
with Scott Rosenberg at 7
p.m. at Berkeley Rep, 2025
Addison St. Benefit for Park Day
School. Tickets are $30. 653-
0317, 103. www.Park-
DaySchool.org

Subterranean Shakespeare
“Comedy of Errors” staged
reading at 7:30 p.m. at Berkeley
Unitarian Fellowship, 1924
Cedar at Bonita. Tickets are $8.
276-3871.

“Philosophy for a Complex
Life” with Mark Vernon and
Astra Traylor at 7:30 p.m. at the
Hillside Club, 2286 Cedar St.,
Tickets are $12-$15. 800-838-
3006. brwonapapertickets.com

MUSIC AND DANCE

Haiti Relief Concert with
Wake the Dead, Rubber
Souldiers at 8 p.m. at Freight
and Salvage Coffee House. Cost
is $20.50-$21.50. 548-1761. 

TUESDAY, MARCH 2

READINGS AND LECTURES

Nicole Howard discusses her
new book, “The Book: The Life
Story of a Technology” at 5:30
p.m. at University Press Books,
2430 Bancroft Way. 548-0585.
www.universitypressbooks.com

MUSIC AND DANCE

CZ & The Bon Vivants at 8:30
p.m. at Ashkenaz. Cajun/
Zydeco dance lesson at 8 p.m.
Cost is $10. 525-5054.
www.ashkenaz.com

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 3

EXHIBITIONS

“The Sun” Contemporary sur-
realist art by Alejandro De La
Torre at 7 p.m. at La Peña Cul-
tural Center. Cost is $10. 849-
2568. www.lapena.org

READINGS AND LECTURES

Robert Hass reads from his
new book “Song of Myself: And
Other Poems by Walt Witman”
at 5:30 p.m. at University Press
Books, 2430 Bancroft Way.
548-0585. www.university-
pressbooks.com

YiYun Li reads from “The
Vagrants” a novel set in China
in the late 1970s, at 7:30 p.m.
at Pegasus Books Downtown,
2349 Shattuck Ave. 649-1320.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Music for the Spirit with Ron
McKean on pipe organ at 12:15
p.m. at First Presbyterian
Church of Oakland, 2619
Broadway. 444-3555.

Wednesday Noon Concert,
with Kevin Yu, cello, and Chen
Chen, piano, at Hertz Hall, UC
campus. Free. 642-4864.
http://music.berkeley.edu

Whiskey Brothers at 9 p.m. at
Albatross, 1822 San Pablo Ave.
843-2473.
www.albatrosspub.com

The California Honeydrops
at 8:30 p.m. at Ashkenaz.
Dance lesson at 8 p.m. Cost is
$10. 525-5054. www.ashke-
naz.com

Martin Pendergrast and
Sonic Safari, jazz, swing, at 7
p.m. at Chester’s Bay View
Cafe, 1508 Walnut St. 849-
9995.

Aux Cajunals with Brandon
Moreau at 8 p.m. at Freight
and Salvage. Cost is $18.50-
$19.50. 548-1761. www.freigh-
tandsalvage.org

THURSDAY, MARCH 4

FILM

Bayview Bookish Film Festi-
val Films based on books at
10:45 a.m. at Richmond Public
Library, Bayview Branch, 5100
Harnett Ave., Richmond. 620-
6566.

READINGS AND LECTURES

Lunch Poems Noontime poet-
ry reading with Natasha
Trethewey at Morrison Library,
101 Doe Library, UC campus.
642-3761. lunchpoems.berke-
ley.edu

“Process & Place” Artist panel
presentation and walk-through,
moderated by Ann Weber at 7
p.m. at Berkeley At Center,
1275 Walnut St. Cost is $5-$10,
free for members. Please RSVP.
644-6893. annw@berkeleyart-
center.org

“Girldrive” with journalist
Nona Willis Aronowitz and pho-
tographer Emma Bee Bernstein
at 7:30 p.m. at Moe’s Books,
2476 Telegraph Ave. 849-
2087.

Alva Noe discusses her new
book, “Out of Our Heads: Why
Your Are Not Your Brain, and
Other Lessons From the Biology
of Consciousness” at 5:30 p.m.
at University Press Books, 2430
Bancroft Way. 548-0585.
www.universitypressbooks.com

MUSIC AND DANCE

Fill-In Friends, Greatful Dead
night, at 9:30 p.m. at Ashkenaz.
Cost is $8-$10. 525-5054.
www.ashkenaz.com

Dry Branch Fire Squad at 8
p.m. at Freight and Salvage.
Cost is $18.50-$19.50. 548-
1761.
www.freightandsalvage.org

Jam Night at 7 p.m. at
Chester’s Bay View Cafe, 1508
Walnut St. 849-9995.

FRIDAY, MARCH 5

THEATER

Berkeley Rep “Concerning
Strange Devices from the
Distant West” through April
11. Tickets are $33-$71. 647-
2949. berkeleyrep.org

Central Works “An Anony-
mous Story” by Anton
Chekhov opens and runs
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 5
p.m. at The Berkeley City Club,
2315 Durant Ave. Tickets are
$14-$25. 558-1381. www.cen-
tralworks.org

Impact Theatre “Learn To Be
Latina” Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at
La Val’s Subterranean, 1834
Euclid Ave., through March 27.
Tickets are $12-$20. impactthe-
atre.com

Ragged Wing “Handless”
Thurs.-Sat. at 8 p.m. at Central
Stage, 5221 Central Ave., Rich-
mond, through March 27. Tick-
ets are $15-430. 800-838-
3006. www.raggedwing.org

TDPS “Slaughter City” Fri.
and Sat. at 8 p.m., Sun. at 2
p.m. through March 14 at
Zellerbach Playhouse, UC cam-
pus. Tickets are $10-$15. 642-
8827. tdps.berkeley.edu

EXHIBITIONS

“The World Turned Inside
Out” Photographs by Noele
Lusano. Reception at 7 p.m. at
Oakopolis, 447 25th St., Oak-
land. 663-6920.

“Lo-Lustre” works by Barbara
Holmes and Marie Reich. Recep-
tion at 7 p.m. at The Com-
pound Gallery, 6604 San Pablo
Ave., Oakland. 655-9019.
www.thecompoundgallery.com

FILM

“Wait Until Dark” by Orson
Welles at 8 p.m. at Paramount
Theatre, 2025 Broadway, Oak-
land. Tickets are $5. 800-745-
3000.

MUSIC AND DANCE

Friday Noon Concert, with
chamber music from student
musicians, at Hertz Hall, UC
campus. Free. 642-4864.
http://music.berkeley.edu

AscenDance Project “Beyond
Gravity” Dance on a vertical
stage, at 8 p.m. at Ashby Stage,
1901 Ashby Ave. Tickets are
$10-$25. www.brownpapertick-
ets.com

Sandy Perez y su Lade, Afro
Cuban jazz at 8:30 p.m. at La
Peña Cultural Center. Cost is
$12-$15. 849-2568. www.lape-
na.org

Spaceheater’s Blast Furnace
at 8 p.m. at the Jazzschool.
Cost is $12-$15. 845-5373.
www.jazzschool.com

Continued on 
Page Twenty-Two

Information IV, Item C 
Attachment #F 
Berkeley Daily Planet 02/25-03/03/2010

efranklin
Rectangle



Information IV, Item D 

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 

INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 March 10, 2010 

 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
FROM: Doug Smith, Deputy Director of Library Services 
SUBJECT: CELEBRATING NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK 

INTRODUCTION 
This report provides an update on National Library Week, which takes place April 11-17, 
2010, and the Library activities during this annual commemoration.  
FISCAL IMPACT 
This report has no fiscal impacts. 
BACKGROUND 
National Library Week is an annual celebration of the contributions of our nation's 
libraries and librarians. First sponsored in 1958, National Library Week is a national 
observance sponsored by the American Library Association (ALA) and libraries across 
the country each April.  All types of libraries - school, public, academic and special - 
participate. The theme for 2010 is “Communities Thrive @ Your Library”, and libraries 
across the nation look for ways to raise awareness about libraries and library services 
during this week. This theme is especially appropriate this year, reflecting how many 
citizens are turning to their public libraries for assistance and solace during times of 
economic distress. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
At the Berkeley Public Library, people of all backgrounds come together for community 
meetings, lectures and programs, to do research with the assistance of a trained 
professional, to get help finding a job, to learn to read, or to find homework help. Each 
April, the staff of the Berkeley Public Library devotes activities and programs in honor of 
this important recognition of how libraries everywhere play a vital role in supporting the 
quality of life in their communities. This year, Library staff are launching the first of a 
planned annual patron satisfaction survey, to monitor what the Library’s users think of 
the library services they receive, and to receive feedback on potential areas of 
improvement. This annual survey instrument (Attachment 2) will augment ongoing 
planning efforts on the part of Library staff. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
March 2010 Celebrating National Library Week Page 2 

 
Additionally, the California Library Association is scheduling National Library Week visits 
with legislators in their local district offices throughout the state. These “Day in the 
District” meetings will provide a great opportunity to educate our legislators and their 
aides about the importance of libraries within their respective jurisdictions. Staff of the 
Berkeley Public Library will be participating with other Bay Area library advocates, 
meeting at the offices of local assemblypersons and state senators. 
 
FUTURE ACTION 
No future action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Berkeley Public Library Survey 
 



Attachment 1 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY SURVEY 
During National Library Week, the Berkeley Public Library assesses the quality of 
its services. Please help us serve the community better by completing this 
anonymous survey. Thank you for taking your time to provide your library with 
valuable feedback. 

 
 
1. How often do you use the Berkeley Public Library? 

 Daily  
 Weekly 
 At least once a month 
 A few times a year 
 Never 

If you answered “never”, please explain why: __________________________________________  

 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
2. Do you have a library card issued by this Library? 

 Yes 
 No 

 
3. Why do you visit the Library? (check all that apply) 

 Check out books 
 Use computers or wi-fi 
 Check out cds  
 Read newspapers or magazines 
 Check out audio books  
 Check out tools 
 To print or make copies 

 Use meeting room(s) 
 Study/research  
 Meet with friends 
 Attend adult programs  
 Attend children’s programs 
 Other 

 
4. When you visit the Library, are you able to find what you are looking for? 

 Always 
 Frequently 
 Sometimes 
 Seldom 
 Never 

 
5. How likely is it that you would recommend this Library to your friends? Please rank your 

response on a scale of 1 to 10, where ten means “extremely likely”, five means “neutral”, and 
one means “not at all likely”. 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 

 
6. How helpful was the Library staff the last time you visited?  

 Extremely 
 Very 
 Somewhat 
 Not very helpful 
 Not at all helpful 

G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2010\03 2010\Survey 2010 v2.doc 



7. Please rate your satisfaction with each of the following Library services: 

Service 
Very 

Satisfied Satisfied Dissatisfied 
Very 

Dissatisfied Don’t know 
Collection  
(books, magazines, audios, DVDs, etc.)      

Reference Service      

Hours open      

Link+ loans      

Public internet computers      

Children’s programs      

Adult programs      

Electronic Resources (databases)      

Web site (berkeleypubliclibrary.org)      

 
8. How do you find out about the Library’s programs and services? (check all that apply) 

 Newspaper  
 In-Library flyers and signs 
 Library staff  
 Library web site 
 Friends/Neighbors  
 Local broadcast/print Media 
 Other: _________________________________________________________________________  

 
9. If there is one thing that you could change about the Library, what would it be? 

 _________________________________________________________________________________  

 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
10. Are there any comments you would like to provide concerning the Library, its services, staff, 

collections, and/or programs? 

 _________________________________________________________________________________  

 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
OPTIONAL: 
The following information will be used for demographic purposes only. Please provide information for 
the person completing the survey. 
 

 Male 
 Female 

 Child(up to age 12) 
 Teen (13-19) 

 Adult (20-54) 
 Senior (55+) 

 
 

Thanks for completing the Berkeley Public Library survey! 

G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2010\03 2010\Survey 2010 v2.doc 



Information IV, Item E 

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 March 10, 2010 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Suzanne Olawski, Branch Libraries Services Manager 
  
SUBJECT: MEASURE FF: BRANCH IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM – BOOKMOBILE 

OPTION FOR CONTINUITY OF SERVICES DURING BRANCH CLOSURES  
 

SUMMARY 
 
The Library is exploring service opportunities – continuity of services – to offer during branch 
closure periods as a result of construction activities to occur.   
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
 
The branch libraries will be closing for construction activities arising out of the voter approved 
Measure FF Branch Libraries Improvement Program; and it is expected that regular branch 
library services will cease during this period.  Branch patrons have expressed concerns about 
the hardship imposed by the impending branch closures with particular concern to procurement 
of reserve items.  In response, the Board has expressed a desire for the Library to explore the 
option of bookmobile services to the affected neighborhoods.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Bookmobiles come in a variety of sizes and during the course of research the Library learned 
that a new, full-sized 42’ bookmobile with wheelchair access can cost upwards of $250,000; 
therefore, the Library expanded its search to the pricing of smaller bookmobile vans.  The 
Library communicated directly with several reputable bookmobile vendors, and two, Farber 
Specialty Vehicles and Matthews Specialty Vehicles, provided baseline quotes for a 22’ 
bookmobile van.  The base cost, including delivery and full training, for a Farber Specialty 
Vehicles Sprinter bookmobile is $75,000. The base cost for a Matthews Specialty Vehicles 22’ 
Series 500 Sprinter Book Hauler, including delivery and 5-speed automatic transmission, is 
$67,000.  Taxes, tags and fees are not included in the base prices.  Delivery is projected at 
seven (7) to eight (8) months from receipt of order for a standard outfitted vehicle, with some 
customized features possibly extending delivery times.  Leasing in lieu of outright purchase is 
being explored; but as yet the Library has not received any substantive information to report. 
 
Alternatively, the Library wrote to library directors throughout the state asking if they would be 
interested in leasing or selling one of their inactive bookmobiles in excellent condition to the 
Library.  There have been no responses received to date. 
 
Some of the issues surrounding mobile services include licensing, insurance, parking, fuel costs 
(diesel), maintenance, and compliance to CA emission standards. 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
Bookmobile Option For Continuity Of Services During Branch Closures Page 2 

 
 
Budget-wise the Library has not budgeted for mobile services either in the Library Tax Fund 
operating budget or the dedicated Measure FF bond funds.  Should the Library seek to pursue 
the provision of mobile services it is likely that daily vehicle operational costs such as staffing, 
vehicle maintenance and fueling would be paid for through the Library Tax Fund while vehicle 
purchase costs would be funded through Measure FF bond sale receipts.  Additionally, any 
funding drawn from the Library Tax Fund to address personnel and non-labor expenditures 
would be occurring within the context of constrained revenues, and escalating labor and 
healthcare costs, and undetermined increases to CalPERS; and vehicle purchase monies, an 
unplanned expense as previously mentioned, would constrain the already limited Branch 
Libraries Improvement Program budget. 
 
In an effort to determine the necessary procedures to procure a vehicle the Library contacted 
the City’s Purchasing department and was advised that it is likely that any procurement effort as 
well as ongoing vehicle maintenance and servicing would need to be conducted by and 
coordinated with Public Works – Fleet Management.  Consequently the Library did enquire with 
Fleet Management and is still awaiting a response. 
 
Staffing of a vehicle, although currently undetermined, is an issue that would involve multiple 
functions encompassing daily vehicle retrieval and end-of-day storage drop-off, fueling, loading 
and unloading of the day’s library materials, and transiting to scheduled fixed parking points at 
neighborhood locations.  It is envisioned that scheduled services would be limited at any one 
location with regularly fixed hours to ensure a degree of certainty for community patronage – 
weekend mobile services are not being considered due to lack of weekend access to the City’s 
corporation yard where the vehicle would be parked. 
 
FUTURE ACTION 
 
If the Board directs staff to pursue a vehicle purchase an action item will be presented for further 
discussion and possible approval. 



BOLT 03/10/2010 
Communications, Item 1



 



 

 

To: Donna Corbeil, Library Director        February 8, 2010 
cc: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tom Dufour, Librarian II 

Dear Ms Corbeil, 

I am writing to thank you for including me, as a member of SEIU 1021, on the Library’s Self‐Check and 
Materials‐Security Taskforce, where we worked to prepare a request for proposals to replace our 
current 3M RFID system. The taskforce did a thoroughly professional job, including careful study of 
available features, interviews with several vendors, and site visits to other libraries using different 
circulation systems. I believe the request for proposals fully reflects the Union’s concerns with employee 
safety, workloads, and morale.  

 

Sincerely, 

Tom Dufour 
Librarian II 
Berkeley Public Library 

BOLT 03/10/2010 
Communications, Item 2



 


	2010_03_10 BOLT Agenda v4
	2010_03_16 Staff report on west - presentation v5
	HED WBBL-BOLT2-Revised
	2010_02_06 BOLT Minutes v7
	HED Attachment 1 West branch BOLT presentation 2010_02_06
	2010_02_10 BOLT Minutes v1
	FP Attachment A Goals_we Heard_New Design Highlights
	FP Attachment B Site Floor Plan
	FP Attachment C Program Summary
	FP Attachment D Russell and MLK Elevations
	FP Attachment E Exterior Material Studies
	FP Attachment F Computer Simulations
	FP Attachment G Inspirations
	FP Attachment H Landscape plan
	2010_02_03 HED Community Meeting Notes
	2010_02_03 HED Community Meeting  Audience survey responses and comments
	GEBT Attachment K 2010_02_10 BOLT Presentation
	HED Attachment L Solar Funding Options
	2010_03_10 BRP BOLT Director's Report v 3
	directors bond report attach 1 spanishfocus grp notes 012110
	2010_3_10 Directors report v4
	SFGate Authors Dinner 2
	SFGate Authors Dinner
	Globe NEws 2010_02_10-16
	Daily Cal 2010_02_11
	BDP 2010_02_18-24
	BDP 2010_02-25 - 03-03
	BOLT Info NLW 2010 v2
	Survey 2010 v2
	2010-03-10 Bookmobile v1_fnl
	2010_02_08 Phil Allen Letter
	RFID task force report 97 Thank you letter



